NOTICE OF MEETING

Thursday, August 18, 2011

9:00 a.m. — Advisory Committee Meeting

AT THE CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER OFFICES
9641 San Bernardino Road
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730
(909) 484-3888




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

Thursday, Auqust 18, 2011

9:00 a.m. — Advisory Committee Meeting

AGENDA PACKAGE




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING
9:00 a.m. — August 18, 2011
WITH
Mr. Ken Jeske, Chair
Mr. Jeff Pierson, Vice-Chair
At The Offices Of
Chino Basin Watermaster
9641 San Bernardino Road
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER

CONSENT CALENDAR

Note: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and be no
separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public
requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate

action.

A.  MINUTES

1.

Minutes of the Advisory Committee Meeting held July 21, 2011 (Page 1)

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS

1.
2.
3.
4

5,

Cash Disbursements for the month of June 2011 (Page 17}

Watermaster VISA Check Detail for the month of June 2011 (Page 23)

Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011 (Page 27}
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period June 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011
(Page 31)

Budget vs. Actual July 2010 through June 2011 (Page 35)

C. WATER TRANSACTIONS

1.

Consider Approval for Notice of Sale or Transfer — Fontana Water Company
("Company”) has agreed to purchase from The Nicholson Trust annual production right in
the amount of 7.000 acre-feet to satisfy a portion of the Company’s anticipated Chino Basin
replenishment obligation for Fiscal Year 2010/2011. Date of Application: June 21, 2011,
Date of Notice: July 7, 2011 {Page 47)

D. SEMI-ANNUAL STATUS REPORT 2011-1 (Page 57)

BUSINESS ITEMS

A. RESOLUTION 11-05 RESOLUTION TO TAX DEFER MEMBER PAID CONTRIBUTIONS AND
RESOLUTION 11-06 RESOLUTION FOR PAYING AND REPORTING THE VALUE OF
EMPLOYER PAID MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS
Consider Approval for Resolution 11-05 to Tax Defer Member Paid Contributions and Consider
Approval for Resolution 11-06 for Paying and Reporting the Value of Employer Paid Member
Contributions (Page 67)



Agenda Advisory Committee Meeting

August 18, 2011

LOAN AGREEMENT WITH CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, CITY OF

CNTARIO, AND JURUPA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Consider Approval of Loan Agreements with the Chino Basin Water Conservation District in an
Amount not to exceed $5,000,000.00, with the City of Ontario in an Amount not to exceed
$2,125,000, with Jurupa Community Services District in an Amount not to exceed $1,000,000
and authorize the CEO fo enter into loan agreements with interested Appropriators (Page 67)

STORAGE AGREEMENT WITH INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY AND THREE

VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

1. Authorize the CEQ to Execute a Storage Agreement with Inland Empire Utilities Agency

(IEUA)} and With Three Valleys Municipal Water District (TVMWD)

2. Request the Watermaster Board Waive the Thirty Day Notice Period (Watermaster Rules &
Regulations Section 10.10) and the Twenty-One Day Consideration Period (Watermaster
Rules & Regulations Section 10.11) for Applications for Local Storage Agreements with
IEUA and TVMWD to Store Desalter Replenishment Water. This Request is sought With
the Express Acknowledgment that it Does Not Create Precedent for Future Applications

(Page 107)

REPORTS/UPDATES

A,

D.

WATERMASTER GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT
1. September 30, 2011 Hearing
2. Restated Judgment

CEQISTAFF REPORT
1. Recharge Update
2. Woater Activity Reports (WAR) Reminder

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

1. MWD Update - oral

2. State and Federal Legislative Reports (Page 113)

3. Community Outreach/Public Relations Report (Page 137)
4. |EUA Monthly Water Newsletter (Page 139)

OTHER METROPOLITAN MEMBER AGENCY REPORTS

IV. INFORMATION

1.
2.

Cash Disbursements for July 2011 (Page 143)
Newspaper Articles (Page 138)

V. POOL MEMBER COMMENTS

VL.

OTHER BUSINESS

VIl. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION - POSSIBLE ACTION
Pursuant to the Advisory Committee Rules & Regulations, a Confidential Session may be held during

the Watermaster Pool meeting for the purpose of discussion and possible action.

VIIl. EUTURE MEETINGS

Thursday, August 18, 2011 8:00a.m. IEUA Dry Year Yield Meeting @ CBWM
Thursday, August 18, 2011 9:00 a.m. Advisory Committee Meeting @ CBWM
Thursday, August 18, 2011 10:30 a.m. Land Subsidence Committee Meeting @ CBWM
Thursday, August 25, 2011 11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board Meeting @ CBWM
Thursday, September 8, 2011 9:00 a.m. Appropriative Pool Meeting @ CBWM



Agenda Advisory Committee Meeting

Thursday, September 8, 2011
Thursday, September 8, 2011
Thursday, September 15, 2011
Thursday, September 15, 2011
Thursday, September 15, 2011
Thursday, September 22, 2011
Friday, September 30, 2011

Meeting Adjourn

11:00 a.m.
1:00 p.m.
8:00 a.m.
9:00 a.m.

10:30 a.m.

11:00 a.m.

10:30 a.m.

August 18, 2011

Non-Agricultural Pool Conference Call Meeting
Agricultural Pool Meeting @ CBWM

IEUA Dry Year Yield Meeting @ CBWM
Advisory Committee Meeting @ CBWM

Land Subsidence Committee Meeting @ CBWM
Watermaster Board Meeting @ CBWM
Watermaster Court Hearing @ Chino Court



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. MINUTES

1. Advisory Committee Meeting held on July 21,
2011




Draft Minutes
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING
July 21, 2011

The Advisory Committee meeting was held at the offices of the Chino Basin Watermaster, 9641 San
Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga CA, on July 21, 2011 af 9:00 a.m.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT WHO SIGNED IN

Agricultural Pool

Jeff Pierson, Chair Ag Pool — Crops

Bob Feenstra Ag Pool — Dairy

Pete Hall Ag Pool — State of California - CIM
Non-Agrictdtural Pool

Brian Geye Auto Club Speedway

Scott Burton City of Ontario

Appropriative Pool

Mark Kinsey Monte Vista Water District

Jo Lynne Russo-Pereyra Cucamonga Valley Water District
Raul Garibay City of Pomona

Dave Crosley City of Chino

Ron Craig City of Chino Hills

Mohamed El-Amamy City of Ontario

J. Arnold Rodriguez Santa Ana River Water Company
Robert Young Fontana Water Company

Seth Zielke - Fontana Water Company

Shaun Stone City of Upland

Ben Lewis Golden State Water Company
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT WHO SIGNED IN

Bob Kuhn Three Valleys Municipal Water District
Watermaster Staff Present

Desi Alvarez Chief Executive Officer

Danielle Maurizio Senior Engineer

Joe Joswiak Chief Financial Officer

Sherri Maolino Recording Secretary
Watermaster Consultants Present

Michael Fife Brownstein, Hyati, Farber & Schreck
Mark Wildermuth Wildermuth Environmental Inc.

Others Present Who Signed In

Bob Gluck City of Ontario

Rick Rees Department of Justice/CIM

Van Jew Monte Vista Water District

Justin Scott-Coe Monte Vista Water District

Ryan Shaw Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Chris Berch Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Craig Miller Inland Empire Utilities Agency

David Delesus Three Valleys Municipal Water District
Rick Hansen Three Valleys Municipal Water District
Bill Kruger City of Chine Hills

P1



Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting July 21, 2011

John Mura City of Chino Hills
Eunice Ulloa Chino Basin Water Conservation District

Chair Pierson called the Advisory Committee meeting to order at 9:08 a.m.

AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REQORDER
Mr. Alvarez added an information item to the CEO/Reports regarding the upcoming Watermaster 2011-

2012 Budget, to be heard during the Public Hearing at the Watermaster Board meeting on July 28, 2011
at 11.00 a.m.

. CONSENT CALENDAR
A. MINUTES
1.  Minutes of the Advisory Committee Meeting held June 16, 2011

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS

Cash Disbursements for the month of May 2011

Watermaster VISA Check Detail for the month of May 2011

Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2010 through May 31, 2011

Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period May 1, 2011 through May 31, 2011
Budget vs. Actual July through May 2011

b whN =

Mation by Garibay, second by Young, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve Consent Calendar items A and B, as presented

Il. BUSINESS ITEMS
A. ACQUISITION OF RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT FOR HORIZONTAL EXTENSOMETER

Mr. Alvarez stated this is a Right of Entry Agreement that is being presented today for your
approval and authorization for Watermaster to enter into the agreement. The purpose of the
agreement is to obtain access to a property for the instaflation of a horizontal extensometer,
which will be used to collect data as part of the study that is being done in conjunction with
looking at land subsidence in the MZ1 area. Mr. Alvarez stated the Right of Entry Agreement is
for a 21 month period, which should be sufficient for the term of the study. Mr. Alvarez stated
the cost associated with the agreement is a fee paid to the property owner, Mr. Alvarez stated,
at that site, there will be controlled aquifer fests which will induce some drawdown and will
provide valuable data on settlement as part of this comprehensive study. Mr. Alvarez stated
staff is recommending approval of the Right of Entry Agreement and payment of $1,000 to the
property owner; this was passed unanimously through the Pools process earlier this month.

Motion by Kinsey, second by El-Amamy, and by unanimous vote
Moved fo approve Acquisition of Right of Entry Agreement for the Horizontal
Extensometer and payment of $1,000 to the land owner, as presented

B. AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LOAN BETWEEN CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER AND CHINO
BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Mr. Alvarez stated this item has fo do with the funding for the replenishment water which has
been taken in since May, and part of that process was to work out financing alternatives.
Mr. Alvarez stated one of those financing alternatives is to borrow the money. Mr. Alvarez
offered history on discussions with other agencies and banks with this regard. Mr. Alvarez
stated the Chino Basin Water Conservation District (CBWCD) is interested in loaning
Watermaster money, and last week their board approved and authorized their general manager
to enter into a loan agreement of up to $5M for the purposes of purchasing the replenishment
water. The terms of the CBWCD loan would be at the interest rate of LAIF plus 1 %%. This
would be a variable rate with the interest payable monthly, and the principal would all be due in
January 2015. Mr. Alvarez stated the agreement for the loan would also require that, after the
agreement has been approved through the Watermaster process, it will then be provided fo the
court for its approval, and recognizes the repayment of the loan would be through a future

PZ



Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting _ July 21, 2011

assessment. Mr. Alvarez stated since those conversations took place, an agreement has been
put together between Watermaster and CBWCD, which is before the Advisory Committee today
for approval. Mr. Alvarez stated, if it is chosen to go this route of borrowing the money, the cost
of the water would be at the least expensive cost; there are no upfront associated costs with this
agreement. Mr. Alvarez stated if the water is put in by Watermaster for purposes of augmenting
the overdraft account, it is not subject fo a storage loss. Mr. Alvarez stated the other issue is
now that Watermaster has a form of a loan agreement in place, there have been various parties
that have suggested just doing an assessment at this present time; this was the original idea.
Not all parties were financially ready to meet that special financial assessment obligation.
Mr. Alvarez siated it is possible that Watermaster could enter into the same financing
agreement with individua! parties that would like to pay their obligation at this time by loaning
Watermaster the money, and then three years down the road, when it was time to pay through
an assassment, the parties would then be paid back, which would be considered a wash.
Mr. Alvarez offered further comment on the assessment process for this endeavor. Chair
Pierson stated this would then be a subsequent issue after the approval of the maximum $5M
recommendation for a loan. Mr. Alvarez stated that was comrect. Mr. Kinsey inguired about
when interest is {o be paid. Mr. Alvarez stated it will be monthly. A discussion regarding the
interest payments ensued. Mr. Kinsey inquired about the source of revenues to pay the monthly
interest. Mr. Alvarez stated there are some reserves in the Watermaster account that would be
sufficient to pay for the interest. Mr. Kinsey stated it would seem there needs to be some sort of
action through the Watermaster process to authorize this; it's the parties’ money that is being
held in reserves over the 30/30. Mr. Alvarez stated he was under the impression that, by
approving this today, this committee would be giving that authorization. Mr. Kinsey inquired if
there would be an increase in assessments. Mr. Alvarez stated none at all. Mr. Kinsey inquired
about the Watermaster approval process and the bypassing of the Pools on this agreement,
which is obligating the Pools without this being an urgent matter. Mr. Alvarez stated this has
been discussed at the Pool level last week; however, the agreement was not ready until the
Advisory Committee package was being prepared. Mr. Alvarez stated if it is the wish of the
Advisory Committee to put this through the Pool process first, then that is what wilt be done. A
discussion regarding the time frame for this agreement and additional financing agreements
ensued. Mr. Kinsey inquired about the cost allocation with regard to the Non-Agricuitural Pool
sharing in the Desalter Replenishment obligation or not. Mr. Kinsey offered further comments
on the Desalter Replenishment obligations. Mr. Kinsey stated he believes after this is done
Watermaster needs to go to court and have the court bless zero storage losses on this
increment of water. Mr. Young inquired if there are any legal requirements that this agreement
go through the entire Watermaster process for this type of an agreement. Counsel Fife stated
that is correct in emphasizing this type of an agreement; the rules require applications to
ga through the Pool process first. There is nothing in the Judgment that requires anything to go
through the Pool process before it gets to the Advisory Committee — this is not an application so
the rules do not apply. Chair Pierson stated the Advisory Committee does have the opportunity
to send it back to the Pools if it so desires. Counsel Fife stated yes, by tradition and practice
everything has gone through the Pools before it goes to the Advisory Cammittee, and that has
been the general pattern of activity of the Advisory Committee to not act on things without
recommendations from the Pools first. However, there is no strict requirement for that in the
Judgment. Mr. Kinsey stated he would [ike to see this go through the Pool process, and also
needs his legal department to review the documents. Ms. Russo-Pereyra stated as for
Cucamonga Valley Watler District, it would be preferable that it be referred back through the
Pool process in an effort of transparency and due diligence. Mr. Young stated he agrees that
this should go through the Pool process first unless there is urgency in needing this done right
away. Mr. Garibay supported the comments of putting this agreement through the Pool process
first. Mr. Craig inquired about the drop-dead timing for having the money in place. Mr. Alvarez
stated all of the financing should be in place and finalized by the end of August 2011.
Mr. Alvarez stated it appears the wishes of this committee is to put this back through the Pool
process. There might be a need of some special meetings fo try and pick up some lost time.
Mr. Craig stated he believed there were already some commitments mads by a few parties to
pay for the first half of the water; does that give us some additional time? Mr. Alvarez stated not

P3



Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting July 21, 2011

much beyond August, and noted this could become a critical issue. A lengthy discussion
regarding this matter ensued. Mr. El-Amamy stated once this is brought back, and if and when
the interest is being drawn from the reserves, it would be good to see a process to compare the
different criteria, maybe some sort of reconciliation process. Mr. Alvarez asked for a better
description of what Mr. El-Amamy is asking for. Mr. El-Amamy stated because the reserves are
collected based on certain percentages assessed fo the different parties, if the reserves are
used to pay for the interest of this loan to pay for the replenishment for the desalter water, when
the desalter water is used, the criteria or percentage of the assessment would be a totally
different criteria of percentages. Mr. Alvarez stated what is being sought after is the reserves
basically apportioned based on what the contribution was to those reserves; this does not seem
doable and, in the end, will not be a not very arbitrary number because the reserves were not
acquired just in this past year, they have been building up over several years. The pro rata of
percentages that then go to any one year differ, and to try and go back and attempt to apportion
that is probably next to impossible. Mr. Alvarez stated the money is all there and should just be
used for the greater good. Mr. Kinsey offered further comment on what he thought
Mr. El-Amamy was asking for and understands the difficulty of doing this exercise; however it
could be done. Mr. Kinsey stated Watermaster is buying water in advance of a pending
obligation. The actual obligaticn that each party will have for Desalter Replenishment will be
determined when that obligation occurs. There will be some in 2013, based on the projections
and agencies now using the basin and, in meeting their demands, has changed from five years
ago and it will be different in the future. Mr. Kinsey stated prorating the interest obligation may
be done the same way the actual replenishment obligation is prorated; that's doable and would
allow for a one-time adjustment at the end of the process. Chair Pierson stated there seems to
be a sufficient tack of understanding, and the need by the parties that this should be taken back
through the Watermaster process. The issues that have been brought up today need to be
addressed at some point in time, these parties who spoke might want to prepare an outline of

their thoughts and submit them to Watermaster staff to be brought back as a report at a later
date.

Motion by El-Amamy, second by Russo-Pereyra, and by unanimous vole
Moved to requested that the loan agreement between Chino Basin Watermaster and
Chino Basin Water Conservation District be presented to the Pools in August for
further discussion and approval of the use of the accumulated reserves to offset
monthly interest payments, as presented

C. UPDATE OF CHINO BASIN GROUNDWATER MODEL - (Information item Only)

Mr. Wildermuth stated since this presentation was given at all three Pool meetings, he will forgo
the presentation and only offer cormments; this presentation wili be given at the next
Watermaster Board meeting next week. Mr. Craig inquired if there were any questions or
comments that needed to be addressed from the Appropriative Pool meeting last week.
Mr. Wildermuth stated there were, and he will address those now. Mr. Wildermuth stated there
were duestions related to the modeling and to the cost of the horizontal extensometer.
Mr. Wildermuth stated the cost of the model, as it came out in 2007, was budgeted for and
Wildermuth worked around that budget. It was noted that it was built in two different fiscal years
and the cost to develop the model for a complete rebuild was approximately $700,000.
However, Wildermuth Environmental wrote off approximately $150,000 as the cost of the model
ran over the budgeted amount. Mr. Wildermuth stated, with regard to the horizontal
extensometer, the tofal cost to get it constructed is $82,000, and about half of that was in the
prior fiscal year. This daes not include the monitoring costs. Mr. Wildermuth stated there is a
large amount of subcontractor costs on this endeavor. Mr. Wildermuth stated the monitoring
costs for the entire Subsidence Monitering Program in the current fiscal year is approximately
$30,000, with the costs of the horizontal extensometer monitoring built into that. There were no
further comments or questions presented.

P4



Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting July 21, 2011

ML

REPORTS/UPDATES
A. WATERMASTER GENERAL LEGAL CCUNSEL REPORT

1.

Paragraph 31 Appeal
Counsel Fife stated there is nothing new to report on since the Pool meetings other than the

Appropriative Pool will be filing its reply brief shortly and it is due to the court on Monday,
July 25, 2011.

Restated Watermaster Judgment

Counsel Fife stated at the recent Restated Judgment Workshop, Watermaster committed to
producing what is described as the first phase of the Restated Judgment Project, and that is
now ready to be posted to the Watermaster website. Counsel Fife offered comment on
preparing this document with exact text in it and the exact amendments added in.
Mr. Crosley inquired about the Restated Judgment task as there was an estimated figure
presented in the budget around $60,000 to $70,000 for that entire task. During a workshap
discussion there were identified three different levels of effort needed to complete this task
and, with the previously budgeted amount, inquired if that is for level 1 work product or more
than level 1. Counsel Fife stated it is more than level 1, and we will see what happens with
level 2 and whether it becomes a big effort; what was contemplated in the original budget
was more of a level of work than just this first phase. Counsel Fife stated he did not get
from the workshop that this effort would change the budget; however, it will be see-as-it
happens with the process and it does appear this will stay in the previously budgeted
projection. Mr. Feenstra inquired if a schedule of mestings for the Restated Judgment will
be sent out officially. Counsel Fife stated scheduling meetings has not been thought about
yet and it was important to get the first fask completed and then move on from there;
however, some workshops/meetings will be scheduled in the near future. Mr. Feenstra
inquired if those meeting dates will be announced. Mr. Alvarez stated they will be
announced and noticed once they are set.  Mr. Garibay asked if, once this entire Restated
Judgment process is complete, it can be put on a DVD or in some electronic format for
distribution instead of a large binder. Counsel Fife stated this is now in a Word document
format and that is what will be posted. If all goes as planned, a Word document can be
transferred onio a DVD or printed out, whichever is more convenient. A brief discussion
regarding this matter ensued, :

September 30, 2011 Hearing

Counsel Fife stated there is a hearing scheduled for September 30, 2011 at 10:30 a.m. and
the main subject will be to consider the CDA issues and the Restated Judgment issue.
Counsel Fife stated with the discussions that have taken place over the loan agreement,
one of the conditions in that agreement that Watermaster gets court approval. Counsel Fife
stated for the agreement Watermaster might want to get ahead of September 30" hearing,
maybe after the August Board meeting; the court likes to do its hearings on Fridays and if
that date was free then it could be presented to the court the day after the Board meeting to
get the loan agreement approved. Counsel Fife stated it would be good to have court
approval of the whole issue of the pre-purchase of replenishment water because
Watermaster has never done this before and Watermaster has never had its own storage
account; these are all new and should be run by the court. Counsel! Fife stated with this
there might be another court date prior to the September 30, 2011 hearing date scheduled.

B. ENGINEERING REPORT

1.

Progress Report on the State of the Basin Report

Mr. Wildermuth stated the State of the Basin Report is ready to get posted around the end
of the month; the graphics are breathtaking.

C. CEO/STAFF REPORT

1.

Recharge Update

Mr. Alvarez stated this item is regarding the MWD Replenishmeant Water. Mr. Alvarez
stated approximately 14,000 acre-feet has been recharged, which is at a lower rate than

P5



Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting July 21, 2011

originally anticipated. Mr. Alvarez stated at the current rate Watermaster will recharge
40,000 acre-feet versus the originally planned 50,000 acre-feet; although, the final number
is subject to change and there might be sirategies to make up some capacity, including
actual storm water or additional replenishment water. Mr. Alvarez stated actual recharge
basin capacity is going to be lost shortly due to some of the basins needing maintenance
work. However, to attempt to make up for that lost capacity, Watermaster has been working
on getting some additional basins in place and is currently in the discussion process with
IEUA for this to possibly take place in enough time to assist in making up some additional
capacity. Mr. El-Amamy inquired about the time frame at looking at different options for
taking in this water, such as in lieu deliveries. Mr. Alvarez stated he believes it is time to
begin the process for discussions regarding in lieu deliveries.

2.  85/15 Rule Review

Mr. Alvarez stated this was a request made of Watermaster last week to bring this item
back for discussion; however, it will be coming back as a full report/presentation item in
September.

3. Water Activity Report Update
Mr. Alvarez stated the most up-to-date spreadsheet is available cn the back fable which
summarizes all the storm and supplemental water recharge through June. Mr. Alvarez

stated through June 3%, 4,323 acre-feet of water has been recharged including the recent
MWD replenishment water

Mr. Alvarez stated Watermaster staff is in the process of preparing the Water Activity
Reports (WAR) which will go out shortly. Mr. Alvarez stated this will begin the next step
towards the Assessments process. Mr. Alvarez stated those reports are due back to
Watermaster as quickly as the parties can get them back; this will speed up the process
and allow the Assessment Package to be developed in a timely manner.

Added Comment:

Mr. Alvarez stated this is not on the agenda but is a matter which needs addressing; it is the subject
of the Watermaster 2011-2012 Budget, which is up for consideration at a Public Hearing next week
during the Watermaster Board meeting. Mr. Alvarez stated the last time the Watermaster Budget
was up before this Committee, the Budget was approved. One of the items that were discussed last
month was a request by the Agricultural Pool for inclusion in the Budget of a legal expense item for
support of the Restated Judgment. Mr. Alvarez stated at that time, the Agricultural Pool asked for
$100,000 for their special counsel to review the Restated Judgment. Mr. Alvarez stated the Advisory
Committee had previously indicated that would be ok to include if there was documentation provided
for justification on those budgetary numbers being added fo the Budget. Mr. Alvarez stated the
documentation asked for was not available at the fast Advisory Committee meeting when the
Watermaster Budget was presented, so that $100,000 was not included in the Budget that is being
presented to the Watermaster Board/Public Hearing. Mr. Alvarez stated subsequenily, as of last
week, the Agricultural Pool now does have a breakdown of anticipated legal costs that they believe
they will incur to get this task accomplished. Mr. Alvarez stated that budget is available and is broken
down by the number of hours and tasks, and that dollar amount is now being presented as $84,000.
Mr. Alvarez siated he would like to now put this new number out for discussion to see if there is a
way to proceed with this matter. Mr. Alvarez stated the motion or recommendation made today will
be provided to the Watermaster Board/Public Hearing and that amount will be included in the
presented Budget next week for consideration. Mr. El-Amamy stated he would like to make that
recommendation to add $84,000 specifically for the Agricultural Pool to use for the legal review of the
Restated Judgment. Chair Pierson stated there is now a motion on the table and he asked for any
further comments. Mr. Kinsey stated a decision needs to be made to add this item to the Agenda as
a discussion item with the recommendation for approval. Mr. Kinsey stated it is his opinion that the
Advisory Committee committed to operate under the provisions of the Brown Act, so some kind of
finding needs to be made that this is an urgent item and add it on to the Agenda for consideration.

P6



Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting July 21, 2011

Chair Pierson stated he will hold the motion in abeyance and asked if Mr. Feenstra had any further
comments. Mr. Alvarez stated he wanted to discuss the matter of adding the item to the Agenda
before Mr. Feenstra speaks. Mr. Alvarez stated if this Committee wants to formally add this item to
the Agenda, this Committee has the basis to do that because the information became available
within the last few days and a Public Hearing has already been noticed and scheduled to be
conducted next week. Mr. Alvarez stated there is a need that has come up subsequent to the
posting of the agenda and there is urgency, because any actions taken today will need to be made
avaitable for next week’s Public Hearing. Chair Pierson stated this Committee can either act today or
allow this information to be presented at the Public Hearing to the Board and then allow the Board to
make the final decision. Chair Pierson called the chairman of the Agricultural Pool to the floor.
Mr. Feenstra stated the Agricultural Pool did what was requested and had special counsel draw up
the time involved and what the costs could reflect at the end of the Restated Judgment. Mr. Feenstra
stated we, as an Agricultural Pool, have fallen short a few times and found ourselves in a situation of
budget shortfalls which created some real controversy in the past. Mr. Feenstra stated special
counsel has done their best to speak with people and find out what might be needed for this task,
and we now have a document ready for inclusion inte the Watermaster Budget, as requested.
Mr. Feenstra offered further comment on this matter. A lengthy discussion regarding this matter
ensued. Mr. Feenstra stated the action taken at the Agricultural Pool regarding this matter, was to
include an additional $100,000 in the budget for special counsel to work on the Restated Judgment,
and it was requested of the Ag Pool to provide justification, and this is what was done. This is a
$100,000 dollar budget item and the motion stands at that amount. Mr. Feenstra stated he believes
approximately $84,000 will be spent on this endeavor if the whole process goes as
discussed/described. Mr. Feenstra offered further comment on this matter when it was discussed at
the Agricultural Pool meeting with Mr. John Mura in attendance at that meeting. Mr. Feenstra stated
the Agricuitural Pool has a responsibility to protect those within the Agricultural Pool, and those water
users within the Agricultural area and according to Peace Il. Ms. Russo-Pereyra inquired if the
justification was on the Watermaster ftp site. Mr. Feenstra stated Mr. Alvarez was given a hard copy.
Mr. Alvarez stated it has not been posted yef. Mr. Crosley inquired if that Assessment would include
whatever amount is identified in the budget, and if the actual spending is less than that amount, then
will the delta be added to the $1.3M reserves that are currently on hand. Mr. Alvarez stated the delta
at the end of the fiscal year can either go fo the reserves, because that is how they have been built
up over time, or alternatively there have been years when the delta was used to offset other
increases then brought back threugh the Watermaster process. Mr. Alvarez stated it is either/or — it
could be that delta would be used to offset other expenditures that go over the line, or it could go
towards a credit, which was done this year towards the following year's budget. Mr. Crosley stated
from his recollection Mr. El-Amamy’'s motion was to only use the money budgeted in this case
towards the legal review of the Restated Judgment, and if that were the case, it would require, a
subsequent and separate action. Mr. Craig inquired about what the amount in the budget would be
without the special legal counsel. Mr. Alvarez stated, for legal expenses for the Agricultural Pool, that
number is currently $125,000. Mr. Craig stated his preference would be, that at the time we approve
Watermaster legal counsel for additional budget monies, that we at the same time would approve a
specific budget for the Agricultural Pool's legal review. Mr. Alvarez stated at the special workshop
that legal counsel held to discuss this item; it was decided to address the court's request for
clarification of the Judgment and of all of the agreements in two parts. Mr, Alvarez described them in
detail as described in previous meetings. Mr. Alvarez stated from that workshop the Agricultural
Pool's special counsel tock that request and prepared the justification on the basis of what was
understood at that workshop. A lengthy discussion regarding this matter ensued. Mr. Kinsey stated
all the parties have worked very hard to try and keep the assessments at a lower rate than the
previous year, and there is now additional monies being added in, essentially increasing what has
been reduced. Mr. Kinsey stated whether the Agricultural Pool spends all the monies allocated will
leave different scenarios open as to what to do with the extra funds. Mr. Kinsey stated it appears the
$120,000 already allocated for Agricultural Pool legal expenses should suffice for this activity and
ongeoing Agricultural Pool expenses; although, the Agricultural Pool feels differently — it is a lot of
money to ask for tax payersfcustomers o pay. Mr. Kinsey offered further comment regarding this
matter and on the situation which occurred in the past for the Agricultural Pool to obtain additional
monies once the budget was passed. Mr. Kinsey stated Monte Vista has stated repeatedly that our

P7



Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting July 21, 2011

desired approach would be fo leave the $120,000 in the budget as it stands now and then if
additional monies are needed, to come back through the Watermaster budget process and
Watermaster will find the additional money for that within the existing budget. This will eliminate
unnecessary assessment costs. Mr. Kinsey stated reducing the assessments are our goal.
Mr. Feenstra stated he could bring up other instances; however, that would not be to anyone's
benefit and the motion is what was made by the Agricultural Pool and it stands. Mr. Feenstra offered
closing comments. Chair Pierson stated there is a Public Hearing scheduled, justification has been
provided fo the Watermaster CEQ, and the Watermaster Board will act on it as it sees fit. Chair
Pierson offered comment on this matter. Mr. Garibay inquired if a copy of the justification can be
provided to the parties and Mr. Alvarez stated it would be made available. Mr. Garibay offered
comment on this situation, especially if their special counsel already worked on this in the past,
meaning his review should be that much faster and easier and he noted that is what he is struggling
with. Chair Pierson stated Phase 1 is a quick operation; however, Phase 2, with how it has been
outlined, becomes a much more laborious activity. Mr. Garibay stated this is why the justification
should be made public. Chair Pierson stated he has not seen this document to date either. A
lengthy discussion regarding this matter ensued. Chair Pierson offered final commenis on this
impottant discussion item.

D. INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
1. MWD Update — oral
Mr. Shaw stated last fiscal year Metropolitan's water sales were down substantially which
put them in a $100M hole; however, the good news is there is an abundance of water. This
was a record water year! Mr. Shaw reviewed water numbers in detail.

a) CDA LRP Status
Mr. Shaw offered a hrief report on the CDA LRP status.

b) Replenishment Update

Mr. Shaw stated, as of last week, approximately 60,000 acre-feet of the water made
available through MWD has been purchased. All of that water is now fully subscribed,
of which approximately 130,000 acre-feet had been requested; it is still first come first
served. Mr. Shaw stated, as mentioned earlier, parties are working together to get as
much water as we can into the Chino Basin and discussions are going to begin on
getting in-lieu in the future. A discussion on the amount of water MWD is willing to sell
ensued. Mr. Miller stated we are participating, and MWD is trying to figure how they
are going retool the Replenishment Program. There are a long series of workshops
taking place and agricultural does come up in those discussions; there will be an effort
at MWD to try and figure out how to bring the two together. Mr. Miller stated that was
one of the terms of selling replenishment water. One of the stipulations that was put
into the motion was a new Replenishment Program has to be brought back by the end
of the year. There has been talk if agricultural is going to be a part of that, is it surface
water storage, or is it going to go back to only groundwater storage.

Mr. Miller stated he would like to discuss the urgency in getting agreements in place
for financing the replenishment water and what needs to be brought up is if IEUA is o
help finance this endeavor. Depending on the amount, IEUA may need to apply for a
commercial paper program and that process takes approximately 6 weeks. Mr. Miller
stated he has told Mr. Alvarez that IEUA needs to know by August in order to start the
6 week process. A lengthy discussion regarding this matter and other potential
financing options ensued.

2. Water Softener Update
No comment was made regarding this item.

3. Monthly Water LJse Report
No comment was made regarding this item.

P8



Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting July 21, 2011

4. State and Federal Legislative Reports
No comment was made regarding this item.

5.  Community Qutreach/Public Relations Report
No comment was made regarding this item.

6. IEUA Monthly Water Newsletter
No comment was made regarding this item.

E. OTHER METROPOLITAN MEMBER AGENCY REPORTS
No comment was made regarding this item.

V. INEFORMATION
1. Cash Disbursements for June 2011
No comment was made regarding this item.

2. Newspaper Articles
No comment was made regarding this ftem,

V. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS
No comment was made regarding this item.

Vi. OTHER BUSINESS
No comment was made regarding this item.

VII. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION - POSSIBLE ACTION
Pursuant to the Advisory Committee Rules & Regulations, a Confidential Session may be held during
the Watermaster Pool meeting for the purpose of discussion and possible action.

No confidential session was called.

ViIl. EUTURE MEETINGS

Thursday, July 21, 2011 8:00 a.m. IEUA Dry Year Yield Meeting @ CBWM
Thursday, July 21, 2011 9:00 a.m. Advisory Committee Meeting @ CBWM
Thursday, July 21, 2011 10:30 a.m, Land Subsidence Committee Meeting @ CBWM
Tuesday, July 26, 2011 9:00 a.m. GRCC Meeting @ CBWM

Thursday, July 28, 2011 11:00 a.m. Watermaster Public Hearing @ CBWM
Thursday, July 28, 2011 11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board Meeting @ CBWM
Thursday, August 11, 2011 9:00 a.m. Appropriative Pool Meeting @ CBWM
Thursday, August 11, 2011 11:.00 a.m. Non-Agricultural Pool Conference Call Meeting
Thursday, August 11, 2011 1:00 p.m. Agricultural Pool Meeting @ CBWM

Thursday, August 18, 2011 8:00a.m. |EUA Dry Year Yield Meeting @ CBWM
Thursday, August 18, 2011 9:00 a.m. Advisory Committee Meeting @ CBWM
Thursday, August 18, 2011 10:30 a.m. Land Subsidence Committee Meeting @ CBWM
Thursday, August 25, 2011 11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board Meeting @ CBWM

The Advisory Committee meeting was dismissed by Chair Pierson at 10:20 a.m.

Secretary:

Minutes Approved:

P9



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION

P10



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

. CONSENT CALENDAR

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS

f—t

Cash Disbursements for the month of June 2011

2. Watermaster VISA Check Detail for the month of
June 2011

3. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2011
through June 30, 2011

4. Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the Period
June 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011

5. Budget vs. Actual July 2010 through June 2011




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bemardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org

DESI ALVAREZ, PE

Chief Executive Officer
STAFF REPORT
DATE: August 18, 2011
TO: Advisory Committee Members

SUBJECT: Cash Disbursement Report — Financial Report B1

SUMMARY
Issue - Record of cash disbursements for the month of June 2011.

Recommendation — Staff recommends the Cash Disbursements for June 2011 be received and
filed as presented.

Fiscal Impact — Funds disbursed were included in the FY 2010-2011 Watermaster Budget.

BACKGROUND

A monthly cash disbursement report is provided to keep all members apprised of Watermaster
expenditures.

DISCUSSION

Total cash disbursements during the month of June 2011 were $6,489,070.07. The most significant
expenditures during the month were the City of Chino in the amount of $2,137,364.44 (check number
15152 dated June 6, 2011 for replenishment water purchase), Inland Empire Utilities Agency in the
amount of $1,639,791.78 (check number 15193 dated June 28, 2011 for MWD water purchase) and the
City of Upland in the amount of $1,176,916.43 (check number 15158 dated June 6, 2011 for
replenishment water purchase).

Actions:

August 11, 2011 Appropriative Pool — Approved Unanimously

August 11, 2011 Non-Agricultural Pool — Receive & File with no Approval
August 11, 2011 Agricultural Pool —

August 18, 2011 Advisory Committee —

August 25, 2011 Watermaster Board —

P11



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION

P12



640 | obed

00'590'C SDAS QET-[0Au00 HNEIPAH - 'B0LL SOAG CET~OUOD O)INEIPAH - LLESGS00T 11655007 LLOZ/LE/S0 g
00°590'2 SDAS gBT-[0U0D HINBPAH - $'BOLL SDAS GET-OIUOD NREIPAH - bH¥9500T Frva5007 LL0Z/LE/50 g
0059 SOAS [B87-[0U0 JINEIPAH - #'80LL $OAS (EBT-0HUOD DHRBIPAH - §¥FS001 G¥¥85007 LLOT/LEISO g
00°ZES' L $OAG (ET-|OAUOD N NEIPAH - #780LL SOAS dE-DIUDD DREIPAH - ZOE5S00T Z0ES5007 L L0Z/LE/SO g

Byq |, 1HaD eouawy Jo jued - ZLOL SAIHOLYHOSYT HMIN 8ELSE  LIOZ/Z0/90 AIBYD- g |Ng
00°052 WLCL
Soser uogesuadior Jeguely pieod - LLE9 Bunsay preog L1/9z/s Bl pieod 9z/9 | 1L0Z/9T/S0 na
oo'szh uopesuadwoy Jaquialy pieog - LLE9 Gugoaly sARASILILPY LL/EHSE By wiwpy €L/s LL0Z/EL/S0 i3]

Bx5 LuaD rallowy Jo yueg - 210k YINVd ‘ZLNY1 acist LLOZIE0/90 H}oayH- wud |iig
00°00§ IVLOL
oSz, uopesuadwion Jequialy pieod : LLEg Buneay preog LL/9z/g ByN pimog 92/ 1102/92/50 g
00’52 ucpesusdwon Jaqualy pleoed - LLED Bupes)y uopo L¢ ydeibeied |1/gZ/g B IOW LE d EE/S  LLDZ/EE/S0 ng
co'szl uopesuaduion 1equay precy - 11E9 Buneay sepwwon AosIApY LL/BLIS wwod MosiAPY 8L/G LLOZIBLIS0
co'szl uopesusdilod Jagualy pleod - LLE9 Bupasy eagensILIWPY £1/v0/5 BIN UlWPY b0/6  LLOZ/P0/S0

Byo juag eauawy jo yued - 210} €08 ‘NHNA LEVSL  LLOZiZT0/90 yoayo- juid Mg
00°06% WLOL
o uopesuadwog Jequialy plecq - L1£9 Sunasiy piecd 1 1/92/G By preog 9E/5  LLOZ/QISO e
00'52k uopesuadwog Jequialy piecq - L1E9 Bupesiy sAjeSILIWPY LL/EL/G BYN wwpy €1/ HLOZ/ELSO e

Byo | uen eopay JO YURY - Z10E WOL “ASIHONYH 9gLs1 LLOZ/20/90 3oy jud g n...l.u

o

00'GEL
oser uopesuadwo?) sequisy preog - 1LE9 Bupasiy aAIRNS|UTIWIPY |L/GL/S By wiwpy 61/ LLOZ/8HISO0

By 0 [ue) BOMaLLY JO HUEd « ZLOL NIAZLS ‘T SELSE LLOZIZ0/80 Ya8Yd- Juid g
£6'98 TWLOL
Teee sajjddng 820 JBWI0 - £71E09 LLBLIG-LL/BLIG J0) SoIeg YOVLPYEL0  LLOZ/LE/SO ina

By |,usn eolauly JO yued - ZLOL yOpLtYSI0 ALD3N™IA PEiSL 110212090 A28y - Juid [1ig
00'§LE IVLOL
00'sZl uogesuadwiog Jadwaly peog - LLEg Bupealy pieoq L1/9Z/s Biy pleog aZ/5  LE0Z/ST/S0 g
00'gzZL uogesuadwoy Jaquualy pieod - 1€ doysyiopn 190pNg LG LS dusianebpng gL/ LLOZ/6LISO it=]
00'gzZL uohesuadwos) saquws pieog - LLEY Bunesly SARRASIUIUDY LL/EL/T By wwpy £/ LLOZ/EL/S0 |

BY0 [ ueD eduawy Jo yueg - ZL0) Ld390d 'Ho0oMo8 ECLEL  LLOZ/TOMM0 HIBYD- Juig 11g
[ANIL wLl0L
Mmﬂll s9)1ddng 800 YD - L1209 LLOZ A2 - sRog JatepA 8010 €5Z0EELZO0  LLOT/LE/SD lirg

Big [, uaD eajtaury jo jued - 710} £5Z05ZTEZ00 HIALYM ONINdS NIVLNNOR OVIHMONEY ZELGL  LLOZ/ZHI90 Hoayn- Juid IHg
juncwy pled Junooay owap swenN wny 551 adA)

110z aunp

Td - Moday |_pueUl]

10 YJUOY 8y} 104 SJUSWBSINGSIQ YSBD
HILSYWHILYM NISYE ONIHD



610 7 afied

00°'5Z) vapesuadilog Jadquwaly pecq - |1LE9 Bunaspy eAleASILIWEY | L/ZL/S BUN LIWPY 2L LLOZ/ELSO ina
005zl uopesuadwog jeqwely piecd - LIES Bunasjy sepiWwWos 0K PY L /60/5 Gy wwod ocH Py 60/ LLOZ/E0/S0 lig
By [ Uo5 BOLBWY Jo yueg - Z10L Lig9 ARYAH4039 "TIANIH NIANVA erLsl  1L02/20/90 N22yD- juud liig
LELLE
(AAS—
beLle suT LOISIA B jBUad - £'Z81L09 winiweld 8ouBINsU} [BlUeq ZLG16LPZ00  LLOT/LE/SD its]
By LUaD BaLIaLY JO YURE - 2101 225161¥Z00 FUYOHLTVAH Q3LINN FA 011 LL.02/20/90 yaeyg- jud g
00'885'L
——
0069 saolaag Auelodwel - /109 L L0Z/5 1/ BUlbUT Y39 £20L100000400AL  1L0Z/L€/50
00'¥Ze seopuag Aelodws ), - 2109 L 10z/zZz/s Bulpuz HaapA ¥50LL00000L00AL  110Z/1E/S0 e
By L,usD eapawy jo jued - Z10L £109 dNOYS NOLAMYT IHL 9rLS)k  bLOZ/TO/90 }I8YD- pud ig
LOBLL
LOGLL souRInsu dwoD SJNLIOM - ERL0I L E-GE65L0L - wnjwald dwoD SISHIoA L1-6E6519L  L10Z/LE/S0 Ina
Byp |, uen eouswy jo jued - Z10} LL-5E55191 AQNNd IDNYENSNI NOLLYSNIJINOD F1VLS SPESL  LLOZ/Z0/90 %9340~ ud (g
ro'52l .
ro'sel se|jddng ey 18RO - £°1E09 saj|ddns pie jsiy ‘sesenbs Bujunow Jauo) 1908658108 LLOZ/FPLIGO g
ByD J,usD oMWY 4O HUBY - TLOL 2908658108 DY INVYAQY SSINISNG $31dV1S yPISL  LL0Z/Z0/90 }99Y0- Jwid g
0T'205
0Z'2Z0% syeusg surgesia g o) - L6109 6000-8880¥9-0C # Aoljod 09AY puB aji] 600088805900  LLOZ/LE/SO 2|
By |,usD eonawY J0 yued - ZL0L B0O0-88200-00 # Adl[od ‘00 IDONVENSNI QHYANYLS EPLGL  L1LOZ/Z0/90 Aoy~ Juid Iig
0058
00°'g8 asuBuAUE B Hedey Suiping - ¥209 sa0jnIes Bng pue jgad 8PLEYLO  LLOZ/LE/SO 10
B39 [usD BOSLWIY JO HUEE - Z10L ariErLo SIDIAMIS LEAd QY grLSE  LLOZ/20/90 Hoe4D- Juid (19
£L0E
£L0Z |eiouas - ebelsod - 2409 jenoN Jsyuuer oy siuawdiys xa pay L5880L00060B0008  LLOZ/LE/G0 ne
BY9 |,uen ealawWy Jo yued - £10L 1988910006060008 MIAMO ASYHOUN WESE  LLOZ/T0/90 A28y~ Jud Ing
00667
00'5L6'F unjeg dle) atkid Mied - L2509 110Z Ae - solilag 1| LS¥  LLOZ/LE/50 g
fx9 | wen eoliswy Jo yued « ZL0L 1St "ONI'SNOILNIOS H3LNdINOD 30V 1d MYvd OvLSE  LLOZ/Z0/90 32340 jud (g
00°2LE LL
00°09€E'Z SOAG gET-{0AU0D SINBIPAH - 1801 $OAS GBT-0IUCD DINBIRAH - L 284600 LIEPSO0T  LLOZ/LEISO na
00549 SOAG (ET-J0AU0D AUNBIPAH « #8012 SIAG gET-{0RUCD NBIPAH - DOESS00T D0ESS00T L LOZ/LE/GO e
D0°590'E S0AG (RT-jCNU0D SliNRIPAH - '80% L SOAG gBT-ORUCD DlNeIpA - LOEGS00T LOESS00T  LIOZ/LE/SO it}
unowy pled NoIdYy o3 aweN wnN ajeg adAy

19 - Loday |epueudld

110z sung
10 YIUOR 3yl 104 SJUSLISsINgSsIq Ysed
YALSYINYALYM NISYd ONIHD

IVLOL

WVIOL

TVLOL

V101

WIS
ass

W01

TYLCL

TYLOL

WLOL



6 4o ¢ abeq

Mm..lmlwlw| sang diyslaquwa - L1119 olzUneAl "G - eyecyipen Jesulbul Iy mausy L10Z/1E/S0 g
Byy | usg payawy jo ued - 2101 £9019 SUIVAJY HANNSNOD 40 LdIAQ - VI 40 TLVLS L5191 LLOZ/90190 H204D- 1ud (1ig

§4Z6E'Y0S Tviol
Mm...m-a Jeyepn Juswysiualday - 110§ Jarepn JuaWYsIUs(deY 110t AL LLOZ/L0re0 g
B30 |,usg eauawy Jo yued - Z101 ANVAWOD HALYM HIAI YNV VINVS 11511 LEDZ/90/90 Jo8YD-Jud ing

6581252 VL0l
.mm.mvﬂl] sy usLiysuRidey - [LOG isepn uRlIYSIUSdEY L1-01 Ad L 10T/10/90 [HE=
Byn L usn esually 10 yueg - ZLOL «d0 ALID ‘OIIVLINO 9518} 1 L0Z/90/90 HIBYD~ qwd g

WLOL
ByD [, U9 BIBWY J0 jueq - Z10} L88100008L ‘AIOA AONIDY SIILELLN THISNT TNYINI PSLGL £102/90/90 Faayd- g g

85°759'0v8 V101
% J2yepa Juowysiue|day - LLOg Jsjepn uewysiualday LL-0L Ad L1L0Z/ 10790 ng
Bya L uamn eouawy jo xueg . 7101 YNOWOd 40 ALID E5LS5L L E0Z/90/90 ¥aeyd-yud g

yrpoe’iEL'E IVLOL
ﬂa Jejeps Juswiysiuaidey - 110§ Japepn JusluysIuaiday L1-01 Ad LLOE/ LoIS0 lidz}
B9 |uaD espawy Jo jueg - 2101 1d30 ASNVNI - 40 ALID ‘ONIHD F4:33:17 L1L0T/90/90 Hoayo- nug |iig

L

-

00°00% ViRt
0o°SeL uojesusdwon laqua pleog - LLES Buneep piecd i 1/92/5 81N preog sz/§ }-0Z/98/50 g
00'sel uonesusdwo?) Jaquie preogd - Lie9 Sunespy uonop e Ydelfeded L1/Eg/S uofoly L€ o £2/5 L102/E2/50 g
0052k uonesuedwo?) Jsquisiy preog - L1ES Bunes|y sapwwo) 90H PY LL/60/G WWed 20H PY 60/5 +10Z/60/50 e
oo'sgl uohesuadwod Jaqusiy pleog - LLEY Bunaap aAnBNSILIWDY LLFO/S Byn uIwipY b1/ L1L0Z/0/50 ne
Byn |,uas) 2olowYy JO queg - ZLO) HLINNIN 'SITIM Lg19) LL0Z/Z0/90 HIAYD- jud |[ig

£6'29 TYLQL
-m.m..mlml suj uoisiA g [BlUad] - 2'28109 110Z eunp - WNiWald 8UBINSY| UOISIA 100068210100 L LOZ/LE/50 g
Bx0 |,us BapsuIy 10 Hued - ZLOL LOGO-682LOL-00 NYT1d FOIAHTS NOISIA 0531SL £102/20/90 }98yo- jwd g

BL'L18 WLQL,
:w.‘nm.ﬂ_ suoydeajel. - ZZ09 €0L26.0689) 1615210 €01Z8L09691LELSELD LLog/le/so g
ag'esl asuadxg JaYO-¥Id - 50FL 805FLLLESLELLBGELO 805¥1212512LL85Z10 L 40E/1E/50 i3]
63D |,us9 e3IWY Jo Jueg - ZL0L NOZIHIA 147 1 L1L0Z/Z090 ¥094D~ Jud (18

00008 TVY10L
M:mdewl uonesuadloy Jaqualy pieog - LLee Bunesiy pieog | 1/92/S BN preed 9z/§ L108/92/50 i
00'52) uchesuedwoy iequely preoq - LLEg Supeayy vogop ¢ ydeiBeled |1/£Z/g Bun 1oW LE o €2/ L10g/eers0 g

junowy pled LNy owapy ETH RENN ajeq adA]

19 - Hoday |epueul

1102 sunp

10 3Uo Y] Jod sjusluasingsiq ysen
YALSYINHILYA NiSYE ONIHD



640 p abed

Bun 1,uss oLy J0 yued - Z10L 0092504102 XAHOAVd 29315F £3.02/L0/90 o8y Q- Juid HIg
00°'96E YLOL
0006 saoiales Anoes - 9209 LL/LE/8-1 L7107 ol Bupojuow aul4 8zeloe  LLOET/LC/80 g

B0 L,UeD espawy Jo Jueg - ZLO) B82¢L0E INHYTY QY TIN 99191 LEDZIL0/90 J90YD- Iud g
00°558 IYLOL
00'558 BupnsuoD SUSGIAA - £'2508 L1102 ABW - S8DIMIBS S)ISTOAA zeT L LOZ/LEISO it}

By0 |,uagy eoauy 10 yued - ZLOL x4 NOLSNHO SZWvr S9L51 LLOZI20/90 yaaun- Jud ing
LE'GRE WLOL
1£'68¢T salddng eaC PO - L1809 soy|ddns Bupeaw pue 20Hc snoaue(aasiy /20001 60ELE£004L 1 L0Z/1E/50 na

B30 |, ua9 eouIWY JO Hueg - ZLGL ¥r22-0001-50£.-€00L SNOLLNTOS SSANISNG 288H POLSL LLOZILO/90 ¥38Yo-Jud g
eg7lzl'e TYLl0ol
Z8°879 a4 ourusiuel B obesn YooY . Z'EF0D supucLy 7 - saidon Jojog oy abesn
a9'+8z a4 sourusue B abesn uodly - Z'EP09 seidoy) woe|g J0) abesn)
L¥¥18'T @84 8seaT YoM - L'EVOD S99 85BST - 92I0ALj L¥CL260L L10Z/LE/50

By o [,ua9 eaptaury jo yueq - 7104 LP0LLEDL ‘dHOD DNISYAT YOIHANY LvILD 1 2:18 LLOZIL0M0 A8y~ Jwd Ing
¥4'6¢ ) TYLOL
P58E salddng-{ona HMpID - 9F0LL 2de; Bunnseaw 6E8589E556 L LOZ/90/80 lng “.nru

By | uas eanawy jo jueg - 210 6EQSBSZSEE HIADNITHD F4:38: 13 LL0Z/L0190 qoays-udiile o
95'8v2'6 YLlOL
95°8¥2'6 dinb3y ded-Rs NAM-IPAST IMPID - LP0LL L6LEL Lslel LLOZILE/GO

By [uaD eol1awny JO Jueg - Zi0L LELEL SIDIAYIS TYDINHIALOID B:18:33 110T120/90 138Uy~ JWd [ng
99'58¢'L TYLOL
9g°g8e'l alqeded SWNODOY - 000Z L 1/8Z/S0-| 1/§1/G0 Joj suononpaq asfeiduig 267 L3FHLSILID 1 LOZ/8Z/50 [euinop elauss

B4 | ueD eduaWY Jo Nueg - ZLO) 1 1182/90-11{S /S0 10} STKEL Pue j|0JAed 13FyuLsiLo 09151 L LOZIL0/90 HaayD- g g
96'851'S TYLlOL
96°651'S sosuadxy JAYIO dWE0 - 6068 2881000081 2881000081 L LOZ/LE/SO g

By |,U9D BINWY JO quRg - ZLOL 2881000084 AJNIDY S3ILMLLA TIdING ANVINI 65151 L 102190790 $OSUD- kel [HE
£Y9LE'9lLL TYLOL
eroLe'all’) JBJEAN JuBLUysILaIdaY - 10§ Jsjepn Juswysiiaiday LL-0b Ad LLOZ/L0/B0 g

By 1,ua8) BOLBLUY JO YUBEH - ZLOL 40 ALID ‘aNYIdN BSLSE 1.1-02/90/90 HIBYD- i [iE
00°5Z1 TYLOL

ROy owap QUICN wnp aeq adf],

junowy pegd

14d - 1Moday |epueuld

LEL0ZT Bunyp

30 YIUO By 404 SHUIWISINGS] YSED
HIALSYIHILYM NISYd ONIHD



6Jo g abed

0T 19E'T i0L
0T L9e'z jeuyoa] Jendwe) paiddy - 2'2509 11.0Z Ae - seopdeg aseqeieq gLog 1102/1€/50
By5 | uag eouatluy jo yued - TLOL [44+r4 SADOTONHITL ¥ALNdNCD d3AMddY j215:2% LL0ZIV 190 Fa8yp- Juid M8
Py GOT'ZE Iv10l
£6'F56'S B30 d/d BoUaUIY JO YUeq « #1101 1141 1/90-LL/BZ/S0 10§ SHORYD HolAed
£o'/18'81 843 |usD eollaWy jo 3ueg - 2101 L1/41/90-1 /6250 o} sHsode( joalg
28215, B30 |ueD eousily o yuegd - ZL0L L 1/LL/90-1L/62/50 Jo) saxe] Jjolded
ByD Luag eallawy Jo Yqueg - 2101 LLILL/90- L LI6Z/G0 10} saxE L pue [jolhed LU L/90-LLIBZIS0 104 Saxe ) pue jjoifeq LLOZ/LLIS0 LLOZ/LLI90 [eusnor [elsuss
9921 Y101
882kl soueuslely ¥ Neday Bulpng - vZoo 1 10Z =sunr Joj solnlag |esodsiq 6¥RELT T30 11L02/90/90 ng
By | Ue5 eousWY JO yued - ZL0L 6¥8ELZ TH80 FIAYIS TYSOdSIa NOMNA ¢LLS1 LL0Z/L0/90 ¥asyg- yud g
88°8¢ TIVLOL
Bg'8Z SUj UOISIA P [€ILag - 2728109 LLOZ AInp - Wniwalg ssueinsu) lepiag £8rz00 L LOE/90/90 g
By [,UD5) EDUBWY JO YuRyg - Z10} £8¥2Z00 ONI ‘STDIAYTIS TYLNIA NY¥31SIM TLVGL L302/L0/90 HIYD- Jwid |ild
o0'veg TYLOL
ioc.vwm - sag)neg Alelodwa] . 2100 LLog/eZrg BuIpua Yoaan Z80L1L0000L00AL Liogresso lig ~
—
Byo juag eaproury jJo jued - 2101 Liog dNOWD NOLMYT FHL | 7450 LE0Z/L0/90 yIayp- jwd g o
162 IWLOL
1624 sU| ucisip g [elusd - 228109 1 10Z 2uUnp - winjuisld sduednsi] [ejuag cléesie L L0Z/00/80 el
By |, ues eaMowy Jo jueq - Z10) 24 %: FAS NOISIA ? TVLNIA QuvYNDIAVS 0LL5L LLO2IL0M90 Ho9Yo- Juid Iitd
00'06L°E IWIOL
oo'see sepndwia-rsin aull-u| - 52012 9eel
00'0r0°e 152l @ qued-isje aUl-ul - 8°20LL steh o 4 LLoe/lense
00'sL SIAG I0BJUOD-IBAA @ARREBU| + E0LL 0s5¥
o00sY DA PERUOD-END AMPID - ¥'ECLL 051t 051y LLOZ/1E/S0 g
By e BoLawWy JO Jued - ZLOL MOFHD dNd 69151 1L0T/40/90 e d- g [HE
£0°b60°L IVLOL
£0'1L60'2 a|geded sJUN0IDY - 0OOT L L-8Z/50-) L/GL/S0 J0) Juswhed SuIHIED WALSAS LNINIHLLTH SITAOTdWI D2TEnd L 102/8T/50 |[eulnor [eleusd
B9 |uen edawy Jo yuey - ZLOL EBYE#A0ABD WILSAS LNIWITHILIY .SITAOTAIWI o178Nd 8915L LLOTILO/90 }oayo- jud |1tg
L2'GLE VLol
L2GLE saolaiag lolhed - 2109 1 10T Ae - seoiuag (jolfed 0092501 L02 L LOZ/LE/50 k|
unowy pied unoasoy owap aeN wny |Peq adAyL

14 - Loday |elpueul

LLOZ sunp
10 YJUO[ BY L J04 SJUBLUSSINGS|] YSED
MIALSYINNELYM NISYE ONIHD



5 J0 g abied

o Juay predsid - ZZ¥| 110Z 'L Ainp ang asea LLOTS 190

By | en eopely jo yued - 10 1402 ‘L Ainp eng asea LOLSIQ ¥ILYM ATTIVA YONOWYIND LBLSE  VLOZILW90 AFYQ- Wd Ing
00521 WLOL
5ze Igndwe-1o)uoi poid - 7 L0LL ooyiezes
0529 OAG JaIndWoD-[BNT) AMPID - LE0LL oorilzeos 00F1i2eos L10Z/LE/S0 g

Byo LUSS eaHBLIY JO YUEBE - ZLOb aovLzZO8 SNOILNTOS NOILYINHOINI 912073800 08451 L1OZILLISO Hoayo- jud {ig
6L'122'89 WLOL
Trvsoey uogoly L& ydeuBered - 62069 ucncly Lg ydeiBered - ygiLiy yelibt  LL0T/LE/S0
50'8b6'L suonenoBian Jayesaq - £8°L069 suonenobioN Jeyesag - £2L Ly SZhiby  LLOZ/LE/S0
0z'£9¢ ol Hodily ouyD - Z€°L069 awn|d Hodiy ouYD - ZZL Ly ZZhlPy  LLOZ/LE/SO ma
SLGLP'E IO Apawiod-suinig plegIyoly 'S - 1.8°L069 VIO AHaliog-awin|d PIRGIDYY 'S - LZLLYY LZblby  LLOZ/LESD g
58'88L°2 SjubIY Jalepn 194l BUY BIUBS - $£° 069 I BIM JBIBAA JBATY BUY BIUES - 0ZLLFF 0ZLiby  LLOZ/LEISO ing
0L'616'L suoyepobaN Js)esad - £€°L069 suojjziobaN JeNesaq - 6L 1LY
obLve'LL [gsunog 8087 NAA - £ 2069 fesunod [e6s7 WM - 6LLLFY Glilby  ELOZT/LE/SC

By g |, uen eojiswy Jo ued - ZTLOL MOTHHOS ¥IAGHYL LLVAH NIZLSNMONE BLLEL  LLOBILLIOO A28 Jid (g
£L'86¢ T7LOL
awllll sousugjuey Jendwen - 1509 doddng 1eajuysa ] Josolon
£L'6E saliddng 2040 130 - 27 1e0D aping) sewoly | FPE B0 00 OKX 1102/ €/50 g w0

B39 |,ueg esjiawiy Jo yued - ZLOL < RPEEN-NXNN-XXNX YOIHANY 40 MNVE 21181 LLOZILL0 398y 0- Jud 1i1g N
ye0ve IYLOL
ey s|euag sul'desid g o) - L6109 LLOZ aunp
Z9°ZZL aL1% a3avd ‘e pedaid - 60¥L 1102 Ainp - uatukedalg 86100  LL0EMFL/0

B39 ,ueD esnswy Josjueg - ZL0L 86100 NOILYHOJHOD SIDIAYIS YAMOY LILSL  LLOZILLI90 oy~ Juid flid
L5'E0L IVLOL
..Mmm.m.wl soddng 8ol feUl0 « L1800 sfieyg sojnieg

B30 LUeD eoewy Jo yued - 1oL afizeyp aojuag abreyp sainag 1LL0Z/51/90 308y
ag'vle's 19101
Scesot sajeloossy 9 g YuBld . 1'L0P8 saoinlag [eBa jood By - 08541
81'8¥8'L §00M8S [BoIUyYDa) g [eBe By - Z9be saojaleg efa jood By - 05521 05564} LLOZ/LE/SD ]

G3yD |,USD BOLOWY O Yued - ZL0) 098L) ¥IATIIH % QIFy 9LLSL  LLOZ/PLI90 yaaYyo- Jud (I'g
90°Z56'L WLOL
SoTeer alemyjog 1oindwos - $509 2IBMHOS 1ROOIY BOpY LESLE  LLOZ/L0/90 i3]

B0 L.USD BILSWY 40 yURg - 710} LESLE MHOMLIN HILNDNOD SLLSL  LLOZIPLI90 Y238y D Wi g
Junoury pied junoosoy Qs SUEN wnn ajeq adAy

LEDZ sunp

19 - 1oday |elaueuly

10 YIUO 8y 104 SJUSWISINGSI] YseD
YALSYIHALYA NISYE ONIHD



6o £ afiegd

SELEP'S
Toers aouzInsU] [OIPeN - 1'Z8LCY LL0Z AINP - SWNIWSIY BTSN VPil  LL0Z/ZZI00
ByD |,ueD eouatly jo jued - ZLOL Wik §H3adIvO 88151 L10Z/BZ/90 FoayD- Jud (g
8082 V101
ez souBUaUIE) B Slieday BPIYaA - 2410 sifedal yony pjay b5 LLDE/ET/0 g
By ,uaD BIMSWY JO ULy - TLO0L L5L-€ JULERY 18151 LLOZI8e190 Jaays-jud g
65°19.4°5F Wiol
m.lmmmm.m.l..l B30 w/d BolsWY Jodued - vLOL LL/ST/90-1 H/TLIS0 104 SHOBUD floiAed
96'ELL'0E B39 ¥/d BOUS WY Jo uRd - 10} L L/5Z/90-1 1121190 1o} sisadaq jo=uig
18'£89'6 B3O Y/d eollsly joyueg - ¥LOI L1/GZ/90- L L/ZLiG0 10} saxey |jolked
By0 |,ueD evlslly Jo yueg - ZLOL L1ISZ/90-LL/ZL/90 10) SeXe] pue [jofed LE/92/90-1 LT 1190 10) SBXE pue foiled LLozige!a0 LLOZ/g2/90 [ewInor [eaoles
8y 0Sk TYLO0L
M%I suoydojal - ZZog solaIas Alyuow 681.01£860 LLOTIFLI90 ng
635 |,us9 eaUBWY JO Jueg - ZLOL BBLLOEESED SSITIHIM NOZIHIA 98151 LL0ZILL/80 o8y~ Jwd liig
09°'625'}
umm.....m.ﬂlll ssusdx3 1@Wel; - £509 6229600 6Z¥Z9600 LioZ/lerso
B0 Lus9 eopouly Jo jueg - Z10} 62¥Z9600 SSANISNE NOZIWAA §8L9L LLOZ/LLI90 yosug-juding OF
o
0028 WI0oL
all seojnleg Aelodwal - 2109 L LOZ/50/9 Butpuz yaapn FELZLOOO0OL0DAL L 1L0T/50/80 nd
B9 |,uss BoMaLIY Jo Yued : Z101 L1309 dIOYUS NOLMYT ZHL 8151 LLOZILLI90 Ha8Yg- jwd Iitg
19'9EL RiATelk
QIII [Bolpaly @a1ysy - ¥'28109 [EDIPSIN 8.May L LOE/DED
B9 Luag eoudwy Jo yueg - 7101 TAYYIN VINVLES £8191  110%/L1190 #38YD- Ny Mg
80'z/8°L WLOL
a_‘l..l:l isal @ qed-een sul-u| - g2l l [d:rAd
73851 Jgghdwod-1say eull-u| - SZ01L [4:rad zecy LH0Z/20/90
00’08t isel @ qied-lele ull-y - 8'¢o __h [R:rAd
$5°851 Jgsndwed-1elely sulF - 52044 [3:144 1 8EY I LOT/ED/90
00522 senduiog-1ee & - §20LL gz
00°056 sel g qlied-1e1epy @ IR: R4 ) ¥ gzl 08ey LLOg/20/e0 d
637 |,U8D BISWY J0 queg - ZLOL MI3HD dind 2815k L302/L4790 ¥rayd- Jud ljig
00FP8's IvlOL
junowy pred junoaoy oway sweN wny ateq] adAL
L10Z aunp

19 - Hoday |epueul

10 uoyy YL 104 SJUBWASINGSI] YseD
HIALSYWHILYAL NISYE ONIHD



6o g obed

v €08

$Z°€0S sujauag sul'qesiq g )7 - L6L09 swnjwald eouelnsu| Agesig/a] 6000-2880%9 Lioz/ze/o0
By9 |,us9 ealswWy JO yued - ZL0L 6000-8880%9-00 # Aaljod ‘09 IONVHNSNI QYYANYLS Lelsl 110Z/82/90 %39Y9-Jwd [ig

z0'860'L

Z0'860'2 2|qefEd SIUNODOY + DOOZ LL/LL/90-L1/62/50 Jo) SYadieD  IWILSAS LNIWIHILIH ,SIFAO0TJNI 2118nd L1LOZ/11/90 L1L02/1 1190 [eUINOp [BloUSS)
Byo |,ueD eaudury o Yueg - ZL0L £6vE# Jofed  IWILSAS LNIWIMILIY .SIIAOTING O17ENd 96151 LL0ZI82E/90 yo8yo- pud g

05292

Lyl sasuadx3y Buesyy - Zi¢8 52/§ Uo ||ea epuaby

G’ sBunaaly NGO - 1’6069 60/G U0 ||e0 Jejem Juswiysiuajday

0£'59 saljddng-[eht) NMpIS - 9'¢0LL 50/s Uo [[ea swnid plegiyaly Wnog

£6'09L asusdx3 Bunesy - Z168 5/ lleo epuabe ‘60/6 L2/ slied Le ydeibeled

Rt suoydsjal - 2209 88} Alyiuop 82061920 1 LOZ/LEISO g
B39 [usD elISWY JO YuEg - ZLOL 8L06L9.0 SITIAYIS TVEOTD THIINIT ™ S6LSL L LOZ/82I90 yoayg- jud (119

08°'LS

08°LS souelnsy| eafojdw YO - #6109 1 LOZ sunp Z08LLL L 10E/22/90 g
B9 L.uen eouswy Jo yueg « ZL0L 208LLL *ONI ‘SADIAYIES YDA divd-THd 6151 LL0Z/82/90 yoeyn-jud |ig

8L16L'6E5'}

08'06E'6E5'L Jeyepn Juawysiuaiday - LLOG #£820006

86°00% aneg o ssaulpead YNl - 95¥8 ¥£80008 ¥£8.0008 LL0Z/22/90 na
ByD LLu99 ealewWy jo jueg - ZLOL ¥£820008 ADNIOY SAILITLLA THILINT ANVINI £6L5L 1102/32/90 }93yD-Jwd Mg

L1652

LL'6Se mmu_mn__._mnﬁzg JMpID - 9°E0LL |cuoo Qlel) 10} S2UCD aAlloajjal aseyaing LLOZIEZIB0 mng
By |,u@D eouawy JO Yuey - Z10L 09 AL3AVYS AVMHSIH <615t LLoZ/ge/90 29yD-jud g

C0'#95

00'%95 atemprey Jeindwod - §509 Jledal xaHOA WooAjod Joj Buiddiys pue solalag 21528 LLOZ/LEISO g
B9 |,uaD eoMawy J0 jueg - Z10L L1929 INOD WILNISIHd Tva0T1D 1615 LLOZ/82/90 ¥oayd- jud |Iig

0000k

0000} souBUBUIEl g SIEdSY SOIYSA - LL19 30N} ¢ Ysem L Lozfeeian g
By U9 eauawy joyued - Z10L ONITIYLIA oLNY 094 06LgL LL0Z/82/90 A99YD- Juid g

79502

Z8'950' algeded SUNoAdY - 000Z L L/L1/90-} 1/62/50 Jof suononpeq sakoldwig L6¢ 1334LSILID LLOZ/LLI90 LLOZfL1/90 [BUINOP [BlaUSD)
B9 | ueg eopawy jo yued - ZL0L LLiLLI90-LL/6T/S0 104 SOXE] puE |loifed 1334181119 68151 1102/82/90 y38yD- Juid (g

Junouny pied junosoy oway aweN wnN aleq adAL

16 - Woday |epueury

LLoZ sunp
30 Yjuoy| 8yl 104 SIUlWISINGSIa YseD
HIALSYINYILYM NISYE ONIHOD

WLlCL

TY.LOL

IvLOL

iAler]
(o]

IVLOL

VLol

IWLOL

Tv.LlOL



6 Jo g abeg

L0°0L0'69F'9 isjusuasIngsIq [e30L
£0°CLE') iknﬂ_u
097202 By |uap espawy jo ueq - ZLol 1 LOZ sunp - suq2q Panag sUop ebepy o
¥ 668 ByD e Balswy Jo qued - Z10) L10Z aunf = s}gaq oang sxyop, abep
¥2'688 ByD Luep ealsly Jo yued - ZLoL 110Z 8UNr - 51920 19200 SXIop 2Bep
5.'98 B0 [ ueD eoliawly Jo YULBE - ZLGE 1102 aunr - s192Q 1034Q SHI0M 2B

Byg | uag eoMaWY O YHEd - ZLO0L L10Z aunp - spgag 1930 sHEonm #Bem LL0Z Bunr - spgac Joa0q sytonn abem LL0Z/0S/90  LLOZIOT/0 [euInop [B18USE)
e RLLLL TLOL
LEPES L) foilod Byd sna-su; pledald - G0bL ZLozZ ‘sz aunr - LLog 'L A
S5°EFE aBesoed 8oURINSY; SSAUSNY - S80S LLOZ '0g euny = L10Z ‘gz eunr 62k  LLOZ/BZ/90

By D Luos BOMSWY JO yuegq - Z10L 62y §3LVID0SSY ¥ ILLVIT 00Z5}  110Z/62/90 284D~ Jd [IF
00°%Z8 WLOL
00°vZe ssolueg Alelodwea] - 2108 L Lo2/2 /g Bupul yespn 2€12100000£0ADI L L0Z/Z2T/90

By 7 [u95) BOLIBWIY JO HUEE - ZL0) 2109 dfOHD NOLMYT FHL 6615}  110T/BE/90 ADBY D= Juig] |G
19°86/ TYLOL
19984 aoueInsU] dwiod sMI0A - £8108 wniwaig dwaoy s1axiopp LL-GEGSLOL LLOZ/EEI90 ing

By g |ua9) eollsWy Jo yuegq - ZLOL AAS:1:3: 1181 dNnd HONYUASNI NOLLYSNIJWOD 31V1S 26151 LLOZ/82/90 ¥o8UD- Juid g
unowy pred NO2DY owapy aweN winpy aeq adA]

110z aunp
g 10 QIUOM] YL 104 SILSLasIngsIq Ysen
T4 - 30day [eldUBUL HIALSYWNILYAM NISYE ONIHD



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION

P22



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 809.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.chwm.org

DES] ALVAREZ, PE

Chief Executive Officer
STAFF REPORT
DATE: August 18, 2011
TO: Advisory Committee Members

SUBJECT: VISA Check Detail Report — Financial Report B2

SUMMARY
Issue — Record of VISA credit card payment disbursed for the month of June 2011.

Recommendation — Staff recommends the VISA Check Detail Report for June 2011 be received
and filed as presented.

Fiscal Impact — Funds disbursed were included in the FY 2010-2011 Watermaster Budget.

BACKGROUND
A monthly VISA Check Detail report is provided to keep all members apprised of Watermaster
expenditures charged against the CEO and/or CFQ's Bank of America VISA card.

DISCUSSION

Total cash disbursement during the month of June 2011 was $298.73. The monthly charges for June
2011 were for routine and customary expenditures and properly documented with receipts.

Actions:

August 11, 2011 Appropriative Pool — Approved Unanimously

August 11, 2011 Non-Agricultural Pool — Receive & File with no Approval
August 11, 2011 Agricultural Pool —

August 18, 2011 Advisory Committee —

August 25, 2011 Watermaster Board —

P23



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION

P24



1 jo | abed

£L'862
00'85¢
EL'8E

Junowy pied

ISIUSWSSINGSIO eI0 L
sourUBlUEl JeIndwo) - 1508
sayddng asiQ WD - 21809

Byo Luen ealswy Jo yueg - ZLOL

JUN029Y

Hoddng {eaiuyra] Josoo
BpING SeLoy

LPEB=3O0XX 20000 XXX YIRFWY 40 MNvd

otaly

LLOZHEISD LFEE- XXX XXX XKKKX

L102/L1/90

BLiG)

g
38y~ juid g

79 - Hodsy |epueulg

DWEN

L10¢ sunp
Hoday (1839 094D VSIA
HALSVINHALYM NISYE ONIHO

ayeq

wnp

adf)

P25

I¥i0L



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION

P26



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bemardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.chwm.org

DESI ALVAREZ, PE

Chief Executive Officer
STAFF REPORT
DATE: August 18, 2011
TO: Advisory Commiitee Members

SUBJECT: Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Working Capital for
the Period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011 - Financial Report B3

SUMMARY

Issue — Record of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Working Capital for the Pericd July 1,
2010 through June 30, 2011.

Recommendation — Staff recommends the Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and
Changes in Working Capital for the Period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011 be received and
filed as presented.

Fiscal Impact — Funds disbursed were included in the FY 2010-2011 Watermaster Budget.

BACKGROUND

A Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Working Capital for the period July 1,
2010 through June 30, 2011 is provided to keep all members apprised of the FY 2010/2011 cumulative
Watermaster revenues, expenditures and changes in working capital for the period listed.

DISCUSSION

The Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Working Capital has been created from
various financial reporis and statements created from QuickBooks Enterprise Solutions 9.0, the
Watermaster accounting system. The Combining Schedule provided balances to the supporting
documentation in the Watermaster accounting system as presented.

Actions:

August 11, 2011 Appropriative Pool — Approved Unanimously

August 11, 2011 Non-Agricultural Pool — Receive & File with no Approval
August 11, 2011 Agricultural Pool —

August 18, 2011 Advisory Committee —

August 25, 2011 Watermaster Board —

P27



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION

P28



LLOZUNM-QLOZInr{SPE | LOZAURF €8 9RPEYIS BUIGISNINOSMSHAY 00 N0 JuIUGIASe|1] (euIe| ABIodiue | \SMopiANOS0Io| Ay EIS Tia1RaddyiNANED QUIOINS\SISSTID
‘Jualiaalby soBad Ayl Ul 0] paalfie se Jajsuell soueleq pund,

| Jo 1 obed 190010 [eUBLL fBIUD Newsar g ydesor Ag pesedaig
%000°001 %ELYE %ZERLT %G0L'89
GLEGBY'FLL LLGA06E 99.°¥G8°1E LT EEL 8L
LE6°198'L  _1E6°198°L 0EY 1528951 0850 1. 282 108°6 ¥ 6YB'EEG 0
S9E'RLP'S 100"} LGZ 851 LBG'6YE" | 269'952 £8P CLY 900'612'9
{zeec9) {ig¥'oL9) (12€) - (Li'ese’t) 680°02 ¥Z8'C EYEVLL {(Zeg¥'ol9)
0 (LI¥'6G2'L) - - (LI¥'B6GE' L) - - -
0 (181'586') (1817596F)
0 (g29'0G6.'E) (829'062'¢}
0 (9ev'scz'e) {9e¥'e52'2)
0 829'08.°¢ 829'054°C
0 904'¥7 ) 90L'%|
0 el o oA 9B vPE'Z
0 $00'729'¢ ¥00'229'E
(£ge'eo) P86 ZvL {L..8) - - £20'97 ¥ZE'T £h6'pLL
£ZS'PAR'9  GLL'ELG'S SIE - - gze'gle - ¥89'EBF'S
- (z¥e'16a)) AN
- 0B.'99¢ 06,7998
- 04G'¥51 858'652' | ISL'PLLE 6.9'925'F
- GS8'LL BEG'GrL 81/'65¢ zhi'ces
{69r'568'%) (Z1i'ezs)
£Z8'v8'0  GLL'ELE'S S/E - - £0B'GFL LGL'GRL 8L2°LS 597'568'Y Org'eeg
006'0 ) -
GlE GE G/g
$96'002 06.'99¢ 064'998
6L9°ZLL'E  88.°LOB'T 98/'L06'Z
cas'oge’'l  g68'9Z9') Z68'9Z9°|
9G8'viv LEF'ERE £06'sHL 1L62'58) AR
£.0'€L ZeL's9 ZeL'89
9¥SZLS 801°595 901695
DBY' LES'D  660'059'9 ¥ - - LLF'PPE ¥ZE'T 9Z9'861'0 - 624'0L1
m -
Q -
DL¥'eFL 000"k L1 000'LLL
0LO'GLL 0E6'9E ¥ At ¥Ze'e Lya'ee (212)
0:0'805'9%  691'805'9 060°ehe BL0°GOL'G
LL0Z-010T SIVIOL SanNnd SONNA [ INTWHSINT 143 00d 700d 100d INIWIASYNYA | NOILYHLSININGY
13900 aNvdD NOII¥ONQ3a] Ze2as HILYMANNSHD SY-NON 0OY FAILYIHAOHddY NISYd HAISYIWHALYM
SNOILYHIAO YILVAONNOED | SL93rodd 1vIDAdS ¥ NOLLVHLSININGY T00d | WNWLLDO

£¢ - Hodey |eouBUlY

1102 ‘0€ ANNT HONOQEH.L 01L0Z *F ATNM A0ISd IHL HOA
TYLIAYD ONIFEOM NI STONYHD ANY SISNIAXT FNNIATY J0 I1NAIHOS ONINIGWOD
HILSYINETLYM NISYH ONIHD

sabejuasiag uononpeid 060
ucnONpol SiqeSSassy (L/60

padad 1O pu3z ‘[enden Buppopn
0L0zZ ‘I AInr ‘leadeD Buptiops

sonasey (Wols)/0] sisjsuel] JoN

awoou} JagoO BN
USWILSIUSIATY Jalempunols
$38EYDIN JAIEA CAVN
S3SBU0IN 181BAA palels By-uon
SASEUTIN JAIBAA CIMUA
STUBARY 1Sa1a)U|
saseyaind 181epn palols By-uon
SIUDILSSESSY Jajean JusWysiusiday
{esuadxg)awosuy Jayl0

auWI0oU; aARlISIUILIPY JON
sasusdx3 18101

Saisuel) asuadxg [einynauby
[00d ddy 0} 29IA13S J93¢] 2JL00| gy
slotd 01 sasusdxz W90 19N 81E0|pa]
$j00d C, Sesuadxdy uLupy 19N sje0)f-
sasuadxy JNEQ/eMIBASILILIPY 19N

S9SUSEXT JINAG/AAIRISILILPY [BJ0

s1509) Paloud Aouaby Emnp

88 spun4 uogesnpy

80IM8G 198

51507 198f0ud JNE0

LORENSILILIPY HUBW ulseg Wnwdo

LOIJBJISILSWPY |004

g0 AI0SIARY-PIB0G JBISBULISIRAA

UOIJBS{UIWIPY J21SELLLIBIEAA
sainjipuadxy 100{01d ¥ SANBASIUILPY

SENUBADY [210L
BLUI0IU| SNOAUR||D2SIA
BUWICOU| JuBID)
anuanay joalold foushy [eninw
DNUIAY JSaUA|
SJUDWISSOSSY SANBNSIUILUPY
1SanuUaney sAlBISUILDY



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK

FOR PAGINATION

P30



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bemardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 809.484.3890 www.cbwm.org

DESI ALVAREZ, PE
Chief Executive Officer

STAFF REPORT

DATE: August 18, 2011
TO: Advisory Committee Members

SUBJECT: Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the Period June 1, 2011 through June 30,
2011 - Financial Report B4

SUMMARY

Issue — Record of increases or decreases in the cash position, assets and liabilities of
Watermaster for the Period of June 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011

Recommendation — Staff recommends the Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period
June 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011 be received and filed as presented.

Fiscal Impact — Funds disbursed were included in the FY 2010-2011 Watermaster Budget.

BACKGROUND

A Treasurer’'s Report of Financial Affairs for the Pericd June 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011 is provided to
keep all members apprised of the total cash in banks (Bank of America and LAIF) and on hand at the
Watermaster office (petty cash) at the end of the period stated. The Treasurer's Report details the change
(increase or decrease) in the overall cash position of Watermaster, as well as the changes (increase or
decrease) to the assets and liabilities section of the balance sheet. The report also provides a detailed
listing of all deposits and/or withdrawals in the California State Treasurer's Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF), the most current effective yield as of the last quarter, and the ending balance in LAIF as of the
reporting date.

DISCUSSION

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs has been created from various financial reports and
statements created from QuickBooks Enterprise Solutions 9.0, the Watermaster accounting system. The
Treasurer's Report provided, balances to the supporting documentation in the Watermaster accounting
system, as well as the supporting bank statements.

Actions:

August 11, 2011 Appropriative Pool — Approved Unanimously

August 11, 2011 Non-Agricultural Pool — Receive & File with no Approval
August 11, 2011 Agricultural Pool -

August 18, 2011 Advisory Committee —

August 25, 2011 Watermaster Board ~

P31



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION

P32



z jo | obed

(020'c8%'9) $

(LL9'cgT's)
060'LE
865'185C

(Les'2e)

(9se'ca2'e) $

{oz0'6ap'a) ¢

£FZ'Co0'el
ZLL'PLLL 8

99.'LEDL
006'L¥L

005 $

g - lodey [epusuld

(0z0%68r'e) ¢ (000‘00S‘D) $ - $ 0£6'0L $ - 3
ZAVPALL § 992'1E0°L $ - $ 006'Lil $ 00§ 3
(0/0'687'9) - (18+'66) (695'¢65'9) -
- - L8P'GE {1L8¥'66) -
- (000'005'9) - 0000059 -
eyz'eo9'cl $ 99.'LEG'cl $ - $ 9/8'0g1 $ 00% $
s|ejol Spun. JUstiIsSeAu| l1eiied pueltaq ysen
fAousby jeoo] N2y Bupjoayn | 000 A3ed

L10e/1els
L10¢2/0E/9

gos'lyl ¢

aouejeg olaz

(I3SY3xu03a) ASVINONI AOI3d

saniasay (oo} Jajsuel}

saligeT JUaLng JByl0 B saxe | [|0lAed ‘|joihed paniooy
a|geied spnoady

glessy JuaLng Jayln B susode ‘sasuadxg predsid
2j0BAIS0DY SJUSLLSSISSY

B[BAISDSY SIUNO0Y

(28vaHoEQ) ASYININI A0

ANVH NO ONY SXNYEG NI HSYD TW101
QNVYH NO ANV SYNvE NI HSVO TTVLO.L

OJUSWIRIIBS - pUN4 JUBUKSIAL| Aouaby |e0n
louhed - JUNECODY souejeg 0197
sysodag pugwiag-Buppays BUSLIUISAOS)
BIOLBLY JO jledq
ysen Allad - pugl| uo usen
S3OLIS0daa

LL0Z ‘0€ ANNF HONO™HL L INAP

(3sv3axOIA) HO FASVYAHONI dOH3d
LLOZ/0E/9 O sk saouejeq

SHIAYD/S[BMBIPUIAA
slajsues |
sysodag

LLOZ/LE/G  JO S saoueleg

:SNOILOVSNVY L TVIONYNIH 40 AdVINAINS

satj|igel Ul eseaiou|/eseasna)

'$1988Y U {9583.0U[)/o588.108
‘0l 3NA NOLLISOd HSVYD NI 3ONVYHO

AOIH3d FH1 HO4 SHIVAAY TVIDONVNIL 40 LHOd3Y SHFHNSYadL

HALSVINMILVAA NISYE ONIHO

P33



Z 10z afied

LLOZUNFISEC | LOZOUNT b Loday siamsesl | K INDSMSEINO0IN0 TUBIUOD\SS 1] JoWSIU] AB10dWwa |\SMOPUIATHOSOIANES0 NEIRGdAAINAME D OUIOINS\S BSID

lajselaiepn Uiseg oulyn
190YQ [RIOURUL JBIYD
yemsor ‘g ydasop

‘papiLugns Afnpoedsay

‘Adlied
JUSLIISBALL §191SBULISIEAA UISET OLHUD Ul PEIEIS BLSNID St} UM SOUEBPIODIE LY PRINJSXD LSS SABL SUCHKOESUEI} JLISLLISSALE |y

“syiUoW Xis xau ay) Buunp seunyipuadxa joalold pue sAlensIUILPY paulEld pUB USSSBI0) (B 199U 0} JUSIIYNS sie pusy Uo spund

997'LE0'L $ SINIWLSIAN] TVLOL

202 LED'L $ pung juswisaau| Aouaby jeoon

a)ec ayey sheg URowny UonMIsu| [emueur]
Ayamen 1Sa49)u)| Jo Jaguiny jediound

L10Z ‘0g sunp
SNLV.LS LNIJWLSIANI

‘110z ‘0 sunr papua JSUENT) SUj JE 9)e. PlalA aAjoale 8y} Sem %gp 0 ‘ojel ajqeuen Alep e sl 4y 1o} ajel sBuluies 8y

- {oo0'00G'9}  $ SNOILOVSNVYHL LNIINLSIANI TYLOL
(000'005't) $ 41 [EMBIDUNIAA 1 102/0E/9
(000'000'G) $ ERL-A [EMEIDUTIAA -~ LIGE99
PIBIA {,)a1ey Aunew pauwisapay Anoy Aloysode(] uonoesuel] aleq
Auniey 1s8uRU| o} sheq] an10aLT]

SNOILLOVSNYHL LNJIWLSIANI

}L0Z ‘08 ANNC HONOYHL L INNC
Q0I3d FHL HO4 SHIVH4Y TVIONYNIH 40 LHOd3Y SHFUNSYIAL
¢ - Hoday [eoueul HALSYINHT1VAA NISYE ONIHO

P34



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bemardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.chwm.org

DESI ALVAREZ, PE
Chief Executive Officer

STAFF REPORT

DATE: August 18, 2011
TO: Advisory Committee Members

SUBJECT: Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011 -
Financial Report - B5

SUMMARY

Issue — Record of revenues and expenses of Watermaster for the Period of July 1, 2010 through
June 30, 2011.

Recommendation — Staff recommends the Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2010
through June 30, 2011 be received and filed as presented.

Fiscal Impact — Funds disbursed were included.in the FY 2010-2011 Watermaster Budget.

BACKGROUND :
A Budget vs. Actual Report for the period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011 is provided to keep all
members apprised of the total revenues and expenses for the current fiscal year. The expense section is
categorized into four distinct sections. Those sections are: General and Administrative Expenses;
Optimal Basin Management Program Expenses; Project Expenses; and Other Income/Expenses.

DISCUSSION

The Budget vs. Actual report has been created from QuickBooks Enterprise Solutions 9.0, the
Watermaster accounting system. The Budget vs. Actual report provided, balances to the supporting
documentation in the Watermaster accounting system, as well as the supporting bank statements.

There were no budget transfers for the month of June 2011.

Year-To-Date (YTD) for the twelve month period ending June 30, 2011 of the fiscal year, all categeries
were at or below the projected budget, including category 6900 (Optimum Basin Mgmt Plan).

With June 2011 being the last month in the fiscal year, there were certain year-end transactions posted.
These transactions were as follows:

e Reconciled accrued vacation, sick and comp time to actual increasing the overall accrued liability
balances by $21,806.70

Recorded the quarterly interest earned on the LAIF funds of $14,728.68
e Recorded the annual depreciation expense in the amount of $20,698.97 to account 9400

P35



Budget vs. Actual Report for June 30, 2011 August 18, 2011

The overall Watermaster payroll expenses were under budget as a direct result of cost savings of the
CEO's salary during the months of March and April. If you recall, Ken Manning departed as CEO on
February 28, 2011 and Desi Alvarez started as CEO on May 3, 2011. When taking into account the year
end vacation, sick and comp time accrual adjustments to actual, the Administrative payroll expense

category (6010 - Salary Costs) was under the budgeted amount of $492,544 by $11,085 or 2.25% at
fiscal year end June 30, 2011.

The other General and Administrative expenses (accounts 6020 — 6190) and the Pools, Advisory and
Board expenses (accounts 6200 — 8500) were under budget at fiscal year end.

OBMP Engineering Services and Legal Costs:

Jul "0 - Jun® 11 Budget % Over Budget“ % of Budget
6900 - Optimum Basin Mgmt Plan
6901 - WM Staff Salaries 195,183.68 206.620.00 -11,436.32 94.47%
6503 - OBMP SAWPA Group 25,778.00 25,778.00 0.00. 100.0%
6906 - OBMP Engineering Services
6906.1 - OBMP - Watermaster Model Update 145,000.19 145,000.00 0.19 100.0%
6906 - OBMP Engineering Servicés - Other 335,803.77 339,336.00 -3,432.23 98.99%
Total 6906 - OBMP Engineering Sefvices [ 480,903.96 i 484 336.00 -3.432.04 99.29%
6907 - OBMP Legal Fees
6907.3 - WM Legal Counsel
6307.30 - Peace Il - CEQA 4.015.00 £0,000.00 -45,982.00 8.04%
6907.31 - S. Archibald Plume-Formerly OIA 28,854 65 15,000.00 13,854 65 192.36%
6907.32 - Chino Airport Plume 62,125.81 64,000.00 -1,874.19 97.07%
6907.33 - Desalter Negotiations 178,473.41 145,000.00 33473.41 123.09%
6907.34 - Santa Ana River Water Rights 16,562.22 25,000.00 -8,437.78 66.25%
6907.35 - Paragraph 31 Motion 146,114.43 75,000.00 71,114.43 194.82%
6907.36 - Santa Ana River Habitat 15,207.61 18,000.00 -2,7192.39 84.49%
6907.37 - Water Auction 1,183.50 40,000.00 -38.816.50 2.96%
6907.38 - Reg. Water Quality Cntrl Board 3,591.00 15,000.00 -11,409.00 23.94%
6807.39 - Recharge Master Plan §,419.27 40,000.00 -31,680.73 21.05%
6907.3 - WM Legal Counsel - Other 22404843 250,000.00 -25,951.57 89.62%
Total 6907.3 - WM Legal Counsel 688,598.33 737,000.00 -48,401.67 93.43%
Total 6907 - OBMP Legal Fees 688,598.33 737,000.00 -48 401.67 93.43%
6909 - OBMP Other Expenses
6309.1 - OBMP Meetings 1,687.68 0.00 1,687.68 100.0%
6909.4 - Printing 1,692.00 0.00 1,692.00 100.0%
6509.5 - Ad Hoc Litigation Committee 21.58 0.00 21.58 100.0%
6509 - OBMP Other Expenses - Other 116,200.00 102,800.00 13,400.00 113.04%
Total 6309 - OBMP Other Expenses 119,601.26 102,800.00 16,801.26 116.34%
Total 6900 - Optimum Basin Mgmt Plan 1,510,065.23  1,666,534.00 -46,468.77 97.02%

Within the category 6900 (Optimum Basin Mgmt Plan) are the Watermaster's legal expenses. Within the
legal expense category, some individual line item activities were above the budget ($118,443) while the
majority of line item activities were below the budget (3166,845). Above the budget line items were the
Paragraph 31 Motion activities of $71,114, the ongoing Desalter Negotiations of $33,474 and the South

P36



Budget vs. Actual Report for June 30, 2011 August 18, 2011

Archibald Plume (formerly known as the OCntario Airport Plume) of $13,855. The individual legal
projects/activities that were below budget for the Y-T-D period were the Peace lI ($45,982), the Santa
Ana River Water Rights Application of ($8,438), Water Auction ($38,817), Regional Water Quality Control
Board of ($11,409), Recharge Master Plan ($31,581), the Santa Ana River Critical Habitat of {$2,792), the
Chino Airport Plume of ($1,874) and General Administrative Legal Costs (Pool, Advisory and Board
meetings) of ($25,952). For the twelve month period, the cumulative Y-T-D budget was $737,000 and
actual legal expenses totaled $688,598 which resulted in an (Under) budget variance of ($48,402) or
6.6%. The budgeted Y-T-D amount of $737,000 includes the entire legal contingency amount of
$145,000 which was processed in April's budget transfer.

The OBMP Implementation Projects {accounts 7100's — 7700's) were all under budget, as projected, at
fiscal year-end June 30, 2011.

Account 7690 (Recharge Improvement Debt Payment) was under budget at year-end by $334,175 or
47.7% as a result of a credit in the amount of $270,408 that was received from IEUA and posted to
Watermaster's account in April 2011. |EUA adopis a budget each year that includes the Chino Basin
Groundwater Recharge Program Budget-Debt Service. Per the agreement dated May 1, 2002 with IEUA,
Watermaster pays IEUA based upon budget projections and any adjustments are provided when the
reconciliation is completed by IEUA. [EUA’s reconciliation shows that the IEUA’s Adopted Budget
FY2009/10 for the Chino Basin Groundwater Recharge Program-Debt Service was $1,326,210 while the
Actual Expenses for FY 2009/10 was $681,322, a variance of $644,888. The largest contributor to the
variance was the Interest Expense which was budgeted at $727,506 but the Actual expenses for
FY2008/10 were $53,399, a savings of $674,107. Several other categories showed small adjustments.
Using the Actual amounts for FY 2009/10 of $681,322, Watermaster's 50% share of the Debt Service was
$340,661 while Watermaster was billed and paid $611,069, resulting in a credit due of $270,408. The
retmaining budget variance of $63,767 was the residual budget balance.

Other Income and Expense:

In June, Niagara Botlling and Fontana Water Company received their first invoices for the MWD water
purchase. Niagara Bottling was billed $1,539,390.80 for 3,646.80 AF while Fontana Water Company was
billed $2,211,236.70 for 5,237.70 AF. The combined receivable amount of $3,750,627 .50 was recorded
in the Other Income section under account 4600 (Groundwater Sales). The offseiting expense payable to
IEUA for the MWD water of $3,750,627.50 was recorded in the Other Expense section under account
5010 (Groundwater Replenishment).

With the exceptions previously noted, there were no other unusual or significant transactions or events
during the month of June. Looking ahead, the month of July should provide positive financial results with
the categories being at or below budget.

Actions:

August 11, 2011 Appropriative Pool — Approved Unanimously

August 11, 2011 Non-Agricultural Pool — Receive & File with no Approval
August 11, 2011 Agricultural Pool —

August 18, 2011 Advisory Committee —

August 25, 2011 Watermaster Board —

P37



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION

P38



Z Jo | abed

%2 0E Ly L1G'gb- 00'6£9'99 £5°LoL'0Z %ZSEL 98'P5H' L 65'964'G L0V uojje|[e3sul Jeja iy aull-ul - ZoLL
%208 05°€EP'gl- 00'618'Z01 05'68€'98 %9 8EL ¥1'192'2 1£6L8'S SPobl's Guriojuo uononpold - LokL
%89"¥L $0'6Z8'Ge- 00'959'ZkL 9€'928'901 %L1 LOL yoeel 00'888°LL y0'220'21 dINFO-palesolly sasuadx3 ¥R - L0SE
%0'00L 000 00°000'04 00°000'0}- %00 00°000'0}- 00°000'0} 000 syoafoid Aouaby [eniniAl - 0569
%Z0'L6 L4°89Y'9p- 00'#ES'955' £Z'580'045'} %TEGEL 16'€00'87 ZOELB'GEL 66'9L6'E81 ue|d 3wbpy urseg wnwido - 0069
%B69'6L 1Z'69€'00} 00'6Z 1 6P~ 6L'65L'E6E- %8)'z8 96'672'L TV LL9'Or obLzr'ee- sainjipuadxd v'@9 Peledol|y - 0056
%0001 16'869'02 000 16'869'07 %0001 16'869'02 000 16'869'02 asuadx3 uogejoaidad - 00¥8
%0°001 000 00'sLe 00°G.€ %0°0 000 000 000 suadxg asn spun4 uopeINps - 0059
%G 06 v6'29L'GL- 00°999'191 90°E06'GF ) %6 LY SFBLO'L LLELP'EL TLTSY'9 uiwpy [ood g WM-Id Byy-UoN - 0058
%1651 0085975~ 00°000'G9 00°zZre'ol %¥y9E9 00°'808'G- 00°05Z'9} 00°Zre'ol asuadx3 |ood By - L1¥g
%LL'6ZL 00°005'€ 00°000'Z} 00°005'GL %G LEY 00'glE'E 00°000° L 00°GLE'Y letoads- pusny Bunsa By - 0178
%ZY L0k £'586'8 00°000'811 £1'G86'0Z1 %L BE £2°120'0 £EEER'E oLzig'e sealAlag [ealuyoal g |ebe By - L9y
%L8°9L) 8Z°0LL'Y 00°L¥1'82 82'626'7¢ %6861 £2°028'C BS'GYE'T 28'599'v ujwpy [00d g WM-[0od 116Y - oorg
%5°LS €60z 8e- 00°EX0'06 IG°LLLS %EZ'1E GE'58b'G PR'EREL 6V'861'T unupy |0od 3 WM-1d 4ddy - oogs
%2966 Zresl- 00°£09'08 86°'60%'05 %G1°801 92'652Z 69127 aLalt'y sesuadx3 pleog J83SELLIBIEM - 00E9
%S L8 6Ly 00°0LY'ZZ go'zze'sl %9601 gLLLL 05zL8't £96K0'T pIROS WA - Wwo) MIOSIAPY - D029
%188L Bb 7LB'Y- 00°'000°EZ 15'5ZL'8l %0°00L 99°08L'L 000 99'0eL'L SIeUIWES B S82UBIBJUOD - 0619
%E6 LL EL'8LE" L 00°094'EE lgibe'sz %G L9 0£'998- 000EL'T oLera't uoljepodsuel] g [aAel]l - 0£19
Yt LS PRI VA 00°008' 88'2E0'L %0°00} zLees 000 zi'zes se||ddng plald - 0519
%Z0'Sh 8T Y9’ L 00°000°E ZL0Se'L %E0'9Z £6'P8L- 007052 L0°G9 sasuadx3 UIWPY WM - 0719
%86 18'611- 00°000°0E £1°025'62 %00 000 000 000 suonduosgng pue sang - SSM.W
%59°L6 G7'89%'L- 00°GLS L) §g'g0k'9l %0°00} GGEVZ 000 SGEFT aoueansu| . SSD;
%88'18 05262's" 00°000°G€ 05°20L'62 %00 00’0 000 000 $82|AIBS 19BAUCD « 0909
%L0°L6 z9I8L'y- 00°002'09} 8ETILY'GS) %86'9.L 56'80L'2" 99'99L' L1 LL'150'6 S89JAI8S UOJIELLIOL] - 0509
%8Z'8L Sg'0Lo'LL- 00°00E°8L S1'68Z°19 %LS LI L8zt 00°000'G LL8ZL'S s1500 Bunuud ' @beysod - 0v03
%1969 GE0BY'0L- 00°005'0€ 59'600'07 %Z8'59 £8'898- L9'L¥S'T 782L9'} 'dinb3 1 senddng eall0 - 0£09
%GL'L6 5E888'2 00961 1OL 59Z1E'86 %EY'L6 9l'Llz- 00°EEr'8 ve'GLE's asuadx3 Buipjing 23W40 - 0209
%GL LB 8980 LL- 00'vbS'26Y ZE'651'L8r %TO'TLL £Z'6L1'EE 00'L8¥'9b £2'996'6L §1500 AIB|ES - 0LO9
esuadng
%EY' L6 ¥6'06E'GLL- 00'06¥%'LE8'G 90'660'959'9 %6826 25'681'ET- 00°Z00'SE B ZishL Jijoid ssoln
%BEY'LE ¥6°0BE'SLL 00064 LE8'S 90°650'959'9 %6828 zeB8Y'cE- 00'Z00'SE BYZIGLL awoau] [ejoL
%00 000 000 000 %0°0 000 000 00’0 9W0oIU| SNO3UR|I3ISIL - 006Y
%L ¥Z'080'8EL- 00'0L0'GLL 9/'626'9¢ %68'Z¢E z5'681'ee- 00°200'se BF'ZIS'LL senuansy Buneladg uop - 0oLy
%1996 OL'ELE'LL 00'€00'G5€ 06'680'EVE %0°0 000 000 00°0 |00d HBy-uoN-SUWSY LIWPY - 0ZLY
%Z'00L orZIo'TL 00°£90'E5L'9 OF'620'591'9 %0'0 00°0 oo 000 jood doiddy-sjuwisy ulwpy - 0LLy
%BLYL 00°0LY' L6 oooLb'8rl 007000 L kL %0°0 000 000 000 satpisqns Aouaby (2207 - 0LOY
Bwoou]
jebpng Jo % (1apunhrenQ ¢ yeBpng |enjoy/ j96png jo % (1punianp § jofipng |enjoy
TTOZ ‘OE 2unf Jo se 31eQ-01-1e8\ TTOZ 2Unf o Yuo ayL 104
198png |e30L 2Y3 Jo (%00T) Y12T/2T 193png [e30L 91 JO YIZT/T
pug-ieaA [BoSId PUE 8}B@-01-1BaA ‘IUo JuUaLIny siseq [endooy
|enjay 'sa jabpng LL/20/80

S-g voday |epueuly HILSVINHILYM NISYE ONIHO WY 8£:60



Z Jo g abed

*s311082182 JUNO32E By} UC UOIIBWLIOUI Pa|IeIap [BUOIUPPE 40} {59-1oday [eipuelld) 1iodad Jels a3 99s 2583|d (210N

%0°0 00°¢Ee’eD 00°££€'E9" 000 %0°0 000 00°0 000

%0°00} PLEBB'TYL 000 YLE86'TRL %¥L'GZL L0891 ELL 9e'LLL'SSY EY'BEC'ZLG

%0°00} ST L18'FLEOL 000 Sz'LL8'pLE'0L %.6'869- £9°G19'889'E g€ LLL'GGP- lz'pog'L8lL's

%0°00L Ly LZF'9LO- 000 Ly LZr'9LY- %hETYSL' L L9667 6L'p- 8ELLL'GS - £0°149'862'G-

%0°00} 82'6e¥'552'Z 000 8L'GEF'G62'Z %0°0 000 000 000

%0001 88'808'5€L'8 000 88'808'GEL'S %0°004 0E'SLL'SEr'S 000 0E'SLL'GER'S

%0001 LG'EE8'LED'E 000 LG EER'1EY'E %0'001 0L'EPB'ESL'E 000 OLEPR'ESL'E

%000+ OF'EZL'GE6'G 000 OF'EZ1'GBE'G %0'0 00°0 Qoo 000

%0'001 98°GbG'LT Q00 98°GYG LT %00 00°0 000 000

%0°'00+ OF'85+'#65'E oo'o OF'BSP'VES'E %0001 05°2Z9'0SL'E 000 05'229°0SL'e

%0'001 S8°50L'pL 000 S9'G0L'PL %0°00} az'eLe's 000 oz9lz'e

%l L BLL L r2'9le'008 00'EEE'ES- PLESE'TVL %bL 5zl L0°8OL LLL- 9ELLL'SEE E¥6EE'ZLG

%9L'S8 89°£04'196 00°EZ8'768'D ZEGLL'ELB'S %LL'6LL GG'8.9°E6 9E'ELL'06F 16'LG8'E8S

%90°E8 9568585~ 00°ELF'SYE ¥¥ESH'98Z HELFL 00'688'L- Tr'68L'8T Zraov'Lz

%LIEG 00° 2881~ 00ZH'L 00°5L %00 000 000 000

%EE'TG 05'¥.LL'pEE- 00'796'00L 06'68L'99€ %00 000 000 000

%Z'LG £6°89€'61- 00°052'G¥ 1¥°188'5Z %958 ee9zl'e- 00°G0'F 19°8¥%E

%68'6L 99'Li€'62- 00°081'9Z) ¥€'z08'00} %LLLL 1E'259'8- 00°GL5'04 £9'798'L

%8219 18'216'ge- 00°556°'16 6l'LEY'9S %B6Z'89 0Z'Lov'e- 2828, ZLLLL'S

%B8L'6L ¥i'6E8'GZ- 00 LLL YT 95°1.L2'86 %0°9€ £6'7L6'9- 852207l SO LYO'S

%LL'EE 1.L°GZ0'79- 007Z0'9v6 6296€'188 %8E'69 19'6€9'G- 05'8L¢'8L 68°8LL'2L

%88'86 SZTLL- 00°0rF's GL'8ZF'6 %00 000 ooo 000

%¥6'96 LL'ava'zL- 00'00L'ZLY 68'050'00F %EC LS) 18'8L9'6) L9°LBE'VE 8Y'0L0'vS

%i¥TL 06'P9¥'18)- 00'029'£59 0L'SSH'9LY %¥'58 LG LLEDL- L0'GE9'0L 05'€ZE'09

%Z0'8L 12'806'e- 00°08Z'F ETLLL %00 00'gle- 00°GlE 000

%6°L6 50°582'€Z- 00°Z8Z'£82 §6'966'€9C %L0LYT Ly LEO'ZE PLBLLLZ LT LIE'Es

%8096 05°556'2- 00'966'202 05°0r0'G6) %7015 EE'VES'B PE'OLE'OL 19°055'52

3ebpng Jo % (1epunMano § J8bpng lenjay joBipng jo %, (1epuniierp ¢ 1efipng lenjoy
TTOZ ‘0E aunf jo se a1eQ-0L-4ea\ TTOZ 2UNf §O YIUoA 3y ] 104

5-g 1oday |epueuty

198png |e101 243 jo (%00T) WIZT/ZT

198png [2101 3Y3 JO YIZT/T

puz-1eaj |BOSId PUB BIEQ-0L-IBBA ‘UIUOA JUBLND
[enjay “sA 19Bpng
HIALSYINHILYM NISYE ONIHO

awoau| 18N
awoau| JaLl0 18N
asuadxg Jay10 [R10L
sanlasay (wold)fol - 6666
Seseyaind Iyepn J8Yylo - 0015
Juawysiuajday lajempunols . 0105
EEVELFEFENI6)
awooau] 1aylQ jerol
s8]eg Jajempunols - 009¥
jusawiysiuajday-jood By-uon - 0ZzZy
juawysiuajdoy-jood doiddy - gLz%
aWoou| 158433U] - 52T

ENEENRE )
o
=t

awoosu| AaeuipiQ umZP
asuadx3 [ej0],

syoefold-pajedo||y sasuadxl ¥go - Z0G6
wibid uoaalodd |19pA aAlaey| . 00LL
1wfd 1g2Qq juawancidw] abieyosy - 0692
asn luopnwbpabelolg-¢88ad - 009
jwbpyies/sitoygdoon-1293d - 0092
ue]d Jwb -pad  00¥L
ajesaq/Alddng Jajep-g9e3d - 00EL
whd abieyoey dwog -zad + 00ZL
Bouad Bupioyuoyy [1ap °g ebleyssy - 6oLl
Bupojuol jouog olINeIpAH - 80lL
m:_._.Ou_EO_E [8A87] pUnoiD ..hn_ LL
Bupoyuo [enD I NS - G0LL
Bupiojiuol 1aAe IMpS - vOLL
Buuojuoly Auend HMpIS - £0LL

siseq |en1ooy
LE/g0/80
NV 6¢:60



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

. CONSENT CALENDAR

C. WATER TRANSACTIONS

1. Consider Approval for Notice of Sale or Transfer — Fontana Water
Company (“Company”) has agreed to purchase from The Nicholson Trust
annual production right in the amount of 7.000 acre-feet to satisfy a portion
of the Company’s anticipated Chino Basin replenishment obligation for
Fiscal Year 2010/2011. Date of Application: June 21, 2011, Date of Notice:
July 7, 2011




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

OF

APPLICATION(S)

RECEIVED FOR

WATER TRANSACTIONS - ACTIVITIES

Date of Notice:
July 7, 2011

This notice is to advise interested persons that the attached application(s) will come
before the Watermaster Board on or after 30 days from the date of this notice.

P41



NOTICE OF APPLICATION(S) RECEIVED

Date of Application:  June 21, 2011 Date of this notice:  July 7, 2011
Please take notice that the following Application has been received by Watermaster:

A. Notice of Sale or Transfer — Fontana Water Company (*Company™) has agreed
to purchase from The Nicholson Trust annual production right in the amount of
7.000 acre-feet to satisfy a portion of the Company’s anticipated Chino Basin
replenishment obligation for Fiscal Year 2010/2011.

This Application will first be considered by each of the respective pool committees on
the following dates:

Appropriative Pool: July 14, 2011
Non-Agricultural Pool: July 14, 2011
Agricultural Pool: July 14, 2011

* This Application will be scheduled for consideration by the Advisory Committee ra

earlier than thirty days from the date of this notice and a minimum of twenty-one
calendar days afier the last pool committee reviews it.

After consideration by the Advisory Committee, the Application will be considered by
the Board.

Unless the Application is amended, parties to the Judgment may file Confests to the
Application with Watermaster within seven calendar days of when the last pool
committee considers it. Any Confest must be in writing and state the basis of the
Contest.

Watermaster address:
Chino Basin Watermaster Tel: (909) 484-3888

9641 San Bernardino Road Fax: (909) 484-3890
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730

P42



CHINO BASIN WATERMA

NOTICE
OF
TRANSFER OF WATER

Notification Dated: July 7, 2011

A party to the Judgment has submitted a proposed transfer of water for Watermaster
approval. Unless contrary evidence is presented to Watermaster that overcomes the
rebuttable presumption provided in Section 5.3(b)(iii) of the Peace Agreement,
Watermaster must find that there is “no material physical injury” and approve the
transfer. Watermaster staff is not aware of any evidence to suggest that this transfer
would cause material physical injury and hereby provides this notice to advise
interested persons that this transfer will come before the Watermaster Board on or after
30 days from the date of this notice. The attached staff report will be included in the

meeting package at the time the transfer begins the Watermaster process (comes
before Watermaster).

P43



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION

P44



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bemardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: (909} 484.3888 Fax: (908) 484-3890 www.chwm.org

KENNETH R. MANNING
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DATE: July 7, 2011
TO: Watermaster Interested Parties

SUBJECT: Summary and Analysis of Application for Water Transaction

Summary —

There does not appear to be a potential material physical injury to a party or to the basin from the proposed
fransaction as presented.

Issue —

» Notice of Sale or Transfer ~ Fontana Water Company (“Company”) has agreed to purchase from
The Nicholson Trust annual production right in the amount of 7.000 acre-feet to satisfy a portion
of the Company’s anticipated Chino Basin replenishment obligation for Fiscal Year 2010/2011.

Recommendation -

1. Continue monitoring as planned in the Optimum Basin Management Program.

2. Use all new or revised information when analyzing the hydrologic balance and report
to Watermaster if a potential for material physical injury is discovered, and

3. Approve the transaction as presented.

Fiscal Impact —
[ 1 None
[X] Reduces assessments under the 85/15 rule
[ ] Reduce desalter replenishment costs

Background ,

The Court approved the Peace Agreement, the Implementation Plan and the goals and objectives
identified in the OBMP Phase | Report on July 13, 2000, and ordered Watermaster to proceed in a
manner consistent with the Peace Agreement. Under the Peace Agreement, Watermaster approval is

required for applications to store, recapture, recharge or transfer water, as well as for applications for
credits or reimbursements and storage and recovery programs.

Where there is no material physical injury, Watermaster must approve the transaction. Where the request
for Watermaster approval is submitted by a party to the Judgment, there is a rebuttable presumption that
most of the fransactions do not result in Material Physical Injury to a party to the Judgment or the Basin
(Storage and Recovery Programs do not have this presumpticn).

The following application for water transaction is attached with the notice of application.
e Fontana Water Company ("*Company”) has agreed fo purchase from The Nicholson Trust annual

production right in the amount of 7.000 acre-feet to satisfy a portion of the Company's
anticipated Chino Basin replenishment obligation for Fiscal Year 2010/2011.

P45



Water Transaction Summary & Analysis 70711

Notice of the water transaction identified above was mailed on July 7, 2011 along with the materials
submitted by the requestors.

DISCUSSION

Water transactions occur each year and are included as production by the respective entity (if produced)
in any relevant analyses conducted by Wildermuth Environmental pursuant to the Peace Agreement and
the Rules & Regulations. There is no indication additional analysis regarding this transaction is
necessary at this time. As part of the OBMP Implementation Plan, continued measurement of water
levels and the installation of extensometers are planned. Based on no real change in the available data,
we cannot conclude that the proposed water transaction will cause material physical injury to a party or to
the Basin.

P46



Consolidated Forms 3,4 & 5

CONSOLIDATED WATER TRANSFER FORMS:
FORM 3: APPLICATION FOR SALE OR TRANSFER OF RIGHT TO PRODUCE WATER FROM STORAGE
FORM 4: APPLICATION OR AMENDMENT TO APPLICATION TO RECAPTURE WATER IN STORAGE
FORM 5: APPLICATION TO TRANSFER ANNUAL PRODUCTION RIGHT OR SAFE YIELD

FISCAL YEAR 2010 - 2011

DATE REQUESTED: June 21, 2011

AMOUNT REQUESTED: 7.000 Acre-Feet

TRANSFER FROM (SELLER / TRANSFEROR):

The Nicholson Trust
Name of Party

Post Office Box 6010
Street Address

El Monte CA 91734
City State Zip Code

(626) 448-6183

Telephone

(626} 448-5530

Facsimile

TRANSFER TCO (BUYER / TRANSFEREE):

Fontana Water Company
Name of Party

Post Office Box 987
Street Address

Foniana CA 92334
City State Zip Code

(909) 822-2201

Telephone

{909) 823-5046

Facsimile

Have any other transfers been approved by Watermaster

between these parties covering the same fiscal year?

Yes [ No

PURPOSE OF TRANSFER:
3 Pump when other sources of supply are curtailed
Pump to meet current or future demand over and above production right
g Pump as necessary to stabilize future assessment amounts
a Other, explain

WATER IS TO BE TRANSFERRED FROM:

Storage

0 i NP

OCther, explain

Annual Production Right (Appropriative Pool) or Operating Safe Yield (Non-Agricultural Pool)

Annual Production Right / Operating Safe Yield first, then any additional from Storage

WATER IS TO BE TRANSFERRED TO:

Annual Production Right / Operating Safe Yield (common)

M Storage (rare)
a Cther, explain

July 2009

P47




Consolidated Forms 3, 4 & 5 cont.

IS THE 85/15 RULE EXPECTED TO APPLY? (If yes, all answers below must be “yes.”) Yes No 1
Is the Buyer an 85/15 Party? Yes No O
Is the purpose of the transfer to meet a current demand over and above production right? Yes Ne O3
is the water being placed into the Buyert's Annual Account? Yes No O

IF WATER 1§ TO BE TRANSFERRED FROM STORAGE:

Varies 2010-2011
Projected Rate of Recapture Projected Duration of Recapture

METHOD OF RECAPTURE (e.g. pumping, exchange, etc.):

Pumping
PLACE OF USE OF WATER TO BE RECAPTURED:

Chino Basin Management Zore 3

LOCATION OF RECAPTURE FACILITIES (iF DIFFERENT FROM REGULAR PRODUCTION FACILITIES):

N/A

WATER QUALITY AND WATER LEVELS
Are the Parties aware of any water quality issues that exist in the area? Yes No O

If yes, please explain:
Of the wells routinely pumped, perchlorate levels range from non detect fo 2.9 ppb and nitrate levels range
from 6.6 ppm to 32.0 ppm.

What are the existing water levels in the areas that are likely to be affected?

Static Water Levels ranging from 324 feet hqs to 665 feet bgs

MATERIAL PHYSICAL INJURY

Are any of the recapture wells located within Management Zone 1? Yes O No

Is the Applicant aware of any potential Material Physical Injury to a party to the Judgment or the Basin that may be
caused by the action covered by the application? Yes 0 No

If yes, what are the proposed mitigation measures, if any, that might reasonably be imposed to ensure that the
action does not result in Material Physical Injury to a party to the Judgment or the Basin?

July 2009

P48




Consolidated Forms 3,4 & 5 cont.

SAID TRANSFER SHALL BE CONDITIONED UPON:

(1) Transferee shall exercise said right on behalf of Transferor under the terms of the Judgment, the Peace
Agreement, the Peace Il Agreement, and the Management Zone 1 Subsidence Management Plan for the
period described above. The first water produced in any year shall be that produced pursuant to carry-over
rights defined in the Judgment. After production of its carry-over rights, if any, the next (or first if no carry-over
rights) water produced by Transferee from the Chino Basin shall be that produced hereunder.

(2) Transferee shall put all waters utilized pursuant to said Transfer to reasonable beneficial use.

(3) Transferee shall pay all Watermaster assessments on account of the water production hereby Transferred.

(4) Any Transferee not already a party must Intervene and become a party to the Judgment.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ATTACHED Yes O No
?- e ¥ o > | —
Seller / Transferor Representative Sighatlir Buyer /[ Tramsferge ﬁw@ative Signature
Robert H. Nicholson, Jr., Trustee Robert K. Young, General Manager
Seller / Transferor Representative Name (Printed) Buyer / Transferee Representative Name (Printed)

TO BE COMPLETED BY WATERMASTER STAFF:

DATE OF WATERMASTER NOTICE:

DATE OF APPROVAL FROM APPROPRIATIVE POOL:

DATE OF APPROVAL FROM NON-AGRICULTURAL POOL:

DATE OF APPROVAL FROM AGRICULTURAL POOL:

HEARING DATE, IF ANY:

DATE OF ADVISORY COMMITTEE APPROVAL:

DATE OF BOARD APPROVAL:

July 2008

P49



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION

P50



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

. CONSENT CALENDAR
D. SEMI-ANNUAL STATUS REPORT 2011-1




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.chwm.org

DESI ALVAREZ, P.E.
Chief Executive Officer

STAFF REPORT

DATE: August 18, 2011
TO: Advisory Committee Members

SUBJECT: Status Report 2011-1

SUMMARY

Recommendation — Receive and File Semi-Annual Status Report 2011-1 for filing courtesy copy
with the Court

BACKGROUND

Semi-Annual Status Report 2011-1 covers the period of January to June 2011, While the bulk to the report
describes work conducted for each element of the Optimum Basin Management Program (OBMP) during the 6
month peried.

Staff recommends approval of the report for filing courtesy copy with the Court.

Actions:

August 11, 2011 Appropriative Pool - Receive and File
August 11, 2011 Non-Agricultural Pool — Receive and File
August 11, 2011 Agricultural Pool ~

August 18, 2011 Advisory Committee —

August 25, 2011 Watermaster Board —

P51



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK.
FOR PAGINATION

P52



Optimum Basin Management Program

Staff Status Report 2011-1: January to June 2011

Optimum Basin Management Program

Highlighted Activities

California is experiencing the second wetfest year on record and the State’s surface reservoir are
full allowing the Governor to officially proclaim an end to California’s drought.

As a result in the State’s bountiful water supply, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California
(MWD) made imported water available at the replenishment rate. Watermaster is purchasing
40,000-50,000 acre-feet of this water to be used toward future replenishment obligations. As of
June 30, 2011, approximately 9,465 acre-feet of that water had been recharged. [t will continue
to be recharged through December 31, 2011.

During the fiscal year, approximately 16,848 acre-feet of stormwater were recharged, the
second-highest year on record. In addition, approximately 8,010 acre-feet of recycled water

were recharged during the fiscal year.

o Watermaster is preparing a restated Judgment at the request of the Court. A draft version of the

restated Judgment is available for review on the website.

e The proposed Chino Creek Well Field locations for Wells 1-19, 1-20, and [-21 by the Chino
Desalter Authority (CDA) are under review by Watermaster. When completed and in operation,
these wells will achieve hydraulic control and will not conflict with the Optimum Basin Management

Plan (OBMP) goal to minimize or abate
permanent subsidence.

e On June 14, 2011 the MWD Board approved
the local resources program (LRP) grant for the
desalters.

e Watermaster and the Inland Empire Uiilities |4
Agency (IEUA) are working together for the
creation of a 5th retention facility at the ||
Turner Basin. Up to 175,000 cubic yards of
dirt are anticipated to be removed for the
Milliken Avenue Grade Separation Project
funded by the City of Ontario and the San
Bernardino Associated Governments |
(SANBAG).  This represents a savings of|{
approximately $4.5 million.

MWD Turnout CB-14

Program Element 1: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive
Monitoring Program

Groundwater Level Monitoring

Watermaster inifiated a comprehensive monitoring program as part of the implementation of the
OBMP. The current groundwater level monitoring program is comprised of about 700 wells. At about
500 of these wells, water levels are measured by well owners, which include municipal water agencies,
the California Department of Toxic Substance Control (DTSC), the County of San Bernardine, and
various private consulting firms. The measurement frequency is typically about once per month.
Watermaster collects these water level data quarterly. The remaining 200 wells are private wells or
dedicated monitoring wells that are mainly located in the southern portion of the Chine Basin.
Watermaster staff measures water levels at these wells using manual methods once per month or with

P53

[mportant Court
Hearings and Orders

JANUARY 21—CHINO
BASIN WATERMASTER
COURT HEARING:
REGARDING MOTION TO
RE-APPOINT NINE
MEMEER BOARD FOR A
FURTHER FIVE-YEAR TERM

JANUARY 26—ORDER
GRANTING MOTION TC
RE-APPOINT NINE
MEMBER WATERMASTER
BOARD FOR A FURTHER
FIVE-YEAR TERM

FEBRUARY 3—COURT OF
APPEAL ORDER
REGARDING PARAGRAPH
31 APPEAL BRIEFING
SCHEDULE



GOVERNOR
JERRY BROWN
PROCLAIMED AN
END TO
CALIFORNIA’S
DROUGHT ON
MARCH 30,
2011.

Optimum Basin Management Program

Program Element 1: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive
Monitoring Program (Continued)

pressure fransducers that record water levels once every 15 minutes. The wells in the monitoring
pregram within the southern porfion of the Basin were preferentially selected to assist in
Watermaster’s monitoring programs for hydraulic control, land subsidence, and desalter impacts to
private well owners. The remaining wells are monitored in support of the triennial recomputation of
ambient water quality in the Chino-North management zone. The water level data are checked by
Woatermaster staff and uploaded to a centralized relational database.

Groundwater Quality Monitoring

Watermaster initiated a comprehensive monitoring program as part of the implementation of the
OBMP. The groundwater quality monitoring program censists of the following four compeonents:

1. An Annual Key Well Water Quality Monitoring Program consisting of 120 wells which are
mostly privately owned agricultural wells in the southern portion of Chino Basin thai are
otherwise nof included in an established sampling program. Twenty of these wells are
sampled every year; the remaining wells are sampled every three years. The wells sampled
annually are for the continuous monitoring of areas of concern associated with the southern
edge of the Archibald South (formerly OlA) VOC plume, the southern region of the Chino
Airport Plume, and the Kaiser Steel Plume which includes the two multi-port MZ-3 monitoring
wells. Data obtained for the Key Well Quality Monitoring Program are used for the triennial
ambient water quality analysis, hydraulic control assessment, the Biennial State of the Basin
Report, and to assess the overall health of the Basin.

2. Annual sampling ai nine HCMP multi-port monitoring wells strategically placed between the
Chino Basin Desalter well fields and the Santa Ana River. Results of the annual sampling are
used to analyze the effect of desalter pumping over time by comparing water quality of the
nafive groundwater and the Sanfa Ana River.

3. Monthly sampling at four near-river wells to characterize the Santa Ana River's influence to
nearby groundwater. These shallow menitoring wells along the Santa Ana River consist of fwo
former United States Geologic Survey (USGS) Naticnal Water Quality Assessment Program
(NAWQA) wells (Archibald 1T and Archibald 2), and two wells (Well 9 and Well 11) owned
by the Santa Ana River Water Company (SARWC).

4. A cooperative basin-wide data collection effort known as the Chino Basin Data Collection
(CBDC) program which relies on municipal producers and other government agencies to
supply groundwater quality data on a cooperative basis. These sources include the

Watermaster operations staff preparing to pump a
monitoring well to collect water quality samples

Page 2

- g e

_ Appropriators, Department of Toxic Substance Control (DTSC), Regional Water
Quality Control Board (RWQCB), US Geological Survey (USGS), the Counties,
and other cooperators. All water quality data are routinely collected, QA/
QC'd, and loaded into Watermaster's relational database.

-*| Groundwater-Production Monitoring
All active wells (except for minimum user wells) are now metered. Watermaster

reads the agricultural production data from the meters on a quarterly basis and
| enters these data into Watermaster's relational database.

! Surface Water Moniforing

Water Quality and Quantity in Recharge Basins. Watermaster measures the
quantity of storm and supplemental water entering the recharge basins.
Pressure transducers or staff gauges are used to measure water levels during
recharge operations. In addition to these quantity measurements, imported

P54



Optimum Basin Management Program

Program Element 1: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive
Monitoring Program (Continued)

water quality data for State Water Project water are obtained from the Metropolitan Water
Disirict of Southern Califernia (MWDSC) and recycled water quality data for the RP-1 and
RP-4 ireatment plant effluents are obtained from IEUA. Combining the measured flow data
with the respective water qualities enables the caleculation of the blended water quality in
each recharge basin, the "new yield" to the Chino Basin, and the adequate dilution of
recycled wafer.

Surface Water Monitoring in the Santa Ana River (SAR). Watermaster measures the
discharge of the River and selected water quality parameters to determine those reaches of
the SAR that are gaining flow from the Chino Basin and/or, conversely, those reaches that are
losing flow into the Chino Basin. These bi-weekly flow and water quality measuremenis are
combined with discharge data from permanent USGS stream gauges and discharge datfa
from publicly owned freatment works (POTWs). These data are used along with groundwater
modeling to assess the extent of hydraulic control.

HCMP Annual Report

In January 2004, the RWQCB amended the Water Quality Conirol Plan (Basin Plan) for
the Santa Ana River Basin fo incorporate an updated total dissolved solids (TDS) and
nitrogen (N} management plan.  The Basin Plan  Amendment includes both
"antidegradation” and "maximum benefit" objectives for TDS and nitrate-nitrogen for the
Chino and Cucamonga groundwater management zones. The application of the
"maximum benefit" objectives relies on Watermaster and IEUA's implementation of a
specific program of projects and requirements, which are an integral part of the OBMP.
On April 15, 2005, the RWQUCB adopted resolution R8-2005-0064; thus approving the i
Surface Water Monitoring Program and Groundwater Monitoring Program in support of £
maximum benefit commitments in the Chino and Cucamonga Basins.

water levels at private wells throughout the Chine Basin, conducted two quarterly ||
downloads af the 130 wells containing pressure transducers, collected 26 groundwater [
quality samples, 221 surface water quality samples, and 36 direct discharge stream |
measurements. Quarterly Surface Water Monitoring Program Reports that summarize |
data collection efforts were submitted to the RWQUCB in Janvary and April of 2011. The
Chino Basin Maximum Benefit Monitoring Program 2010 Annual Report was submitted to
the RWQCB on April 15, 2011.

Installing a pressure transducer

Chino Basin Groundwater Recharge Program

IEUA, Watermaster, CBWCD, and the SBCFCD joinily sponsor the Chino Basin Groundwater
Recharge Program. This is a comprehensive water supply program to enhance water supply
reliability and improve the groundwater quality in local drinking water wells throughout the
Chino Basin by increasing the recharge of storm water, imported water, and recycled water.
The recharge program is regulated under RWQCB Order No. R8-2007-0039 and Monitoring
and Reporting Program No. RB-2007-0039. f

Recharge Activities. On-going recycled water recharge occurred in the Brooks, 7th Street,
8th Street, Victoria, San Sevaine, Ely, Hickery, and RP-3 Basins this reporting peried.

Monitoring Activities. Watermaster and IEUA collect weekly water quality samples from
basins that are actively recharging recycled water and from lysimeters installed within those

Page 3

P55



Optimum Basin Management Program

Program Element 1: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive
Monitoring Program (Continued)

basins. During this reporting period, approximately 475 basin and lysimeter samples were
collected and 21 recycled water samples were collected for alternative monitoring plans that
include the application of a correction facter for Soil-Aquifer Treatment determined from each
baosin's start-up period. Monitoring wells located down-gradient of the recharge basins were
sampled quarterly at a minimum, however, some menitoring wells were sampled more frequenily
during the reporting period for a total of 85 samples.

Reporting. Watermaster and [EUA completed the following required reports concerning the
recharge program during the reporting period:

e 4Q-2010 Quarterly Report, submitted to the RWQCB — February 2011

e 1Q-2011 Quarterly Report, submitted to the RWQCB — May 2011

e 2010 Annual Report, submitted to the RWQCB — May 2011
Land Surface Monitoring

The MZ-1 Subsidence Management Plan (MZ-1 Plan) was approved by Watermaster in
October 2007, and was approved by the Court in November 2007 which ordered its
implementation {see Program Element 4: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Groundwater
Management Plan for Management Zone 1). The MZ-1 Plan calls for a number of activities with
the goal of minimizing or completely abating the future occurrence of land subsidence and
ground fissuring in Chino Basin. Some of these activities include:

® Continuing the scope and frequency of menitoring within the so-called Managed Area
(southwest MZ-1) that was conducted during the period when the MZ-1 Plan was being
developed.

e Expanding the monitoring of the aquifer system and land subsidence into other areas of
MZ-1 and Chino Basin where the data indicate concern for future subsidence and ground
fissuring.

®  Monitoring of horizontal strain across the historical fissure zone.

e Further evaluating the potential contribution of pumping in the central and northern
portions of MZ-1 on groundwater conditions in the central and southern portions of MZ-1.

e Conducting additional testing and menitering to refine the Guidance Criteria.

® Developing alternative pumping plans for the MZ-1 producers that are impacted by the
MZ-1 Plan.

e Consiructing and festing a lower-cost extensometer facility at Ayala
Park.

e Evaluating and comparing ground-level surveying and Interferometric
Synthetic Aperture Radar (InSAR), and recommending future monitoring
protocols for both techniques.

e Conducting an ASR (aquifer infection and recovery) feasibility study at
d production well owned by the City of Chinc Hills within the Managed
Area.

® Providing for recovery of groundwater levels.

It was determined that the land subsidence is not just isolated to MZ-1.
Hence, the Board of Directors approved the formation of the Land
MZ-1 Monument Construction & Surveying Subsidence Committee in December 2010, and its first meeting was held
on January 20, 2011.

Page 4

P56



Optimum Basin Management Program

Program Element 1: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Monitoring Program (Continued)

With regard to monitoring and testing, Watermaster began or coniinued the implementation of some of these
activities called for in the MZ-1 Plan. During this reporting period these activities included:

The continuation of detailed water-level monitoring at wells within the Managed Area and at wells in
central MZ-1.

Continuation of monitoring and maintenance af the Ayala Park Extensometer Facility. This includes
monitoring af the newly installed lower-cost pair of cable extensometers within two piezemeters ot Ayala
Park to test this technology for application in other parts of the Basin.

Collected InSAR data from radar satellites during all six months of the reporiing period, which will be

analyzed for land surface displacement in early 2012.

Performed the Spring 2011 ground-level survey across the MZ-1 Managed Area.

Continved fo plan for and implement a new testing and monitoring program within the MZ-1 Managed Area
with the goals of (1)} refining the Guidance Criteria, {2) confirming the existence of the Riley Barrier, (3)
testing the fecsibility of injection in the Managed Area, and (4) evaluating the effect of
pumping/drawdown and injection/recovery on the fissure zone.

Prepared equipment to install a horizontal extensometer across the zone of historical ground fissuring. This

work was performed by the subcontractor that will be installing and calibrating the horizontal extensometer
and data loggers.

Prepared a right-of-enfry agreement with a private property owner in the City of Chino to install the
horizontal extensometer.

Developed a scope of work and budget for Watermaster's 2011-12 fiscal year. The main features of this
scope include (1) the installation of the horizontal extensometer across the fissure zone, (2) the installation of
a new vertical extensometer near the Chino Creek Well Field, and (3) the implementation of a festing and
monitoring program in the MZ-1 Managed Area during 2012 and 2013.

Program Element 2: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Recharge Program

The theoretical average stormwater recharge capacity of
the Chino Basin Facilities Improvement Program (CBFIP)
facilities is about 14,000 acre-feet/yr (AFY) and the
theoretical supplemental water recharge capacity is 99,000
AFY. Stormwater recharge in the first half of year ending

Recharge Activities

June 30, 2011 was chout 7,468 acre-feet. Recycled water . 1,000 —
recharge during this period were about 3,768 acre-feet. The @ 6.000 A
IEUA and Watermaster recharge permit was amended in "? : !
fiscal year 2009-10 to allow for underflow dilution and £ 5,000 | 7
extended the dilution period from a running 60 months to a "i 4,000 8| L
running 120 months.  The significance of this permit 3 | ‘ J
amendment was to reduce the amount of imported and storm Eﬂ 3,000 ] e
waters required for dilution. 1EUA projects that dilution T 2,000 - f ‘ ‘—
requirements will likely be met through 2019-20, even if no % 1000 _:l ! prnd
imported water were available for dilution. ‘2 ’ E E !:
g = e T T T

In May, the Metropolitan Water Disirict of Southern
California  (MWD) made wafter available af the
replenishment rate. It had been approximately four years

Page 5
P57

T T
Jan Feb Mar Apr May

M Recycled B Storm 1 Imported




Optimum Basin Management Program

Program Element 2: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Recharge Program (Continued)

since it was last available. Watermaster intends to recharge 40,000-50,000 acre-feet of imported water to
offset basin overdraft and to meet future replenishment obligations.

The cumulative unmet replenishment obligation (CURQ) was approximately 8,889 acre-feet. It was fully satisfied
in May 2011 by purchasing water from Appropriators. The total amount of supplemental water recharged in
MZ-1 since the Peace Il Agreement is approximately 19,671 acre-feet, which is 6,329 acre-feet {cumulative) less
than the average annual requirement of 6,500 acre-feet.

As part of the Recharge Master Plan Implementation, MZ-3 recharge opportunities were discussed. The projects
include Wineville Basin spillway and pipeline and pump station tfo Jurupa Basin, Jurupa Basin and RP-3 Inlet
improvements. The Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District is potentially leoking to
participate in the funding of these projecis that would have a direct benefit to their service area.

Program Element 3: Develop and Implement Water Supply Plan for the
Impaired Areas of the Basin; and

Program Element 5: Develop and Implement Regional Supplemental Water
Program

Construction of the Chino | Desalter Expansion and the Chino Il Desalter facilities was completed in February 2006.
As currently configured, the Chino | Desalter provides 2.6 million gallens per day (MGD) of treated (air stripping
for VOC removal) water from Well Nos, 1-4, 4.9 MGD of treated (ion exchange for nitrate removal) water from
Well Nos. 5-15, and 6.7 MGD of treated (reverse osmosis for nitrate and TDS removal) water from Well Nos. 5-
15 for a total of 14.2 MGD (15,900 AFY). The Chino Il Desalter provides 4.0 MGD of ion exchange treated water
and 6.0 MGD of reverse osmosis treated water from eight additional wells for o total of 10.0 MGD (11,200 AFY).

Planning centinued between the Chine Desalter Authority (CDA) and Western Municipal Water District (WMWD) to
expand the Chino Il Desalter by 10.5 MGD (11,800 AFY). Watermaster worked with the CDA parties to produce
a realistic schedule approved by the RWQCB last June. Raw water will be drawn from existing CDA Il wells, and
possible additional new wells, if needed. [n addition, a new Chino Creek Desalter Well Field, required for the
hydraulic control commitment associated with Maximum Benefit, will provide additional raw water to the Chino |
Desalter, enabling some existing wells to direct production to the expanded Chino Il Desalter facility.

On June 14, 2011 the MWD Board approved the local resources program (LRP) grant for the desalters.

Program Element 4: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Groundwater
Management Plan for Management Zone 1 and Management Zone 3

MZ-1 Management Plan

Because of the historical occurrence of pumping-induced land subsidence and ground fissuring in southwestern
Chino Basin (southern MZ-1), the OBMP called for the development and implementation of an Interim Management
Plan (IMP) for MZ-1 that would:

e Minimize subsidence and fissuring in the short-term,

e  Collect information necessary to understand the extent, rate, and mechanisms of subsidence and
fissuring, and

® Formulate a management plan to reduce to tolerable levels or abate future subsidence and fissuring.

From 2001-2005, Watermaster developed, coordinated, and conducted an Interim Monitoring Program (IMP)
under the guidance of the MZ-1 Technical Committee, which is composed of representatives from all major MZ-1
producers and their technical consultanis. The IMP was an aquifer-system and land subsidence investigation focused
in the southwestern region of MZ-1 that would support the development of a long-term management plan to
minimize and abate subsidence and fissuring (MZ-1 Plan). The IMP involved the construction of highly-sophisticated
monitoring facilities, such as deep borehole extensometers and piezometers, the monitoring of land surface
displacements through traditional ground-level surveys and remote-sensing techniques, the detailed monitoring of

P58

Page 6



Optimum Basin Management Program

Program Element 4: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Groundwater
Management Plan for Management Zone 1 and Management Zone 3 (Continued)

the aquifer system with water-level-recording transducers installed at an array of production and monitoring wells,
and the purposeful stressing of the aquifer system through multiple controlled pumping tests.

The investigation methods, results, and conclusions are described in detail in the MZ-1 Summary Repeort, dated
February 2006. The investigation provided enough information for Watermaster to develop Guidance Criteria for
the MZ-1 producers in the investigation area that, if followed, would minimize the potential for subsidence and
fissuring during the completion of the MZ-1 Plan. The Guidance Criteria included a listing of Managed Wells and
their owners subject to the criteria, a map of the so-called Managed Area, and an initial threshold water level
(Guidance Level) of 245 feet below the top of the PA-7 well casing. The MZ-1 Summary Report and the
Guidance Criteria were adopted by the Watermaster Board in May 2006. The Guidance Criteria formed the
basis for the MZ-1 Plan, which was approved by Watermaster in October 2007. The Court approved the MZ-1
Plan in November 2007 and ordered its implementation.

During this reporting period, Watermaster continued implementation of the MZ-1 Plan. Drawdown at the PA-7
piezometer did not fall below the Guidance Level during the reporting period, and very litile, if any permanent
compaction was recorded af the Ayala Park Extensometer. The ongoing monitoring program called for by the
MZ-1 Plan continues to be implemented.

Program Element 6: Develop and Implement Cooperative Programs with the
Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region (Regional Board) and
Other Agencies to Improve Basin Management; and Program Element 7: Develop
and Implement a Salt Management Program

Ontario Infernational Airport (Archibald South Plume)

Watermaster continued to negotiate with the potentially responsible parties {PRPs) associated with the Ontaric
International Airport {OlA). The PRPs have formed a group called ABGL [Aerojet, Boeing, GE, and Lockheed).
Watermaster has continued to participate in meetings with ABGL and their consultants, counsel, the Regional Board,
and CDA in order to find common ground for a joint remedy for desalting and plume mitigation. Watermaster
prepared technical and legal responses to a presentation made by ABGL’s technical consultant in December 2010.
Watermaster also coordinated with ABGL’s consultant regarding the next round of sampling for VOCs in ABGL's
monitoring wells.

Chino Airport

Watermaster confinued to negotiate with the County of San Bernardino, Department of Airports (County) in order
to find common ground for a joint remedy for desalting and plume mitigation. Watermaster coordinated with the
Chino Desalter Authority’s consultant, who provided an update on the well drilling and construction activities at the
Chino Creek Desalter Well Field (CCWF). Watermaster reviewed hydrogeological information for a cross-section
near the Chino Desalter and CCWF (pumping test analysis, cross-sections, etc.) in order to develop estimates of
Darcian groundwater flux past this area. Then Watermaster prepared maps and charts of the groundwater model
that estimate the degree of hydravlic control that would be achieved after the CCWF is completed as well as the
fate of the Chino Airport plume. Watermaster prepared for and attended o meeting at San Bernardino County
offices with County staff and technical consultants in February 2011 to present the groundwater model results.
Watermaster also prepared a leiter report {text, tables, and figures) of modeling results of the Peace Il
alternative with updated well locations for the CCWF and pumping rates for all Chino Desalter wells.

Watermaster reviewed maps and aerial photos of Chino Creek to develop a surface water monitering program 1o
characterize groundwater/surface water interactions along Chino Creek.

California Institute for Men

Woatermaster continued to coordinate with the State on a memorandum of understanding that would allow
Watermaster to continue to monitor a subset of wells on CIM. Watermaster prepared the following letter: “Chino
Basin Groundwater Monitoring Programs: Preservation of Certain Monitoring Wells Owned by the State of
California at the California Institute for Men (CIM).”

Page 7

P59



Optimum Basin Management Program

Program Element 6: Develop and Implement Cooperative Programs with the
Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region (Regional Board) and

Other Agencies to Improve Basin Management; and Program Element 7: Develop

and Implement a Salt Management Program (Continued)

Other Water Quality Issues

Watermaster is responding to a public information request regarding perchlorate and perchlorate stable
isotope testing in the Chino Basin. The request was made by Lewis, Brisbois, Bisgaard, & Smith LLP, who are
defending Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S.A. (SQM), a Chilean company that historically preduced
fertilizer that was imported to the United States.

Program Element 8: Develop and Implement a Groundwater Storage
Management Program; and
Program Element 9: Develop and Implement a Storage and Recovery Program

The existing Watermaster /IEUA/MWDSC Dry-Year Yield (DYY) program continued during the reporting
period. All DYY program construction projects have been completed and are currently being used for DYY
"take”, or removal from storage. As of April 30, 2011 all of the water in the DYY storage account was
extracted, leaving the account with a zero balance.

In February 2008, the DYY Expansion Project was initiated by [EUA and Watermaster to evaluate
increasing the DYY storage account. The purpose of the DYY Expansion Project was to determine the
facilities needed to store up to 150,000 acre-feet and to recover up to 50,000 acre-feet/year. The
expansion project analysis was completed in December 2008. The expansion project evaluated the
technical, financial, and institutional frame work for individual projects to move forward. Negotiations to-
date related to aciual projects and the amount of expansion have not resulted in any planned expansion
projects.

P60

IN MAY, MWD
MADE WATER
AVAILABLE
AT THE
REPLENISHMENT
RATE FOR THE
FIRST TIME IN
APPROXIMATELY
FOUR YEARS.
WATERMASTER
INTENDS TO
RECHARGE
40,000-50,000
ACRE-FEET OF
IMPORTED
WATER TO BE
USED TOWARD
FUTURE
REPLENISHMENT
OBLIGATIONS.

Page 8



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

Il. BUSINESS ITEM

A. RESOLUTION 11-05 RESOLUTION TO TAX
DEFER MEMBER PAID CONTRIBUTIONS AND
RESOLUTION 11-06 RESOLUTION FOR PAYING
AND REPORTING THE VALUE OF EMPLOYER
PAID MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bemardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.chwm.org

DESI ALVAREZ, PE
Chief Executive Officer

STAFF REPORT

DATE: August 18, 2011
TO: Advisory Committee Members

SUBJECT: CalPERS Resolution 11-05 and 11-06

SUMMARY

Issue — CalPERS requires a “Resolution For Employer Pick-Up” and a “Resolution For Paying And
Reporting The Value Of Employer Paid Member Contribution (EPMCY".

Recommendations — Staff recommends the Committees approval/adoption of Resolution 11-05 and
Resoclution 11-06.

Fiscal Impact — There is no fiscal impact for Chino Basin Watermaster.

DiscuUsSION

RESOULUTION 11-05 “RESOLUTION FOR EMPLOYER PICK-UP”

Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 414(h)(2) allows public agencies to designate required employee
contributions as being "picked-up” by the employer and treated as employer contributions for tax
purposes. ‘The effect of a pick-up is to defer tax on employee contribution amounts until the member
retires and receives retirement benefits, or separates from employment and takes a refund of
contributions. Absent the 414(h)(2) provision applicable to government plans, employee contributions to
a defined benefit pension plan qualified under Section 401(a) would automatically be after-tax
contributions (i.e. taxable income to the employee at the time the contribution was made).

Chino Basin Watermaster currently reports all CalPERS member contributions on a tax deferred basis.
Per Revenue Ruling 2006-43, an agency reporting tax deferred member contributions must have adopted
a pick-up resolution in accordance with Internal Revenue Code (IRC) 414(h)(2), and CalPERS requires
that it be provided with a copy of such resclution. On May 11, 2011 the Customer Account Services
Division of CalPERS advised Watermaster that CalPERS did not have a copy of the resolution. On
October 3, 2008 CalPERS sent Watermaster an explanation of this requirement in Circular Letter 200-
049-08. According to CalPERS current records, they do not have a copy of Chino Basin Watermaster's
Resolution which is required under IRC Code 414(h)(2). Resolution 11-05 “Resolution for Employer Pick-
Up” corrects this issue

P61



Resolution 11-05 and 11-06 August 18, 2011
Page 2 of 2

RESOLUTION 11-06 “RESOLUTION FOR PAYING AND REPORTING THE VALUE OF EMPLOYER
PAID MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS (EPMC)”

A public agency may pay all or a portion of the normal contributions required to be paid by members of a
group or class. This payment is called Employer Paid Member Contributions (EPMC). Effective July 1,
1994 under G.C. section 20636(c) and California Code of Regulations Sections 571(a)(1), an employer
has the option of reporting the value of Employer Paid Member Contributions (EPMC) to CalPERS as
special compensation. Reporting the value of EPMC is not subject to state and federal income taxes, nor
Social Security and Medicare taxes. Chino Basin Watermaster has, and continues to provide this benefit
to all employees and this benefit shall consist of paying 8% of the normal contributions as EPMC, and
reporting the same percent (value) of compensation earnable as additional compensation. Chino Basin
Watermaster is submitting Resolution 11-06 “Resolution For Paying And Reporting The Value Of EPMC”
to comply with CalPERS documentation requirements.

Actions:

August 11, 2011 Appropriative Paol — Approved Unanimously

August 11, 2011 Non-Agricultural Pool — Moved to approve recommendations, subject to any changes
which the Chair of the Non-Ag Pool and Chair of the Advisory Committee determines appropriate

August 11, 2011 Agricultural Pool —

August 18, 2011 Advisory Committee —

August 25, 2011 Watermaster Board —

P62



RESOLUTION 11-05

RESOLUTION OF THE CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER,
SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA,
RESOLUTION TO TAX DEFER MEVBER PAID CONTRIBUTIONS

RESOLUTION FOR EMPLOYER PICK-UP

WHEREAS, the Chino Basin Watermaster has the authority to implement the provisions of
section 414(h)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC); and

WHEREAS, the Board of Administration of the Public Employees’ Retirement System adopted its
resolution regarding secticn 414{(h}{2) IRC on September 18, 1985; and

WHEREAS, the Internal Revenue Service has stated in December 1985, that the implementation
of the provisions of section 414(h)(2) IRC pursuant to the Resolution of the Board of
Administration would satisfy the legal requirements of section 414(h)(2) IRC; and

WHEREAS, the Chino Basin Watermaster has determined that even though the implementation
of the provisions of section 414(h}(2} IRC is not required by law, the tax benefit offered by
section 414(h}2) IRC should be provided fo its employees who are members of the Public
Employees’ Retirement System:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE {T RESOLVED:

I.  That the Chino Basin Watermaster will implement the provisions of section 414(h)(2) Internal
Revenue Code by making employee contributions pursuant to California Government Code
section 20691 to the Public Employees’ Retirement System on behalf of its employees who
are members of the Public Employees Retirement System. "Employee contributions” shall
mean those contributions to the Public Employees’ Retirement System which are deducted
from the salary of employees and are credited to individual employee’s accounts pursuant to
California Government Code section 20691.

Il. That the contributions made by the Chino Basin Watermaster to the Public Employees’
Retirement System, although designated as employee contributions, are being paid by the
Chino Basin Watermaster in lieu of contributions by the employees who are members of the
Public Employees’ Retirement System.

lll. That employees shall not have the option of choosing to receive the contributed amounis

directly instead of having them paid by the Chino Basin Watermaster to the Public Employees’
Retirement System.

V. That the Chino Basin Watermaster shall pay to the Public Employees’ Retirement System the
contributions designated as employee contributions from the same source of funds as used in
paying salary.

V. That the amount of the contributions designated as employee contributions and paid by the
Chino Basin Watermaster to the Public Employees’ Retirement System on behalf of an
employee shall be the entire contribution required of the employee by the Public Employees’
Retirement Law (California Government Code sections 20000, et seq.).

VL That the contributions designated as employee contributions made by Chino Basin
Watermaster to the Public Employees’ Retirement System shall be treated for all purposes,
other than taxation, in the same way that member contributions are treated by the Public
Employees’ Retirement System.

P63



By:

Chairman, Watermaster Board
APPROVED:

Chairman, Advisory Committee

ATTEST:

Secretary
Chino Basin Watermaster

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO )

l, , Secretary of the Chino Basin Watermaster, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that
the foregomg Resolution bemg No. 11-05, was adopted at a regular meeting of the Chino Basin
Watermaster Board by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Secrefary

Date:

P64



RESOLUTION 11-06

RESOLUTION OF THE CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER,
SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA,
RESCLUTION FOR PAYING AND REPORTING THE VALUE OF EPMC

RESOLUTION FOR PAYING AND REPORTING THE VALUE OF EMPLOYER
PAID MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS (EPMC)

WHEREAS, the governing body of the Chino Basin Watermaster has the a'uthority to implement
Government Code Section 20838(c)(4) pursuant to Section 20691;

WHEREAS, the governing body of the Chino Basin Watermaster has a written labor policy or
agreement which specifically provides for the normal member contributions fo be paid by the
employer, and reported as additicnal compensation;

WHEREAS, one of the steps in the procedures to implement Section 20691 is the adoption by the
governing body of the Chino Basin Watermaster of a Resolution to commence paying and
reporting the value of said Employer Paid Member Contributions (EPMC); pursuant to CCR title
2 section 571(a){1).

WHEREAS, the governing body of the Chino Basin Watermaster has identified the following
conditions for the purpose of its election to pay EPMC;

» This benefit shall apply to all employees of Chino Basin Watermaster.

¢ This benefit shall consist of paying 8% of the normal contributions as EPMC, and reporting
the same percent (value) of compensation earnable* (excluding Government Code Section
20636(c)(4)) as additicnal compensation.

e The effective date of this Reselution shall be July 1, 2011.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the governing body of the Chino Basin Watermaster
elects to pay and report the value of EPMC, as set forth above.

By

Chairman, Watermaster Board
APPROVED:

Chairman, Advisory Committee

ATTEST:

Secretary
Chino Basin Watermaster

*Note: Payment of EPMC and reporting the value of EPMC on compensation eamable is on pay rate and
special compensation except special compensation delineated in Government Code Section20636(c)(4)
which is the monetary value of EPMC on compensation earnable.

P65



STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) ss
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO )

1, , Secretary of the Chino Basin Watermaster, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that
the foregoing Resolution bezng No. 11-06, was adopted at a regular meeting of the Chino Basin
Watermaster Board by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Secretary

Date:

P66



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

Il. BUSINESS ITEM

B. LOAN AGREEMENT WITH CHINO
BASIN WATER CONSERVATION
DISTRICT, CITY OF ONTARIO, AND
JURUPA COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bemardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.chwm.org

DESI ALVAREZ, P.E.

Chief Executive Officer
STAFF REPORT
DATE: August 18, 2011
TO: Advisory Committee Members

SUBJECT: Loan Agreement with the Chino Basin Water Conservation District, City of
Ontario, and Jurupa Community Services District

SUMMARY

Recommendation — Approve Loan Agreements with the Chino Basin Water Conservation District
in an Amount not to exceed $5,000,000.00, with the City of Ontario in an Amount not to exceed
32,125,000, with Jurupa Community Services District in an Amount not to exceed $1,000,000 and
Authorize the CEO to enter into loan agreements with interested Appropriators.

Discussion:

Beginning May 16, 2011 imported replenishment water has been spread in Chino Basin to augment the
water supply and for preemptive replenishment. Replenishment water deliveries are scheduled to end
December 31, 2011 during which period it is estimated that between 40,000 acre-feet and 50,000 acre-
feet of imported water will be spread in the basin.

As of August 4, 2011 approximately 18,000 acre-feet of imported water has been recharged into the
Chino Groundwater Basin. Of the water recharged about 8,000 acre-feet was recharged during the
month of July which is the target monthly delivery rate. At this rate the total imported water amount that
will be recharged in Chino Basin through December 31, 2011 will be close to the 50,000 acre-feet goal.

Since acquisition of this water was unplanned Watermaster did not budget for the water purchase and per
the direction of the Advisory Committee and the Board of Directors has developed alternative financing to
pay for acquisition of the water.

Acquisition of the water is being financed in two parts. Approximately one half of the replenishment water
is being purchased for preemptive replenishment by two Appropriators, Niagara Bottling Company and
Fontana Water Company, neither of which own any groundwater rights in Chino Basin and are always in
need of replenishment water to cover their groundwater extractions. The remainder of the water is being
acquired for Desalter Replenishment which will be required beginning in 2013 when the current Overdraft

P67



Loan Agreement with CBWCD/City of Ontario/JCSD

August 18, 2011

Account is exhausted. A summary of the replenishment operating account for the pre-Peace Il Desalter
is provided in Table 1.

Table 1

Desalter Replenishment Accounting

Replenishment Available

Obligation Replenishment Balance Residual

Year Desalter Desalter Obligation Pre- Replenishment Replenishment
Praduction (Kaiser Peace Il Desalters Overdraft Obligation
Account) (CDA) Account

2001 7,989 3,995 0 0 3,995
2001 9,458 4,729 0 0 4,729
2003 10,439 5,220 0 0 5,220
2004 10,605 5,303 0 0 5,303
2005 9,854 4,927 0 0 4,927
2006 16,476 11,579 0 225,000 4,897
2007 26,356 608 25,748 199,252 0
2008 26,972 0 26,972 172,286 0
2009 32,920 0 61,990 110,290 -29,070
2010 28,517 0 28,517 81,773 0
2011 28,965 0 28,965 52,808 0
2012 28,750 0 28,750 24,058 4,692
2013 28,750 0 28,750 0 28,750
2014 28,750 0 28,750 0 28,750
2015 28,750 0 28,750 0 28,750

The Desalter Replenishment water will be purchased by Watermaster and used to augment
Watermaster's Desalter Overdraft Account. Watermaster will be borrowing from various parties to the
Judgment to finance approximately 19,000 acre-feet of water. The remainder of the imported
replenishment water will be acquired through storage agreements restricted to future Desalter
Replenishment with regional agencies such as Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) and Three Valleys
Municipal Water District (TVMWD).

On July 11, 2011 the Chino Basin Water Conservation District Board of Directors approved a loan of up to
$5,000,000.00 to the Chino Basin Watermaster. Following the CBWCD Board's approval of the loan a
Loan Agreement has been negotiated between Watermaster and CBWCD.

Various Appropriators have expressed an interest in providing financing to Watermaster in an amount
approximately equivalent to their future assessment obligation for Desalter Replenishment. The City of
Ontario and Jurupa Community Services District have agreed to loan Watermaster $2.1M and $1.0M
respectively.

The term of the loan agreements that Watermaster will enter are described herein. The loan will be
subject to a variable interest rate equivalent to the monthly Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) interest
rate plus one and one-half percent (1.5%) interest per annum. Interest will be calculated on the basis of a

30-day month and a 360-day year and shall be paid monthly. The principal shall be due and payable on
January 15, 2015.

P68



Loan Agreement with CBWCD/City of Ontaric/JCSD August 18, 2011

Watermaster agrees to pledge assessment revenue received from replenishment assessments levied by
Watermaster and shall make principal payment due from such revenue. No new debt will be issued with a
priority on the loans. Watermaster will repay the loan through the replenishment assessments it will be
collecting to meet Desaiter replenishment obligations beginning in 2013 consistent with Article V! of the
Peace [l Agreement. If by November 15, 2014, Watermaster has not collected replenishment
assessments to meet its commitment for full repayrment, then by December 15, 2014, Watermaster will
levy a special assessment in an amount sufficient o meet the repayment otligations due on January 15,
2015.

Interest payments which are due monthly will be paid from existing reserves. The estimated interest cost
on the loans of $8,125,000 through January 2015 is $541,666.80. This cost assumes an interest rate of
two percent which is based on the average LAIF note for the past six quarters plus 1.5%, Watermaster
currently has approximately $1.3M dollars in a reserve which will be sufficient to cover this expense.

The Agreements will be submitted by Watermaster to the San Bernardino Superior Court (the “Court”)
maintaining continuing jurisdiction over the Judgment with a request that the Court find that the
Agreement constitutes a legal and binding commitment on Watermaster.

Cost of Water:

The loan amount of $8,125,000 with the cost of replenishment water at $423 acre-feet provides the
potential to purchase 19,200 acre-feef of replenishment water. The cost of replenishment water would be
$424.34 acre-feet which is the same amount as the Special Assessment option.

Actions:

July 21, 2011 Advisory Commitiee — Moved to bring the agreement to provide a loan between Chino
Basin Watermaster and Chino Basin Water Conservation District back in August through the Pool
process, have Watermaster staff provide an explanation on how the interest is going to be paid, and
obtain approval through the Pool process for authorization of the use of the accumulated reserves fo
offset monthly interest payments.

July 28, 2011 Watermaster Board — Presented {o the Board as an informational item only. The Board
requested the item be presented and approved through the normal Pool process.

August 11, 2011 Appropriative Pool — Moved by a majority vote to authorize staff to work on the loan
agreements with the Chino Basin Water Conservation District in an amount not to exceed $5,000,000.00,
with the City of Ontario in an amount not to exceed $2,125,000, with Jurupa Community Services District
in an amount not to exceed $1,000,000 and other interested Appropriatars with the condition that
Watermaster would obtain Advisory Committee approval before executing the agreements.

August 11, 2011 Non-Agricultural Pool — Moved to approve staff recommendation and give Pool
direction to its representative at the Watermaster meeting, should a conclusive deal with any party for a
loan in any amount that accomplishes the goal, and allow the representative to vote in favor of it.

August 11, 2011 Agricultural Pool — Moved to approve unanimously.

August 18, 2011 Advisory Committee ~

August 25, 2011 Watermaster Board -

P69



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY

BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION

P70



AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LOAN

This Agreement to Provide Loan (“Agreement”) is made as of this day of July,
2011, by and between Chino Basin Water Conservation District (the “District™), and Chino
Basin Watermaster (the “Watermaster™).

RECITALS

A. Watermaster 1s the entity appointed by the Court maintaining continuing
jurisdiction over the case Chino Basin Municipal Water District v. City of Chino, San
Bernardino Superior Court Case No. RCV 51010 ("Judgment"}, whose purpose is to administer
the terms of the Judgment.

B. District is a California Water Conservation District organized under

C. Watermaster desires to purchase replenishment water from the Metropolitan
Water District of Southern California ("MWD") in order to augment the basin’s water supply to
satisfy Desalter replenishment obligations of the parties to the Judgment.

D. Under the Judgment, Watermaster collects revenue to purchase replenishment
water on a yearly basis based on pumping by parties to the Judgment that incur a replenishment
obligation.

E. Watermaster desires to borrow, and District desires to assist Watermaster by
lending to Watermaster, an amount in cash not to exceed $5,000,000 (the “Loan™) in order to
accomplish the purchase of water from MWD.

F. Under Paragraph 24 of the Judgment, "Watermaster may borrow from time to
time amounts not exceeding the annual anticipated receipts of Watermaster during such year."

NOW THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual agreements, obligations,
and representations, and in further consideration for the making of the Loan, Watermaster and
District hereby agree as follows:

1. Loan. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, District hereby
agrees to lend the Watermaster up to Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000.00) at a variable interest
rate equivalent to the monthly Local Agency Investment Fund interest rate plus One and One-
Half Percent (1.5%) simple interest per annum as more detailed in the attached Promissory Note
(the “Note”, Exhibit A to this Agreement). As more fully set forth in the Note, the terms of the
Loan shall include the following:

1.1 Interest shall be paid monthly. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of
a 30-day month and a 360-day year.

1.2 The Note will provide that all outstanding principal shall be due and
payable on January 15, 2015.

P71



2 Security. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, in conjunction
with the Note, Watermaster hereby agrees to pledge assessment revenue received from
replenishment assessments levied by Watermaster (“Pledged Revenues™), which agreement
shall be in the form of the Security Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Security
Agreement”), and shall make payments due under the Note from the Pledged Revenues and any
other legally available source. No new debt will be issued with a priority on parity or senior to
the Loan. Any assessments necessary to pay such Loan shall be levied by Watermaster.
Watermaster shall levy replenishment assessments upon every acre-foot of water that incurs a
replenishment assessment in an amount sufficient to account for both the principal and interest
on money borrowed to purchase that water. If by November 15, 2014, Watermaster has not
collected replenishment assessments to meet its commitment for full repayment, then by
December 15, 2014, Watermaster will levy a special assessment in an amount sufficient to meet
the repayment obligations due on January 15, 2015.

3 Use of Loan Proceeds. Watermaster hereby covenants and agrees that the
proceeds from the Loan shall only be used to pay invoices from the Inland Empire Utilities
Agency ("IEUA") for replenishment water purchased by IEUA from MWD and the Water
Facilities Authority for treatment charges.

4. Distribution of Loan Proceeds. Funds will be made available by the District
within three days of demand from Watermaster, but shall only be distributed as invoices are
received from IEUA for the water and only in the amount of such invoices.

3 Watermaster Records. Watermaster covenants to keep proper books and financial
records, in accordance with accepted practices for similar issuers, and to make such books and
records available for reasonable inspection by District. Watermaster shall also provide the
following financial information and statements in form and content acceptable to District:

5.1 Within 240 days of fiscal year end, a copy of Watermaster’s CPA audited
financial statement.

5.2 Within 90 days after the end of each interim six-month period (the first
six-month period ending on December 31, 2011), a copy of Watermaster’s unaudited financial
statements for the six months then ended.

53  Within 90 days after the beginning of the fiscal year being budgeted, a
budget for the new fiscal year.

5.4 Such other financial information as may be reasonably requested by the
District from time to time.

6. Court Approval; Deliverables.  This Agreement shall be submitted by
Watermaster to the San Bernardino Superior Court (the “Court”) maintaining continuing
jurisdiction over the Judgment with a request that the Court find that the Agreement constitutes a
legal and binding commitment on Watermaster. Such approval shall act as a condition precedent
to the execution by the parties of the Note and the Security Agreement. Within __ days of
receiving Court approval, the parties shall execute and deliver the Note and the Security
Agreement in the forms attached hereto.

P72



7. Representations and Warranties. Watermaster represents and warrants that it
knows of no existing or threatened litigation the results of which, if adversely determined, would
have a material adverse effect upon Watermaster's ability to fulfill its obligations under this
Agreement. '

8. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the date sét forth above and remain in
full force and effect throughout the term of the Loan.

9. Governing Law. This Agreement and any exhibits referenced herein shall be
interpreted under and be governed by the laws of the State of California. Any dispute arising
under this Agreement shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the Court maintaining continuing
jurisdiction over the Judgment.

10.  Time. Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

11. Notices. Formal notices, demands and communications between Watermaster
and District shall be sufficiently given and shall not be deemed given unless dispatched by
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered personally, to
the principal offices of Watermaster and District as follows:

DISTRICT:

WATERMASTER: Chino Basin Watermaster
¢/o Mr. Desi Alvarez
8632 San Bernardino Road
Cucamonga, CA

12.  Relationship of Parties. The relationship of Watermaster and the District under
this Agreement is and at all times shall remain solely that of a debtor and a creditor, and shall not
be construed as a joint venture, equity venture, partnership, or any other relationship, except as
otherwise may be agreed to by the parties. The District neither undertakes nor assumes any
responsibility or duty to Watermaster (except as provided for herein) or any third party.

13.  Assignment: Binding Nature. This Agreement and the rights granted herein are
persenal to the District and the Watermaster and may not be exercised or assigned voluntarily or
involuntarily by or to any person or entity other than the District and the Watermaster, and shall
terminate and be of no further force or effect upon any assignment. All provisions of this
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the administrators, successors-in-
interest, transferees, and permitted assigns of each of the parties; provided, however, that except
as otherwise permitted in this Agreement, this section does not waive the prohibition on
assignment of this Agreement by the District or the Watermaster without the District’s or the
Watermaster's consent.

SB 585548 v2:008350.0001

3
P73



14.  Waiver. Any waiver by the District of any obligation in this Agreement must be
m writing. No waiver will be implied from any delay or failure by the District to take action on
any breach or default of Watermaster or to pursue any remedy allowed under the Agreement or
applicable law. Any extension of time granted to Watermaster to perform any obligation under
this Agreement shall not operate as a waiver or release from any of its obligations under this
Agreement. Consent by the District to any act or omission by Watermaster shall not be construed

to be a consent to any other or subsequent act or omission or to waive the requirement for the
District's written consent to future waivers.

15.  Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement including exhibits referenced
herein contain the entire agreement of the parties and supersede any and all prior negotiations
with respect to the subject matter hereof. Any amendments or modifications to this Agreement
must be in writing, and shall be made only if executed by both Watermaster and the District.

16.  Other Agreements. Watermaster represents that it has not entered into any
agreements that are inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement. Further, Watermaster shall
not enter into any agreements that are inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement without an
express waiver by the District in writing.

17. Severability. Lvery provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable. If
any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable by a couwrt of
competent jurisdiction, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall
not in any way be affected or impaired.

18. Attorneys' Fees. If any legal proceeding (lawsuit, arbitration, etc.) including an
action for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement,
each party shall bear its own costs.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first
written above.

DISTRICT

By:

WATERMASTER

By:
Desi Alvarez, CEO

Exhibit A: Form of Promissory Note
Exhibit B: Form of Security Agreement

P74



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Not to Exceed $5,000,000

SECURED PROMISSORY NOTE

(8 Evidence of Obligation. For value received, this Promissory Note (the “Note™)
is given by Chino Basin Watermaster (“Borrower”™) to Chino Basin Water Conservation
District (“Lender”), to evidence that certain obligation by Borrower to pay to Lender a
principal amount not to exceed Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000.00).

2 Payment Covenant. For value received, Borrower promises to pay to Lender at
Cucamonga, California, or at such other place as may be designated in writing by Lender,
or to its order, a principal amount not to exceed Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000.00)
plus Interest (as defined below in Section 3), as provided herein.

3. Use of Proceeds; Principal Amount. The principal shall only be used by
Borrower to pay invoices from the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (“IEUA™) for
replenishment water purchased by IEUA from the Metropolitan Water District of
Southern California and the Water Facilities Authority for treatment charges. The
amount of the principal of this Note shall be determined as follows but shall not exceed
$5,000,000.00: Funds shall be transferred by Lender to Borrower within three (3) days of
written demand by Borrower to Lender, provided that such written demand include the
invoices received by Borrower from IEUA, and provided further that the amount of the
funds transferred by Lender to Borrower shall be an amount equal to the amount of such
invoices.

4. Interest. Interest on the outstanding principal balance due under this Note shall
accrue commencing on the date of this Note at a variable rate equal to the monthly Local
Agency Investment Fund interest rate plus One and One-Half Percent (LAIF + 1.5%)
simple interest per annum based on a 30-day month and a 360-day year (the “Interest™).
The Interest shall be paid monthly commencing on

5. Maturity. The entire amount of unpaid principal, plus all accrued and unpaid
Interest and any costs or fees owing under this Note shall be due and payable in full on
January 15, 2015.

6.  Prepayment. Borrower reserves the right at any time, and from time to time, to

prepay all or any portion of the amounts outstanding hereunder without penalty or
premium.

7. Default; Acceleration. If an Event of Default (as defined below) occurs under
this Note, then Lender may, at its sole option, declare all sums owing under this Note
immediately due and payable, and all amounts owing hereunder shall be automatically
due and payable subject to any requirements as specified below.

Each of the following shall constitute an “Event of Default™:

(a) Failure of Borrower to pay when due principal or accrued interest under
this Note within thirty (30) days of any due date;

SB 585986 v1:008350.0001 1

P75

;2011



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Not to Exceed $5,000,000

, 2011

{b) A custodian, trustee, receiver, or agent is appointed or takes possession of
substantially all of the assets of Borrower;

(©) Any attachment, execution, or other writ is levied on all or substantially all
of the assets of the Borrower;

(d) Any default under the terms of the Security Agreement executed
concurrently herewith by Borrower.

8. Application of Payments. Any payment when made shall be credited first on the
accrued interest then due, and the remainder on the principal payable under this Note.
Interest shall thereupon cease on the amount so credited on the principal sum.

0. No Waivers. No previous waiver and no failure or delay by Lender in acting
with respect to the terms of this Note shall constitute a waiver of any breach, default, or
failure of condition under this Note or the obligations secured thereby. A waiver of any
term of this Note or of any of the obligations secured thereby must be made in writing
and shall be limited to the express written terms of such waiver.

10.  Usury. All agreements between Borrower and Lender are expressly limited, so
that in no event or contingency whatsoever, whether by reason of the advancement of the
proceeds of this Note, acceleration of maturity of the unpaid principal balance, or
otherwise, shall the amount paid or agreed to be paid to Lender for the use, forbearance,
or detention of the money to be advanced under this Note exceed the highest lawful rate
permissible under applicable usury laws. If, under any circumstances whatsoever, Lender
shall ever receive as interest an amount that exceeds the highest lawful rate, the amount
that would be excessive interest shall be applied to the reduction of the unpaid principal
balance under this Note and not to the payment of interest, or, if such excessive interest
exceeds the unpaid balance of principal under this Note, such excess shall be refunded to
Borrower.

11. Time of the Fssence; Dates. Time is of the essence of this Note. In the event
that any date specified in this Note falls on Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday, such
date shall be deemed to be the succeeding day on which the public agencies and major
banks are open for business.

12. Governing Law and Venue. This Note shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of California. The venue for any proceedings under
this Note shall be a court of competent jurisdiction in the County of San Bernardino,
State of California.

13. Parties in Interest. This Note shall bind Borrower and its successors, heirs and
assigns. This Note shall not be assigned or transferred by Lender without the express
prior written consent of Borrower, except by operation of law.

14.  Severability. If any provision in this Note is held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this Note will remain in full

SB 585986 v1:008350.0001 2

P76



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Not to Exceed $5,000,000 , 2011

force and effect. Any provision of this Note held invalid or unenforceable only in part or
degree will remain in full force and effect the extent not held invalid or unenforceable.

15.  Attorneys’ Fees. If any legal proceeding (lawsuit, arbitration, etc.) including an
action for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Note,
each party shall bear its own costs.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, Borrower has executed this Note as set forth below.

BORROWER:

Chino Basin Watermaster

Desi Alvarez, CEO

Address:
8632 San Bernardino Road
Cucamonga, CA

SB 585986 v1:008350.0001 3

P77



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION

P78



SECURITY AGREEMENT

This Security Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on this ___ day of

, 2011, by and between Chino Basin Water Conservation District (the “District™)

and Chino Basin Watermaster (“Watermaster”) (each a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties™)
with reference to the following facts and intentions:

A. Watermaster is the entity appointed by the Court maintaining continuing
jurisdiction over the case Chino Basin Municipal Water District v. City of Chino, San
Bernardino Superior Court Case No. RCVJI 010 (“Judgment”), whose purpose is to administer
the terms of the Judgment.

B. District 1s a California Water Conservation District organized under

C. The Parties entered into that certain Agreement to Provide Loan dated
, 2011 (the “Loan Agreement”), and the approval of the Court as set forth in Section
6 of the Loan Agreement has been obtained.

D. In conjunction with the Secured Promissory Note executed by Watermaster
concurrently herewith (the “Note”), Watermaster agrees to grant the District a security interest in
the assessment revenue received from replemshment assessments levied by Watermaster, as
more fully described herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and
agreements hereinafter set forth, and for other good and valuable consideration (the

receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged), THE PARTIES AGREE AS
FOLLOWS:

1. Incorporation by Reference; Defined Terms. The above Recitals and Exhibits
hereto are incorporated herein by this reference. Any term used but not defined in this
Agreement shall have the meaning given such term in the Loan Agreement or the Note.

2. Grant of Security Interest. Watermaster grants to the District a security interest
in the assessment revenue received by Watermaster from replenishment assessments levied by
Watermaster (the “Pledged Revenues™), to secure performance and payment by Watermaster to
the District under the Note.

3. No Senior Debt. Watermaster agrees that for the term of the Note, Watermaster
shall not issue any debt with a priority on parity with or senior to the Note, and shall not pledge,
lien or encumber the Pledged Revenues for the term of the Note.

4, Representations, Warranties and Covenants. Watermaster represents, warrants
and covenants that it will execute documents and take such other actions and do such other
things, all as the District may from reasonably require from time to time, to establish, perfect and
maintain a valid security interest and lien in the Pledged Revenues;

5. Events of Default. Watermaster will be in default on the occurrence of any one
of the following events or conditions (each, an “Event of Default™):

SBE 585980 v1:608350.0001

P78



a. Watermaster’s failure to perform any of the obligations, covenants, terms
or conditions contained or referred to in this Agreement or the Note;

b. Watermaster’s breach of any warranty, representation or staiement
contained or referred to in this Agreement or the Note.

6. Remedies of the District. When an Event of Default occurs, the District shall
provide written notice to Watermaster of the Event of Default and the reasons therefore (“Notice
of Default”). Watermaster may object in writing within five (5) days of receipt of Notice of
Default, and the parties shall meet and confer in good faith to resolve any dispute. If the parties
are unable to resolve such dispute within 30 days then the dispute will be resolved by motion to
the Court maintaining continuing jurisdiction over the Judgment. The rights, powers and
remedies of the District in this Agreement shall be in addition to all rights, powers and remedies
given by law and are cumulative. The exercise of any one or more of the rights, powers and
remedies provided in this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any other rights,
powers and remedies of the District.

7. Termination of Agreement. This Agreement, and Watermaster’s dutics and
obligations under this Agreement, will continue in effect and only terminate when Watermaster
completes performance of the obligations and duties under the terms and conditions of the Note.

8. (General Provisions.

a. Recitals. The recitals set forth at the beginning of this Agreement of any
matters or facts shall be conclusive proof of their truthfulness and the terms and conditions stated
in the recitals, if any, shall be deemed a part of this Agreement.

b. Other Instruments. The parties shall, whenever and as often as
reasonably requested by the other party, execute, acknowledge and deliver or cause to be
executed, acknowledged and delivered any and all documents and instruments as may be
necessary, expedient or proper in the reasonable opinion of the requesting party to carry out the
intent and purposes of this Agreement, provided that the requesting party shall pay the cost and
expense of the further instruments or documents (except that each party shall pay its own
attorneys' fees).

c. Construction. The provisions of this Agreement should be liberally
construed to effectuate its purposes. The language of this Agreement shall be construed simply
according to its plain meaning and shall not be construed for or against either party, as each party

has participated in the drafting of this Agreement and had the opportunity to have their counsel
review it.

d. Date and Delivery of Agreement. Notwithstanding anything to the
confrary contained in this Agreement, the Parties intend that this Agreement shall be deemed
effective, executed, and delivered for all purposes under this Agreement as of the date stated on
the first page of this Agreement.

e. Captions, Headings, Exhibits and Abbreviations. The captions and
headings of this Agreement are for convenience only and have no force or effect in the

SB 585990 v1:008350.0001 2

P80



interpretation or construction of this Agreement. Words indicated in parenthesis signify an
abbreviation for the previous set of words or terms, so that when the abbreviation is used within
the Agreement, it shall have the same meaning as a full restatement of the words or terms. All
recitals first stated above and all exhibits attached to this Agreement are incorporated by this
reference as though fully stated in this Agreement.

f. Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this
Agreement shall be or become illegal, null, void or against public policy, or shall be held by any
court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, null or void or against public policy, shall be
modified or changed by the parties to the extent possible to carry out the intentions and directives
stated in this Agreement. The remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.

2. Counterparts. This agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the
same instrument.

h. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on and shall
inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and
permitted assigns, except as restricted by this Agreement.

i No Assignment. Watermaster shall not voluntarily or by operation of law
assign, hypothecate, give, transfer, mortgage, sublet, license, or otherwise transfer or encumber
all or any part of its rights, duties, or other interests in this Agreement without the District’s prior
written consent. Any attempt to do so in violation of this provision shall be a material default
under this Agreement and shall be null and void.

i Waiver. No waiver of any provision or consent to any action shall
constitute a waiver of any other provision or consent to any other action, whether or not similar.
No waiver or consent shall constitute a continuing waiver or consent or commit a party to
provide a waiver in the future except to the extent specifically stated in writing. Any waiver
given by a party shall be null and void if the party requesting such waiver has not provided a full
and complete disclosure of all material facts relevant to the waiver requested. No waiver shall be
binding unless executed in writing by the party making the waiver.

k. Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue. The wvalidity and
interpretation of this Agreement and any ancillary documents shall be governed by the laws of
the State of California without giving effect to the principles of conflict of laws. The parties
agree that any state court located in San Bernardino County shall have personal jurisdiction over
the parties hereto and over any case or controversy related in any manner this Agreement and
shall be the exclusive forum in which to adjudicate such case or controversy. Any final
judgment rendered against a party in any action or proceeding shall be conclusive as to the
subject of such final judgment and may be enforced in other jurisdictions in any manner
provided by law.

L Notices.  Formal notices, demands and communications between
Watermaster and the District shall be sufficiently given and shall not be deemed given unless

SB 585900 v1:068350.0001 3

P81



dispatched by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered
personally, to the principal offices of Watermaster and the District as follows:

DISTRICT:
WATERMASTER: Chino Basin Watermaster
¢/o Mr. Desi Alvarez
8632 San Bernardino Road
Cucamonga, CA
m. Attorneys' Fees. 1If any legal or equitable proceeding (lawsuit,

arbitration, ete.), including an action for declaratory relief, related in any manner to this
Agreement is brought, each party shall bear its own costs in the resolution of such dispute.

n. Authorizations. All individuals executing this and other documents on
behalf of the respective parties certify and warrant that they have the capacity and have been
duly authorized to so execute the documents on behalf of the entity so indicated. Each signatory
shall also indemnify the other parties to this Agreement, and hold them harmless, from any and
all damages, costs, attorneys' fees, and other expenses, if the signatory is not so authorized.

0. Entire Agreement and Amendment. In conjunction with the matters
considered herein, this Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement of the parties
and both parties acknowledge that they have not relied on any promises, representations,
agreements, warranties or undertakings by any of the parties, either oral or written, of any
character or nature binding except as stated in this Agreement. This Agreement supersedes, and
its terms govern, all prior or contemporaneous proposals, agreement or other communications
between the parties, oral or written, regarding this subject matter. This Agreement may be
altered, amended or modified only by an instrument in writing explicitly referencing this
Agreement, executed by the parties to this Agreement and by no other means. Each party waives
their right to-claim, contest or assert that this Agreement was modified, canceled, superseded or
changed by any oral agreement, course of conduct, waiver or estoppel.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Security Agreement on
the date first above written.

CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
DISTRICT

By: By:

Desi Alvarez, CEO
Its:

3B 585990 v1:008350.0001 4

P82



AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LOAN -

This Agreement to Provide Loan (“Agreement”) is made as of this day of July,
2011, by and between City of Ontario (the “City”) and Chino Basin Watermaster (the
“Watermaster™).

RECITALS

A, Watermaster is the entity appointed by the Couwrt maintaining continuing
jurisdiction over the case Chino Basin Municipal Water District v. City of Chino, San

Bernardino Superior Court Case No. RCV 51010 ("Judgment™), whose purpose is to administer
the terms of the Judgment.

B. City is a charter City organized under

C. Watermaster desires to purchase replenishment water from the Metropolitan
Water District of Southern California ("MWD") in order to augment the basin’s water supply to
satisfy Desalter replenishment obligations of the parties to the Judgment.

D. Under the Judgment, Watermaster collects revenue to purchase replenishment

water on a yearly basis based on pumping by parties to the Judgment that incur a replenishment
obligation.

E. Watermaster desires to borrow, and City desires to assist Watermaster by lending
to Watermaster, an amount in cash not to exceed $2,150,000 (the “Loan™) in order to accomplish
the purchase of water from MWD,

F. Under Paragraph 24 of the Judgment, "Watermaster may borrow from time to
time amounts not exceeding the annual anticipated receipts of Watermaster during such year."

NOW THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual agreements, obligations,
and representations, and in further consideration for the making of the Loan, Watermaster and
City hereby agree as follows:

1. Loan. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, City hereby agrees
to lend the Watermaster up to Two Million One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars
($2,150,000.00) at a variable interest rate equivalent to the monthly Local Agency Investment
Fund interest rate plus One and One-Half Percent (1.5%) simple interest per annum as more
detailed in the attached Promissory Note (the “Note”, Exhibit A to this Agreement). As more
fully set forth in the Note, the terms of the Loan shall include the following:

1.1 Interest shall be paid monthly. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of
a 30-day month and a 360-day year.

1.2 The Note will provide that all outstanding principal shall be due and
payable on January 15, 2015.

P83



2. Security. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, in conjunction
with the Note, Watermaster hereby agrees to pledge assessment revenue received from
replenishment assessments levied by Watermaster (“Pledged Revenues™), which agreement
shall be in the form of the Security Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Security
Agreement”), and shall make payments due under the Note from the Pledged Revenues and any
other legally available source. Any assessments necessary to pay such Loan shall be levied by
Watermaster. Watermaster shall levy replenishment assessments upon every acre-foot of water
that incurs a replenishment assessment in an amount sufficient to account for both the principal
and interest on money borrowed to purchase that water. If by November 15, 2014, Watermaster
has not collected replenishment assessments to meet its commitment for full repayment, then by
December 15, 2014, Watermaster will levy a special assessment in an amount sufficient to meet
the repayment obligations due on January 15, 2015.

3. Use of Loan Proceeds. Watermaster hereby covenants and agrees that the
proceeds from the Loan shall only be used to pay invoices from the Inland Empire Utilities
Agency ("IEUA") for replenishment water purchased by IEUA from MWD and the Water
Facilities Authority for treatment charges.

4. Distribution of Loan Proceeds. Funds will be made available by the City within
three days of demand from Watermaster, but shall only be distributed as invoices are received
from IEUA for the water and only in the amount of such invoices.

5. Watermaster Records. Watermaster covenants to keep proper books and financial
records, in accordance with accepted practices for similar issuers, and to make such books and
records available for reasonable inspection by City. Watermaster shall also provide the following
financial information and statements in form and content acceptable to City:

5.1 Within 240 days of fiscal year end, a copy of Watermaster’s CPA audited
financial statement.

5.2  Within 90 days after the end of each interim six-month period (the first
six-month period ending on December 31, 2011), a copy of Watermaster’s unaudited financial
statements for the six months then ended.

53  Within 90 days after the beginning of the fiscal year being budgeted, a
budget for the new fiscal year.

54 Such other financial information as may be reasonably requested by the
City from time to time.

6. Court Approval: Deliverables. = This Agreement shall be submitted by
Watermaster to the San Bernardino Superior Court (the “Court”) maintaining continuing
jurisdiction over the Judgment with a request that the Court find that the Agreement constitutes a
legal and binding commitment on Watermaster. Such approval shall act as a condition precedent
to the execution by the parties of the Note and the Security Agreement. Within __ days of
receiving Court approval, the parties shall execute and deliver the Note and the Security
Agreement in the forms attached hereto.

P84



7. Representations and Warranties. Watermaster represents and warrants that it
knows of no existing or threatened litigation the results of which, if adversely determined, would

have a material adverse effect upon Watermaster's ability to fulfill its obligations under this
Agreement.

8. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the date set forth above and remain in
full force and effect throughout the term of the Loan.

0. Governing Law. This Agreement and any exhibits referenced herein shall be
interpreted under and be governed by the laws of the State of California. Any dispute arising
under this Agreement shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the Court maintaining continuing
jurisdiction over the Judgment,

10.  Time. Time is of the essence in this Agreement,

11. Notices. Formal notices, demands and communications between Watermaster
and City shall be sufficiently given and shall not be deemed given unless dispatched by
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered personally, to
the principal offices of Watermaster and City as follows:

CITY:

WATERMASTER: Chino Basin Watermaster
' c/o Mr. Desi Alvarez
8632 San Bernardino Road
Cucamonga, CA

12.  Relationship of Parties. The relationship of Watermaster and the City under this
Agreement is and at all times shall remain solely that of a debtor and a creditor, and shall not be
construed as a joint venture, equity venture, partnership, or any other relationship, except as
otherwise may be agreed to by the parties. The City neither undertakes nor assumes any
responsibility or duty to Watermaster (except as provided for herein) or any third party.

13, Assignment: Binding Nature. This Agreement and the rights granted herein are
personal to the City and the Watermaster and may not be exercised or assigned voluntarily or
involuntarily by or to any person or entity other than the City and the Watermaster, and shall
terminate and be of no further force or effect upon any assignment. All provisions of this
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the administrators, successors-in-
interest, transferees, and permitted assigns of each of the parties; provided, however, that except
as otherwise permitted in this Agreement, this section does not waive the prohibition on
assignment of this Agreement by the City or the Watermaster without the City’s or the
Watermaster's consent.

SB 585548 v2:008350.0001 3

P85



14. Waiver. Auny waiver by the City of any obligation in this Agreement must be in
writing. No waiver will be implied from any delay or failure by the City to take action on any
breach or default of Watermaster or to pursue any remedy allowed under the Agreement or
applicable law. Any extension of time granted to Watermaster to perform any obligation under
this Agreement shall not operate as a waiver or release from any of its obligations under this
Agreement. Consent by the City to any act or omission by Watermaster shall not be construed to
be a consent to any other or subsequent act or omission or to waive the requirement for the City’s
written consent to future waivers.

15.  Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement including exhibits referenced
herein contain the entire agreement of the parties and supersede any and all prior negotiations
with respect to the subject matter hereof. Any amendments or modifications to this Agreement
must be in writing, and shall be made only if executed by both Watermaster and the City.

16. Other Agreements. Watermaster represents that it has not entered into any
agreements that are inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement. Further, Watermaster shall

not enter into any agreements that are inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement without an
express waiver by the City in writing.

17. Severability. Every provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable. If
any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall
not in any way be affected or impaired.

18.  Attorneys' Fees. If any legal proceeding (lawsuit, arbitration, etc.) including an
action for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement,
each party shall bear its own costs. '

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first
written above.

CITY

By:

WATERMASTER

By:

Desi Alvarez, CEO

Exhibit A: Form of Promissory Note
Exhibit B: Form of Security Agreement

P86



City of Ontario Not to Exceed $2,150,000 , 2011

SECURED PROMISSORY NOTE

1. Evidence of Obligation. For value received, this Promissory Note (the “Note™)
is given by Chino Basin Watermaster (“Borrower”) to City of Ontario (“Lender™), to
evidence that certain obligation by Borrower to pay to Lender a principal amount not to
exceed Two Million One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($2,150,000.00).

2 Payment Covenant. For value received, Borrower promises to pay to Lender at
Ontario, California, or at such other place as may be designated in writing by Lender, or
to its order, a principal amount not to exceed Two Million One Hundred Fifty Thousand
Dollars ($2,150,000.00) plus Interest (as defined below in Section 3), as provided herein.

3. Use of Proceeds; Principal Amount. The principal shall only be used by
Borrower to pay invoices from the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (“TEUA”) for
replenishment water purchased by IEUA from the Metropolitan Water District of
Southern California and the Water Facilities Authority for treatment charges. The
amount of the principal of this Note shall be determined as follows but shall not exceed
$2,150,000.00: Funds shall be transferred by Lender to Borrower within three (3) days of
written demand by Borrower to Lender, provided that such written demand include the
invoices received by Borrower from IEUA, and provided further that the amount of the
funds transferred by Lender to Borrower shall be an amount equal to the amount of such
invoices.

4, Interest. Interest on the outstanding principal balance due under this Note shall
accrue commencing on the date of this Note at a variable rate equal to the monthly Local
Agency Investment Fund interest rate plus One and One-Half Percent (LAIF + 1.5%)
simple interest per annum based on a 30-day month and a 360-day year (the “Interest”).
The Interest shall be paid monthly commencing on

5. Maturity. The entire amount of unpaid principal, plus all accrued and unpaid
Interest and any costs or fees owing under this Note shall be due and payable in full on
January 15, 2015.

6. Prepavment. Borrower reserves the right at any time, and from time to time, to
prepay all or any portion of the amounts outstanding hereunder without penalty or
premium.

T Default; Acceleration. If an Event of Default (as defined below) occurs under
this Note, then Lender may, at its sole option, declare all sums owing under this Note
immediately due and payable, and all amounts owing hereunder shall be automatically
due and payable subject to any requirements as specified below.

Each of the following shall constitute an “Event of Default”:

(a) Failure of Borrower to pay when due principal or accrued interest under
this Note within thirty (30) days of any due date;

SB 585986 v1:008350.0001 I

P87



City of Ontario Not to Exceed $2,150,000 ,2011

(b) A custodian, trustee, receiver, or agent is appointed or takes possession of
substantially all of the assets of Borrower;

(c) Any attachment, execution, or other writ is levied on all or substantially all
of the assets of the Borrower;

(d) Any default under the terms of the Security Agreement executed
concurrently herewith by Borrower.

8. Application of Payments. Any payment when made shall be credited first on the
accrued interest then due, and the remainder on the principal payable under this Note.
Interest shall thereupon cease on the amount so credited on the principal sum.

9. No _Waivers. No previous waiver and no failure or delay by Lender in acting
with respect to the terms of this Note shall constitute a waiver of any breach, default, or
failure of condition under this Note or the obligations secured thereby. A waiver of any
term of this Note or of any of the obligations secured thereby must be made in writing
and shall be limited to the express written terms of such waiver.

10.  Usury. All agreements between Borrower and Lender are expressly limited, so
that in no event or contingency whatsoever, whether by reason of the advancement of the
proceeds of this Note, acceleration of maturity of the unpaid principal balance, or
otherwise, shall the amount paid or agreed to be paid to Lender for the use, forbearance,
or detention of the money to be advanced under this Note exceed the highest lawful rate
permissible under applicable usury laws. If, under any circumstances whatsoever, Lender
shall ever receive as interest an amount that exceeds the highest lawful rate, the amount
that would be excessive interest shall be applied to the reduction of the unpaid principal
balance under this Note and not to the payment of interest, or, if such excessive interest

exceeds the unpaid balance of principal under this Note, such excess shall be refunded to
Borrower.

11. Time of the Essence; Dates. Time is of the essence of this Note. In the event
that any date specified in this Note falls on Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday, such
date shall be deemed to be the succeeding day on which the public agencies and major
banks are open for business.

12. Governing Law and Venue. This Note shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of California. The venue for any proceedings under
this Note shall be a court of competent jurisdiction in the County of San Bernardino,
State of California.

13. Parties in Interest. This Note shall bind Borrower and its successors, heirs and
assigns. This Note shall not be assigned or transferred by Lender without the express
prior written consent of Borrower, except by operation of law.

14, Severability. If any provision in this Note is held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this Note will remain in full

5B 585986 v1:008350.0001 2

P88



City of Ontario Not to Exceed $2,150,000 , 2011

force and effect. Any provision of this Note held invalid or unenforceable only in part or
degree will remain in full force and effect the extent not held invalid or unenforceable.

15.  Attornevs’ Fees. If any legal proceeding (lawsuit, arbitration, etc.) including an
action for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Note,
each party shall bear its own costs.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has executed this Note as set forth below.

BORROWER:

Chino Basin Watermaster

Desi Alvarez, CEO

Address:
8632 San Bernardino Road
Cucamonga, CA

SB 585986 v1:008350.0001 3

P89



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION

P90



SECURITY AGREEMENT

This Security Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on this  day of

, 2011, by and between City of Ontario (the “City”) and Chino Basin Watermaster

(“Watermaster™) (each a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”) with reference to the
following facts and intentions:

Al Watermaster is the entity appointed by the Court maintaining continuing
jurisdiction over the case Chino Basin Municipal Water District v. City of Chino, San
Bernardino Superior Court Case No. RCV 51010 (“Judgment™), whose purpose is to administer
the terms of the Judgment.

B. City is a Charter city organized under

C. The Parties entered into that certain Agreement to Provide Loan dated
, 2011 (the “Loan Agreement™), and the approval of the Court as set forth in Section
6 of the Loan Agreement has been obtained.

D. In conjunction with the Secured Promissory Note executed by Watermaster
concurrently herewith (the “Note”), Watermaster agrees to grant the City a security inferest in
the assessment revenue received from replenishment assessments levied by Watermaster, as
more fully described herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and
agreements hereinafter set forth, and for other good and valuable consideration (the

receipt and sufficiency of which are hercby acknowledged), THE PARTIES AGREE, AS
FOLLOWS:

1. Incorporation by Reference; Defined Terms. The above Recitals and Exhibits
hereto are incorporated herein by this reference. Any term used but not defined in this
Agreement shall have the meaning given such term in the Loan Agreement or the Note.

2. Grant of Security Interest. Watermaster grants to the District a security interest
in the assessment revenue received by Watermaster from replenishment assessments levied by
Watermaster (the “Pledged Revenues™), to secure performance and payment by Watermaster to
the District under the Note.

3. Representations, Warranties and Covenants. Watermaster represents, warrants
and covenants that it will execute documents and take such other actions and do such other
things, all as the District may from reasonably require from time to time, to establish, perfect and
maintain a valid security interest and lien in the Pledged Revenues;

4, Events of Default. Watermaster will be in default on the occurrence of any one
of the following events or conditions (each, an “Event of Default™):

a. Watermaster’s failure to perform any of the obligations, covenants, terms
or conditions contained or referred to in this Agreement or the Note;

SB 585990 v1:008350,000t

P91



b. Watermaster’s breach of any warranty, representation or statement
contained or referred to in this Agreement or the Note.

5. Remedies of the City. When an Event of Default occurs, the City shall provide
written notice to Watermaster of the Event of Default and the reasons therefore (“Notice of
Default”). Watermaster may object in writing within five (5) days of receipt of Notice of
Default, and the parties shall meet and confer in good faith to resolve any dispute. If the parties
are unable to resolve such dispute within 30 days then the dispute will be resolved by motion to
the Court maintaining continuing jurisdiction over the Judgment. The rights, powers and
remedies of the City in this Agreement shall be in addition to all rights, powers and remedies
given by law and are cumulative. The exercise of any one or more of the rights, powers and
remedies provided in this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any other rights,
powers and remedies of the District.

6. Termination of Agreement. This Agreement, and Watermaster’s duties and
obligations under this Agreement, will continue in effect and only terminate when Watermaster
completes performance of the obligations and duties under the terms and conditions of the Note.

7. General Provisions.

a. Recitals. The recitals set forth at the beginning of this Agreement of any
matters or facts shall be conclusive proof of their truthfulness and the terms and conditions stated
in the recitals, if any, shall be deemed a part of this Agreement.

b. Other Instruments. The parties shall, whenever and as often as
reasonably requested by the other party, execute, acknowledge and deliver or cause to be
executed, acknowledged and delivered any and all documents and instrumenis as may be
necessary, expedient or proper in the reasonable opinion of the requesting party to carry out the
intent and purposes of this Agreement, provided that the requesting party shall pay the cost and
expense of the further instruments or documents (except that each party shall pay its own
attorneys' fees).

c. Construction. The provisions of this Agreement should be liberally
construed to effectuate its purposes. The language of this Agreement shall be construed simply
according to ifs plain meaning and shall not be construed for or against either party, as each party

has participated in the drafting of this Agreement and had the opportunity to have their counsel
review it.

d. Date and Delivery of Apreement. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary contained in this Agreement, the Parties intend that this Agreement shall be deemed
effective, executed, and delivered for all purposes under this Agreement as of the date stated on
the first page of this Agreement.

e Captions, Headings, Exhibits and _Abbreviations. The captions and
headings of this Agreement are for convenience only and have no force or effect in the
interpretation or construction of this Agreement. Words indicated in parenthesis signify an
abbreviation for the previous set of words or terms, so that when the abbreviation is used within
the Agreement, it shall have the same meaning as a full restatement of the words or terms. All

3B 585990 v1:008350.0001 2

P92



recitals first stated above and all exhibits attached to this Agreement are incorporated by this
reference as though fully stated in this Agreement.

f. Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this
Agreement shall be or become illegal, null, void or against public policy, or shall be held by any
court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, null or void or against public policy, shall be
modified or changed by the parties to the extent possible to carry out the intentions and directives
stated in this Agreement. The remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.

g, Counterparts. This agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the
same instrument.

h. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on and shall
inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and
permitted assigns, except as restricted by this Agreement.

i No Assignment. Watermaster shall not voluntarily or by operation of law
assign, hypothecate, give, transfer, mortgage, sublet, license, or otherwise transfer or encumber
all or any part of its rights, duties, or other interests in this Agreement without the City’s prior
written consent. Any attempt to do so in violation of this provision shall be a material default
under this Agreement and shall be null and void.

j- Waiver. No waiver of any provision or consent to any action shall
constitute a waiver of any other provision or consent to any other action, whether or not similar.
No waiver or consent shall constitute a continuing waiver or consent or commit a party to
provide a waiver in the future except to the extent specifically stated in writing. Any waiver
given by a party shall be null and void if the party requesting such waiver has not provided a full
and complete disclosure of all material facts relevant to the waiver requested. No waiver shall be
binding unless executed in writing by the party making the waiver.

k. Governing Law, Jurisdiction _and _Venue. The wvalidity and
interpretation of this Agreement and any ancillary documents shall be governed by the laws of
the State of California without giving effect to the principles of conflict of laws. The parties
agree that any state court located in San Bernardino County shall have personal jurisdiction over
the parties hereto and over any case or controversy related in any manner this Agreement and
shall be the exclusive forum in which to adjudicate such case or controversy. Any final
judgment rendered against a party in any action or proceeding shall be conclusive as to the

subject of such final judgment and may be enforced in other jurisdictions in any manner
provided by law.

L Notices.  Formal notices, demands and communications between
Watermaster and the District shall be sufficiently given and shall not be deemed given unless
dispatched by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered
personally, to the principal offices of Watermaster and the District as follows:

8B 585990 v1:008350.0001 3

P83



CITY:

WATERMASTER: Chino Basin Watermaster
c/o Mr. Desi Alvarez
8632 San Bernardino Road
Cucamonga, CA

m. Attorneys' Fees. If any legal or equitable proceeding (lawsuit,
arbitration, etc.), including an action for declaratory relief, related in any manner to this
Agreement 1s brought, each party shall bear its own costs in the resolution of such dispute.

n. Authorizations. All individuals executing this and other documents on
behalf of the respective parties certify and warrant that they have the capacity and have been
duly authorized to so execute the documents on behalf of the entity so indicated. Each signatory
shall also indemnify the other parties to this Agreement, and hold them harmless, from any and
all damages, costs, attorneys' fees, and other expenses, if the signatory is not so authorized.

0. Entire Agreement and Amendment. In conjunction with the matters
constdered herein, this Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement of the parties
and both parties acknowledge that they have not relied on any promises, representations,
agreements, warranties or undertakings by any of the parties, either oral or written, of any
character or nature binding except as stated in this Agreement. This Agreement supersedes, and
its terms govern, all prior or contemporancous proposals, agreement or other communications
between the parties, oral or written, regarding this subject matter. This Agreement may be
altered, amended or modified only by an instrument in writing explicitly referencing this
Agreement, executed by the parties to this Agreement and by no other means. Each party waives
their right to claim, contest or assert that this Agreement was modified, canceled, superseded or
changed by any oral agreement, course of conduct, waiver or estoppel.

IN WITNESS WHEREOTF, the parties hereto have executed this Security Agreement on
the date first above written.

CITY OF ONTARIO  CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
By: By:
Desi Alvarez, CEO
Its:
SB 583990 v1:008350.0001 4

P84



AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LOAN

This Agreement to Provide Loan (“Agreement”) is made as of this day of July,
2011, by and between Jurupa Community Services District {the “Distriet”), and Chino Basin
Watermaster (the “Watermaster™),

RECITALS

A, Watermaster is the entity appointed by the Court maintaining continuing
jurisdiction over the case Chino Basin Municipal Water District v. City of Chino, San
Bernardino Superior Court Case No. RCV 51010 ("Judgment"), whose purpose is to administer
the terms of the Judgment.

B. District is a Community Services District organized under

C. Watermaster desires to purchase replenishment water from the Metropolitan
Water District of Southern California ("MWD") in order to augment the basin’s water supply to
safisfy Desalter replenishment obligations of the parties to the Judgment.

D. Under the Judgment, Watermaster collects revenue to purchase replenishment
water on a yearly basis based on pumping by parties to the Judgment that incur a replenishment
obligation.

E. Watermaster desires to borrow, and District desires to assist Watermaster by
lending to Watermaster, an amount in cash not to exceed $1,000,000 (the “Loan™) in order to
accomplish the purchase of water from MWD,

F. Under Paragraph 24 of the Judgment, "Watermaster may borrow from time to
time amounts not exceeding the annual anticipated receipts of Watermaster during such year."

NOW THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual agreements, obligations,
and representations, and in further consideration for the making of the Loan, Watermaster and
District hereby agree as follows:

1. Loan. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, District hereby
agrees to lend the Watermaster up to One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) at a variable interest
rate equivalent to the monthly Local Agency Investment Fund interest rate plus One and One-
Half Percent (1.5%) simple interest per annum as more detailed in the attached Promissory Note
{the “Note”, Exhibit A to this Agreement). As more fully set forth in the Note, the terms of the
Loan shall include the following:

1.1 Interest shall be paid monthly. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of
a 30-day month and a 360-day year.

1.2 The Note will provide that all outstanding principal shall be due and
payable on January 15, 2015.

P95



2. Security. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, in conjunction
with the Note, Watermaster hereby agrees to pledge assessment revenue received from
replenishment assessments levied by Watermaster (“Pledged Revenues™), which agreement
shall be in the form of the Security Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Security
Agreement”), and shall make payments due under the Note from the Pledged Revenues and any
other legally available source. Any assessments necessary to pay such Loan shall be levied by
Watermaster. Watermaster shall levy replenishment assessments upon every acre-foot of water
that incurs a replenishment assessment in an amount sufficient to account for both the principal
and interest on money borrowed to purchase that water. If by November 15, 2014, Watermaster
has not collected replenishment assessments to meet its commitment for full repayment, then by
December 15, 2014, Watermaster will levy a special assessment in an amount sufficient to meet
the repayment obligations due on January 15, 2015.

3. Use of Loan Proceeds. Watermaster hereby covenants and agrees that the
proceeds from the Loan shall only be used to pay invoices from the Inland Empire Utilities

Agency ("IEUA") for replenishment water purchased by IEUA from MWD and the Water
Facilities Authority for treatment charges.

4, Distribution of Loan Proceeds. Funds will be made available by the District
within three days of demand from Watermaster, but shall only be distributed as invoices are
received from IEUA for the water and only in the amount of such invoices.

5. Watermaster Records. Watermaster covenants to keep proper books and financial
records, in accordance with accepted practices for similar issuers, and to make such books and
records available for reasonable inspection by District. Watermaster shall also provide the
following financial information and statements in form and content acceptable to District:

5.1 Within 240 days of fiscal year end, a copy of Watermaster’s CPA audited
financial statement.

5.2 Within 90 days after the end of each interim six-month period (the first
six-month period ending on December 31, 2011), a copy of Watermaster’s unaudited financial
statements for the six months then ended.

5.3  Within 90 days after the beginning of the fiscal year being budgeted, a
budget for the new fiscal year.

5.4 Such other financial information as may be reasonably requested by the
District from time to time.

6. Court Approval: Deliverables.  This Agreement shall be submitted by
Watermaster to the San Bemnardino Superior Court (the “Court”) maintaining continuing
jurisdiction over the Judgment with a request that the Court find that the Agreement constitutes a
legal and binding commitment on Watermaster. Such approval shall act as a condition precedent
to the execution by the parties of the Note and the Security Agreement. Within _ days of
receiving Court approval, the parties shall execute and deliver the Note and the Security
Agreement in the forms attached hereto.

P96



7. Representations and Warranties. Watermaster represents and warrants that it
knows of no existing or threatened litigation the results of which, if adversely determined, would
have a material adverse effect upon Watermaster's ability to fulfill its obligations under this
Agreement.

8. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the date set forth above and remain in
full force and effect throughout the term of the Loan.

9. Governing Law. This Agreement and any exhibits referenced herein shall be
interpreted under and be governed by the laws of the State of California. Any dispute arising
under this Agreement shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the Court maintaining continuing
jurisdiction over the Judgment.

10.  Time. Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

11. Notices. Formal notices, demands and communications between Watermaster
and District shall be sufficiently given and shall not be deemed given unless dispatched by
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered personally, to
the principal offices of Watermaster and District as follows:

DISTRICT:

WATERMASTER: Chino Basin Watermaster
c/o Mr. Desi Alvarez
8632 San Bernardino Road
Cucamonga, CA

12.  Relationship of Parties. The relationship of Watermaster and the District under
this Agreement is and at all times shall remain solely that of a debtor and a creditor, and shall not
be construed as a joint venture, equity venture, partnership, or any other relationship, except as
otherwise may be agreed to by the parties. The District neither undertakes nor assumes any
responsibility or duty to Watermaster (except as provided for herein) or any third party.

13.  Assignment: Binding Nature. This Agreement and the rights granted herein are
personal to the District and the Watermaster and may not be exercised or assigned voluntarily or
involuntarily by or to any person or entity other than the District and the Watermaster, and shall
terminate and be of no further force or effect upon any assignment. All provisions of this
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the administrators, successors-in-
interest, transferees, and permitted assigns of each of the parties; provided, however, that except
as otherwise permitted in this Agreement, this section does not waive the prohibition on
assignment of this Agreement by the District or the Watermaster without the District’s or the
Watermaster's consent.

SB 585548 v2:008350.0001 g
P37



14, Waiver. Any waiver by the District of any obligation in this Agreement must be
in writing. No waiver will be implied from any delay or failure by the District to take action on
any breach or default of Watermaster or to pursue any remedy allowed under the Agreement or
applicable law. Any extension of time granted to Watermaster to perform any obligation under
this Agreement shall not operate as a waiver or release from any of its obligations under this
Agreement. Consent by the District to any act or omission by Watermaster shall not be construed
to be a consent to any other or subsequent act or omission or to waive the requirement for the
District's written consent to future waivers.

15.  Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement including exhibits referenced
herein contain the entire agreement of the parties and supersede any and all prior negotiations
with respect to the subject matter hereof., Any amendments or modifications to this Agreement
must be in writing, and shall be made only if executed by both Watermaster and the District.

16.  Other Agreements. Watermaster represents that it has not entered into any
agreements that are inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement. Further, Watermaster shall
not enter into any agreements that are inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement without an
express waiver by the District in writing.

17.  Severability. Every provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable. If
any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable by a court of

competent jurisdiction, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall
not in any way be affected or impaired.

18.  Attorneys' Fees. If any legal proceeding (lawsuit, arbitration, etc.) including an
action for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement,
cach party shall bear its own costs.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first
written above.

DISTRICT

By:

WATERMASTER

By:

Desi Alvarez, CEO

Exhibit A: Form of Promissory Note
Exhibit B: Form of Security Agreement

P98



Jurupa Community Services District Not to Exceed $1,000,000

SECURED PROMISSORY NOTE

1. Evidence of Obligation. For value received, this Promissory Note (the “Note™)
is given by Chino Basin Watermaster (“Borrower”) to Jurupa Community Services
District (“Lender”), to evidence that certain obligation by Borrower to pay to Lender a
principal amount not to exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00).

Z. Payment Covenant. For value received, Borrower promises to pay to Lender at
Mira Loma, California, or at such other place as may be designated in writing by Lender,
or to its order, a principal amount not to exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) plus
Interest (as defined below in Section 3), as provided herein,

3. Use of Proceeds; Principal Amount. The principal shall only be used by
Borrower to pay invoices from the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (“IEUA™) for
replenishment water purchased by IEUA from the Metropolitan Water District of
Southern California and the Water Facilities Authority for treatment charges. The
amount of the principal of this Note shall be determined as follows but shall not exceed
$1,000,000.00: Funds shall be transferred by Lender to Borrower within three (3) days of
written demand by Borrower to Lender, provided that such written demand include the
invoices received by Borrower from IEUA, and provided further that the amount of the
funds transferred by Lender to Borrower shall be an amount equal to the amount of such
ImvoiCces.

4. Interest. Interest on the outstanding principal balance due under this Note shall
accrue commencing on the date of this Note at a variable rate equal to the monthly Local
Agency Investment Fund interest rate plus One and One-Half Percent (LATF + 1.5%)
simple interest per annum based on a 30-day month and a 360-day year (the “Interest™).
The Interest shall be paid monthly commencing on

5. Maturity. The entire amount of unpaid principal, plus all accrued and unpaid
Interest and any costs or fees owing under this Note shall be due and payable in full on
January 15, 2015.

6. Prepayment. Borrower reserves the right at any time, and from time to time, to

prepay all or any portion of the amounts outstanding hereunder without penalty or
premium.

7. Default; Acceleration. If an Event of Default (as defined below) occurs under
this Note, then Lender may, at its sole option, declare all sums owing under this Note
immediately due and payable, and all amounts owing hereunder shall be automatically
due and payable subject to any requirements as specified below.

Each of the following shall constitute an “Event of Default™:

(a) Failure of Borrower to pay when due principal or accrued interest under
this Note within thirty (30) days of any due date;

SB 585986 v1:008350.0001 1

P99

, 2011



Jurupa Community Services District Not to Exceed $1,000,000

(b) A custodian, trustee, receiver, or agent is appointed or takes possession of
substantially all of the assets of Borrower;

(c) Any attachment, execution, or other writ is levied on all or substantially all
of the assets of the Borrower;

(d) Any default under the terms of the Security Agreement executed
concurrently herewith by Borrower.

8. Application of Payments. Any payment when made shall be credited first on the
accrued interest then due, and the remainder on the principal payable under this Note.
Interest shall thereupon cease on the amount so credited on the principal sum.

9. No Waivers. No previous waiver and no failure or delay by Lender in acting
with respect to the terms of this Note shall constitute a waiver of any breach, default, or
failure of condition under this Note or the obligations secured thereby. A waiver of any
term of this Note or of any of the obligations secured thereby must be made in writing
and shall be limited to the express written terms of such waiver.

10. Usury. All agreements between Borrower and Lender are expressly limited, so
that in no event or contingency whatsoever, whether by reason of the advancement of the
proceeds of this Note, acceleration of maturity of the unpaid principal balance, or
otherwise, shall the amount paid or agreed to be paid to Lender for the use, forbearance,
or detention of the money to be advanced under this Note exceed the highest lawful rate
permissible under applicable usury laws. If, under any circumstances whatsoever, Lender
shall ever receive as interest an amount that exceeds the highest lawful rate, the amount
that would be excessive interest shall be applied to the reduction of the unpaid principal
balance under this Note and not to the payment of interest, or, if such excessive interest
exceeds the unpaid balance of principal under this Note, such excess shall be refunded to
Borrower.

11. Time of the Essence; Dates. Time is of the essence of this Note. In the event
that any date specified in this Note falls on Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday, such
date shall be deemed to be the succeeding day on which the public agencies and major
banks are open for business.

12. Governing Law and Venue. This Note shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of Calitornia. The venue for any proceedings under
this Note shall be a court of competent jurisdiction in the County of San Bernardino,
State of California.

13. Parties in Interest. This Note shall bind Borrower and its successors, heirs and
assigns. This Note shall not be assigned or transferred by Lender without the express
prior written consent of Borrower, except by operation of law.

14. Severability. If any provision in this Note is held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this Note will remain in full

8B 585986 v1:008350.0001 2

P100

, 2011



Jurupa Community Services District Not to Exceed $1,000,000 , 2011

force and effect. Any provision of this Note held invalid or unenforceable only in part or
degree will remain in full force and effect the extent not held invalid or unenforceable.

15, Attorneys’ Fees. If any legal proceeding (lawsuit, arbitration, etc.) including an
action for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Note,
each party shall bear its own costs.

IN WITNESS WHEREOEF, Borrower has executed this Note as set forth below.

BORROWER:

Chino Basin Watermaster

Desi Alvarez, CEO

Address:
8632 San Bernardino Road
Cucamonga, CA

SB 585086 v1:008350.0001 3

P101



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION

P102



SECURITY AGREEMENT

This Security Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on this _ day of

, 2011, by and between Jurupa Community Services District (the “Distriet™) and

Chino Basin Watermaster (“Watermaster™) (each a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”)
with reference to the following facts and intentions:

A. Watermaster is the entity appointed by the Court maintaining continuing
jurisdiction over the case Chino Basin Municipal Water District v. City of Chino, San
Bernardino Superior Court Case No. RCV 51010 (*“Judgment”), whose purpose is to administer
the terms of the Judgment.

B. District is a California Municipal Services organized under

C. The Parties entered into that certain Agreement to Provide Loan dated

, 2011 (the “Loan Agreement”), and the approval of the Court as set forth in Section
6 of the Loan Agreement has been obtained.

D. In conjunction with the Secured Promissory Note executed by Watermaster
concurrently herewith (the “Note”), Watermaster agrees to grant the District a security interest in
the assessment revenue received from replenishment assessments levied by Watermaster, as
more fully described herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and
agreements hereinafter set forth, and for other good and valuable consideration (the

receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged), THE PARTIES AGREE AS
FOLLOWS:

1. Incorporation by Reference; Defined Terms. The above Recitals and Exhibits
hereto are incorporated herein by this reference. Any term used but not defined in this
Agreement shall have the meaning given such term in the Loan Agreement or the Note.

2. Grant of Security Interest. Watermaster grants to the District a security interest
in the assessment revenue received by Watermaster from replenishment assessments levied by
Watermaster (the “Pledged Revenues”), to secure performance and payment by Watermaster to
the District under the Note,

3. Representations, Warranties and Covenants. Watermaster represents, warrants
and covenants that it will execute documents and take such other actions and do such other
things, all as the District may from reasonably require from time to time, to establish, perfect and
maintain a valid security interest and lien in the Pledged Revenues;

4. Events of Default. Watermaster will be in default on the occurrence of any one -
of the following events or conditions (each, an “Event of Default™):

a. Watermaster’s failure to perform any of the obligations, covenants, terms
or conditions contained or referred to in this Agreement or the Note;

SB 585990 v1:008350.0001

P103



b. Watermaster’s breach of any warranty, representation or statement
contained or referred to in this Agreement or the Note.

5. Remedies of the Distriet. When an Event of Default oceurs, the District shall
provide written notice to Watermaster of the Event of Default and the reasons therefore (“Notice
of Default”). Watermaster may object in writing within five (5) days of receipt of Notice of
Default, and the parties shall meet and confer in good faith to resolve any dispute. If the parties
are unable to resolve such dispute within 30 days then the dispute will be resolved by motion to
the Court maintaining continuing jurisdiction over the Judgment. The rights, powers and
remedies of the District in this Agreement shall be in addition to all rights, powers and remedies
given by law and are cumulative. The exercise of any one or more of the rights, powers and
remedies provided in this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any other rights,
powers and remedies of the District.

6. Termination of Agreement. This Agreement, and Watermaster’s duties and
obligations under this Agreement, will continue in effect and only terminate when Watermaster
completes performance of the obligations and duties under the terms and conditions of the Note.

7. General Provisions.

a. Recitals. The recitals set forth at the beginning of this Agreement of any
matters or facts shall be conclusive proof of their truthfulness and the terms and conditions stated
in the recitals, if any, shall be deemed a part of this Agreement.

b. Other Instruments. The parties shall, whenever and as often as
reasonably requested by the other party, execute, acknowledge and deliver or cause to be
executed, acknowledged and delivered any and all documents and instruments as may be
necessary, expedient or proper in the reasonable opinion of the requesting party to carry out the
intent and purposes of this Agreement, provided that the requesting party shall pay the cost and
expense of the further instruments or documents (except that cach party shall pay its own
attorneys' fees).

c. Construction. The provisions of this Agreement should be liberally
construed to effectuate its purposes. The language of this Agreement shall be construed simply
according to its plain meaning and shall not be construed for or against either party, as each party

has participated in the drafting of this Agreement and had the opportunity to have their counsel
review it.

d. Date_and Delivery of Agreement. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary contained in this Agreement, the Parties intend that this Agreement shall be deemed
effective, executed, and delivered for all purposes under this Agreement as of the date stated on
the first page of this Agreement.

e. Captions, Headings, Exhibits and Abbreviations. The captions and
headings of this Agreement are for convenience only and have no force or effect in the
mterpretation or construction of this Agreement. Words indicated in parenthesis signify an
abbreviation for the previous set of words or terms, so that when the abbreviation is used within
the Agreement, it shall have the same meaning as a full restatement of the words or terms. All

SB 585990 v1:008350.0001 2

P104



recitals first stated above and all exhibits attached to this Agreement are incorporated by this
reference as though fully stated in this Agreement.

f. Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this
Agreement shall be or become illegal, null, void or against public policy, or shall be held by any
court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, null or void or against public policy, shall be
modified or changed by the parties to the extent possible to carry out the intentions and directives
stated in this Agreement. The remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.

g. Counterparts. This agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the
same instrument.

h. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on and shall
inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and
permitied assigns, except as restricted by this Agreement.

i No Assignment. Watermaster shall not voluntarily or by operation of law
assign, hypothecate, give, transfer, mortgage, sublet, license, or otherwise transfer or encumber
all or any part of its rights, duties, or other interests in this Agreement without the District’s prior
written consent. Any attempt to do so in violation of this provision shall be a material defanlt
under this Agreement and shall be null and void.

j. Waiver. No waiver of any provision or consent to any action shall
constitute a waiver of any other provision or consent to any other action, whether or not similar.
No waiver or consent shall constitute a continuing waiver or consent or commit a party to
provide a waiver in the future except to the extent specifically stated in writing. Any waiver
given by a party shall be null and void if the party requesting such waiver has not provided a full
and complete disclosure of all material facts relevant to the waiver requested. No waiver shall be
binding unless executed in writing by the party making the waiver.

k. Governing ELaw, Jurisdiction and _Venue. The wvalidity and
interpretation of this Agreement and any ancillary documents shall be governed by the laws of
the State of California without giving effect to the principles of conflict of laws. The parties
agree that any state court located in San Bernardine County shall have personal jurisdiction over
the parties hereto and over any case or controversy related in any manner this Agreement and
shall be the exclusive forum in which to adjudicate such case or controversy. Any final
judgment rendered against a party in any action or proceeding shall be conclusive as to the
subject of such final judgment and may be enforced in other jurisdictions in any manner
provided by law.

|3 Notices.  Formal notices, demands and communications between
Watermaster and the District shall be sufficiently given and shall not be deemed given unless
dispatched by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered
personally, to the principal offices of Watermaster and the District as follows:

5B 585990 v1:008350.0001 3

P105



DISTRICT:

WATERMASTER: Chino Basin Watermaster
c/o Mr. Desi Alvarez
8632 San Bernardino Road
Cucamonga, CA

m. Attorneys' Fees. If any legal or equitable proceeding (lawsuit,
arbitration, etc.), including an action for declaratory relief, related in any manner to this
Agreement is brought, each party shall bear its own costs in the resolution of such dispute.

n. Authorizations. All individuals executing this and other documents on
behalf of the respective parties certify and warrant that they have the capacity and have been
duly authorized to so execute the documents on behalf of the entity so indicated. Each signatory
shall also indemnify the other parties to this Agreement, and hold them harmless, from any and
all damages, costs, attorneys' fees, and other expenses, if the signatory is not so authorized.

0. Entire Agreement and Amendment. In conjunction with the matters
considered herein, this Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement of the parties
and both parties acknowledge that they have not relied on any promises, representations,
agreements, warranties or undertakings by any of the parties, either oral or written, of any
character or nature binding except as stated in this Agreement. This Agreement supersedes, and
its terms govern, all prior or contemporancous proposals, agreement or other communications
between the parties, oral or written, regarding this subject matter. This Agreement may be
altered, amended or modified only by an instrument in writing explicitly referencing this
Agreement, executed by the parties to this Agreement and by no other means. Fach party waives
their right to claim, contest or assert that this Agreement was modified, canceled, superseded or
changed by any oral agreement, course of conduct, waiver or estoppel.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Security Agreement on
the date first above written.

JURUPA COMMUNITY SERVICES CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
DISTRICT
By: By:
Dest Alvarez, CEO
Its:
SB 585996 v1:008350.0001 4

P106



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

Il. BUSINESS ITEM

C. STORAGE AGREEMENT WITH INLAND
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY AND THREE
VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bemardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org

DESI ALVAREZ, P.E.
Chief Executive Officer

STAFF REPORT

DATE: August 18, 2011
TO: Advisory Committee Members

SUBJECT: Storage Agreement for Desalter Replenishment Water

SUMMARY

Recommendations — 1) Authorize the CEO fo Execute a Storage Agreement with Inland Empire
Utilities Agency (IEUA) and with Three Valleys Municipal Water District (TVMWD) and 2) Request
the Watermaster Board Waive the Thirty Day Notice Period (Watermaster Rules & Regulations
Section 10.10) and the Twenty-One Day Consideration Period (Watermaster Rules & Regulations
Section 10.11) for Applications for Local Storage Agreements with IEUA and TVMWD to Store
Desalter Replenishment Water. This Request is sought With the Express Acknowledgment that it
Does Not Create Precedent for Future Applications.

Discussion:

With Metropolitan Water District's making imported replenishment water available for the first time in four
years, Watermaster ordered 50,000 acre-feet to augment the Chino Groundwater Basin. As of August 7,
2011 approximately 18,700 acre-feet of imported replenishment water has been recharged into the Chino
Groundwater Basin. If the current rate of recharge holds through December 31, 2011 the target of 50,000
acre-feet of recharge will likely be met.

The acquisition of this water was unplanned and therefore unbudgeted. However, financing
arrangements have been made that will cover the acquisition cost. The agreements include loans,
purchase of the water by Appropriators which lack water rights in the Basin to be held in preemptive
replenishment accounts, and purchase of the water by regional water wholesalers to be held in storage
accounts for future Desalter Replenishment.

IEUA and TVMWD, two of the regional water wholesalers that provide imported water to Chino Basin,
have offered to assist in financing a portion of the replenishment water. Since Watermaster has only
identified financing for approximately 45,000 acre-feet of water, there is a potential for these agencies to
assist in financing the remainder of the imported replenishment water. Both agencies will be acquiring

the imported replenishment water in their names which require that the water he stored in dedicated
Storage Accounts.

P107



Storage Agreements for Desalter Replenishment Water August 18, 2011

The Storage Accounts will be restricted so that the  water stored will only be used for future Desalter
Replenishment, a key need and priority of the Basin. The exact quantities of water to be stored is still to
be determined but is estimated between 5 and 10 thousand acre-feet. Following is a description of the
proposed terms for the Storage Agreements (draft copy is attached).

Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) and/or Three Valleys Municipal Water District (TVMWD) will acquire
replenishment water the use of which is strictly limited for preemptive Desalter replenishment obligations
at Watermaster's request. The acquisition cost of the water is $409.00 per acre-foot, plus $2.00 per acre-
foot for water taken through the Orange County Water District’s turnout, plus $12.00 per acre-foot for the
IEUA surcharge, plus a treatment charge of $42.00 per acre-foot for the water stored through direct
injection distributed over the total quantity of replenishment water taken.

The water acquired and stored by Infand Empire Uilities Agency (IEUA) and/or Three Valleys Municipal
Water District will only be used to meet future Desalter Replenishment obligations and cannot be sold,
traded or otherwise transferred.

Water stored under this Agreement shall be made available to Watermaster upon Watermaster requests
for the water. Watermaster will pay IEUA or TVMWD for the water at the time it calls for the water,
Watermaster agreas to pay a reasonable price for the water that at a minimum will cover 100% of the
acquisition cost plus financing costs (accrual cost) but no more than the published MWD replenishment
rate at the time of the call. Any surplus resulting from a difference between the revenue from the sale of
the replenishment water and the actual cost to IEUA and/or TVMWD will be used solely for investments in
ihe Chino Basin to be mutually agreed between Watermaster and IEUA or TVMWD.

Cost:

The estimated cost of this water to Watermaster if as anticipated is used in 2014 will run betwean
$473.62 and $515.00 per acre-foot. The lower estimate is based on an acquisition cost of $424.34 per
acre-foot to which is added financing cost assumed fo be limited to interest at a rate of 2% per annum
plus the 2% annual loss. However, the actual cost of water may differ depending on the financing cost
agreed to at the time the Storage Agreements are finalized. The higher amount is the estimated MWD
replenishment rate for 2014.

Actions:

August 11, 2011 Appropriative Pool — Moved to by majority vote to approve staff recommendations
adding the conditions that Watermaster staff, Three Valleys Municipal Water District, and Intand Empire
Utilities Agency negotiate final terms of the Storage Agreement for consideration at the next Advisory
Committee meeting and that Fontana Water Company and Cucamonga Valley Water District participate
in that process on behalf of the Appropriative Pool.

August 11, 2011 Non-Agricultural Pool — Moved to approve staff recommendation, and that the
representative attending the Watermaster Board Meeting is directed to support the Executive Officer.
August 11, 2011 Agriculiural Pool ~

August 18, 2011 Advisory Committee —

August 25, 2011 Watermaster Board ~

P108



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

“STORAGE PARTY”
PREEMPTIVE REPLENISHMENT STORAGE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this day of . , by and
between Chino Basin Watermaster, (herein "Watermaster") and

(herein “Storage Party") pursuant to the Judgment entered January 27 1978 and the Peace Agreement
and Implementation Plan dated June 29, 2000. S

STORAGE AUTHORITY,. The authority is hereby granted to the'above Storage Party, pursuant to the
terms and conditions hereof, to store acre-feet of water (Stored Water) in the Chino
Basin to be used exclusively for recharge required by Désalter operatlons beginning approximately in
2013, The right to store water under this Storage Agreement is not transferab[e or assignable.

TERM OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall contlnue in effect cotermmous with the Peace
Agreement unless or until the Agreement is modified, amended or terminated’ by Watermaster action.
Except for losses or other factors as Watermaster: may establish, any Stored Water at the time of
termination of this Agreement shall remain to the credit of. Storage. Party for subsequent recapture in its
normal operations, i.e., termination of th -Agreement shall not 1mpa1r the integrity of water stored or the
right to recapture the same.

are ppl:cable fo and blndmg upon not only the parties hereto,
but also upon their respective heirs, executors, ‘administrators, “successors, assigns, lessors and
licensees and upon the agents employees and attorneys |n faot of all such persons

This Agreement and all provisions thereof.

LOSSES ATTRIBUTABLE TO STORED WATER F’ursuant to the Peace Agreement, losses shall be
applied to all Stored Water. Stored Water will be sub;ect to a loss factor of 2% of Stored Water per year.

Water for Desalter Rep[emshment in 2014 and will use all Stored Water no later than 2016. Storage
Party shall prowde Stored Water as requested by Watermaster for Desalter Replenishment.

PAYMENT. Watermaster shall pay Storage Party for Stored Water upon its use. The price paid for
Stored Water shall .cover all of the Storage Party’s direct cost which are the acquisition cost of the water
and all financing expenses incurréd by the Storage Party. Acquisition costs are as follows: $409.00 per
acre-foot plus $2.00 per.a re—foot for that portion of the water taken through the Orange County Water
District's turnout distributed over the total quantity of imported replenishment water plus $42.00 per acre-
foot for that portion of water taken through direct injection distributed over the total quantity of imported
replenishment water. The total quantity of imported replenishment water is estimated to between 40,000

and 50,000 acre-feet and Watermaster will notify the Storage Party of the actual amount in January,
2012,

Any difference between the purchase price of the Stored Water and the Storage Party’s direct cost shall
be held in a reserve account to be used solely for investments in the Chino Basin mutually agreed
between Watermaster and Storage Party. Funds in the reserve account shall accrue interest at the
prevailing rate during the period the funds are held in the reserve account.

P109



Preemptive Replenishment Storage Agreement Continued

PROCEDURES AND ACCOUNTING FOR WATER STORED. Watermaster shall mainiain a continuing
account of the quantity of Stored Water in the Storage Party's account, which shall be available for review
upcn reasonable notice by Storage Party.

REPORTS TO WATERMASTER. Storage Party shall file with Watermaster quarterly reports providing
detailed documentation of all costs incurred in financing the purchase of storage water and such reports,
forms, or additional information as is reascnably required by Watermaster.
NOTICE. Any notices may be given by mail and postage prepaid addressed as follows:
Watermaster Chino Basin Watermaster
8632 Archibald Avenue, Suite 109
Rancho Cucamaonga, CA 91730
Storage Party As set forth

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed by their
authorized officers,

WATERMASTER STORAGE PARTY
Watermaster Storage Party
Date Date

P110



